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'Chairman’s foreword
John Griffith-Jones

Welcome to our 2016/17 Annual
Report. -

Atthe sametimeas providing a
record of what the FCA has achieved
during the last year, thisreport
illustrates clearly what awide remit
we fulfil to deliver cur overarching
strategic objective of ensuring that
financial markets work well. Given
the scale and importance of the
sectorinthe UK, it s arole we must
performwell.

The FCAis now four years old; it
has come alongwayinthattime.
This year has seen Andrew Balley
take over as Chief Executive. He
has driven the development of our
Mission, supported by our published
sector views and an extensive
programme of work. Locking back
over the period since we started,
much has changed—-andmuch has
stayed the same.

Interms of what has changed, the
single mostimportant achievement
has beentoembed the importance
of good conduct atthe core of the
UK's financial sector. Helped this
year by the arrival of the Senior
Managers and Certification Regime
in banking andinsurance, withthe
Imminent extension to all other
regulated firms. the industry has
largely realised that our agenda
needsto beacore part ofits own.
Regulatoryarbitrage, at leastinthe
conduct arena,1sagamenolonger
worth playing. Some of thisis down
tothe waythe FCA has setoutits
stall However, to give credit where
itisdue, much of thisis the result

of firms’ efforts to improve their
business models and culture to meet
our expectations Thereremans
mare for everyone to do, and f fear

there will always be a small minority
of people who seek to abuse the
system. Yet, going forwasrd, the main
challenge willbe to make sure that
the focus of firms remains firmly on
the conduct ball, that complacency
doesnotcreepinorthatthe
pendulum of regulationis not allowed
to swingback.

interms of what has stayed the
same, | refer predominantly to the
risks that are inherent inthe financial
sector Among them are over-
indebtedness, the ability to exploit
more vulnerable consumers, the
pace of technological change and
its threats as well as its undoubted
benefits, alack of competitionin
certainsectors and meeting our
long-term savings and pensions

needs. These and other key risks

willbe with us for the foreseeable
future, as willthe need for effective
regulationto mitigate them

We have continued towork onthe
basis that the best form of regulation
is preventative - | callit constructive
deterrence. But thiswillneverbe
enoughin allcircumstances and so,
where necessary, we will take action
where consumers have suffered
harm Inthisreportwe have set

out howwe have sought to tackle
the major risks we identified inthe
2016/17 Business Plan. Highlights
include our market study cnthe asset
management industry, cur work on
PPlleading up to cur proposals for
atime-limitonclaims, the design
ofrules toimplement the Market
Abuse Regulationand MIFID I, anda
continued emphasis on encouraging
technclogicalinnovation
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Measuring our regulatory
effectivenessis not straightforward.
While we set out curinputs and
outputs, the all-important outcome
of harm prevented or improvements
achievedthrough deterrence cannot
be readily quantified on an annual
basis Withlonger-term hindsight,
patterns and trends witlbe mcre
obvious [Nnthe meanwhile, surveys
among stakeholders, including firms
andconsumers, provide current soft
evidence and it is encouraging to
seethatconfidenceinthe FCAasea
regulator continues to improve. We
will continue to work with thought
leaders in this field to develop more
objective measures

Next year promises to be busy We
have already published our Business
Plan We are also committed
tofurther developing our own
transparency and accountability
through our forthcoming publications
whichwill explain our ‘approach to’ our
mainfunctions We have abig task
ahead of us to prepare amendments
toourrulestogive effectto Brexit and
we stand ready to provide whatever
additional help may be reguired by
Government more broadly Further
ahead we rmay need to boost our
capability to design our own policies
independently fromthe EU.

Chairman’s foreword
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Neone of our achievements would

ke possible without the skilis and
commitment of the people who work
forus Thereisaverystrongpubhc
service ethos inour workforce and a
growinglevel of expertise aswerefine
the way we operate, Our work isabig 1S @ game no longer worth
team effort, butl would like to place

”

Regulatory arbitrage, at
least in the conduct arena,

onrecerd my specialthanks to Tracey playmg‘
MecDermott, who acted as Chief
Executive forthe early part of this V[ 4

financial year, and to Andrew Bailey,
who took upthereinsin July, aswellas
tothe wider leadership team.

It

John Griffith-Jones

Jo G
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Chief Executive's statement
Andrew Bailey

This Annual Report marks the end of
my first year as FCA Chief Executive.
It has been a fascinating year Working
atthe FCA,youcanncthelp butbe
impressed by the breadth of issues
that the organisation deals with |
joinedthe FCAon 1 July, just a few
days after the referendum vote for
the UK to leave the Eurcpean Union It
was averyinteresting starttomytime
atthe FCA and set the sceneforthe
range of differentissues invoivedin
UK conduct requlation.

The UK's vote to leave the EU and the
uncertainty abocut the consequences
for financial services has shown

the need for a conduct reguiator

with clear priorities, whichis able
torespond flexibly to the impact

of external events Ourworken

the suspension of property funds
duetounprecedented demand
forredemptionsin the immediate
aftermath of the voteis an example
of how the FCA continues to ensure
markets work fairly in the face of
future shocks.

The publication of the FCA's Mission
in Aprit 2017, following a wide-ranging
consultation, was a crucialmoment
forthe organisation. The FCA
operates onaverywide landscape

- one measure is that we regulate
56,000 firmsranging from asset
managers and banks to financial
advisers and consumer credit
providers. Inevitably this means

that we have to make choices about
where we focus ourresources We
also have more tools than many
other conduct regulators and we
should explain how and when we
wouldusethem. The Missionamsto
explain how we make those choices
and use our tools toensure that we
are serving the public interest

My focus for the first year has been
meeting as many of our stakeholders
as possible, to understand their
views onthe FCA and the work

that we do. As part of this, [ have
visited firms and consumer groups
across the country, aswell as
attending meetings hereinLondon.
Aparticularhighlight hasbeen
visiting the call centres of a number
of charities and hearing first hand
from frontline personai debt advisers
about the issues that they deal with
on a daily basis. | would like to thank
everyone who has takenthe timato
meet and share their thoughts and
experiences with me.

Cur focus onvulnerable consumers
canbe seeninmany areas of cur
work. InNovember 2016 we launched
our review of high-cost credit, which
includes overdrafts, rent-to-own,
guarantor loans, catalogue credit
andlogbookloans This follows on
fromthe introduction of the cap

on payday loansin 2015. We felt
that it was important tereview the
whole landscape rather than picking
products one at atime. This allows
ustobetterunderstand the wider
consequences of any potential
action we might take on consumers
and, more specifically, onthe supply
of credit. We do not want to push
consumers who needcredit into the
hands of illegal moneylenders.

Alarge part of curworkis day-to-day
supervision of regulated firms and
enforcing against them whenwe find
wrongdcing. We used our powers
requiring a listed company to pay
compensation for market abuse for
the first time; announcing in March
that Tesco plc will pay around £85m
ininvestor redressfor giving afalse
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impression about its expected haif-
year profits. We also fined Deutsche
Bank £163m for failing to maintain
an adequate anti-money laundering
control framework. This was the
largest financial penalty for anti-
money laundering controis failings
everimposed by the FCA, orits
predecessor.

We also published the interimreport
of our Asset Management Market
Studyin November 2016. This piece
of workis being undertakenusing our
competition powers. Asset managers
are responsibie for the savings of
millions of people inthe UK, making
decisions which affect their financial
wellbeing both now and in the future.
Inaworld of persistently low interest
rates, we must do everything possible
to enable people to accumulate and
earn areturnontheir savings which
canmeet their lifetime needs. To
achieve this, we need to ensure that
competitioninasset management
works effectively to minimise the cost
of investment. We have proposed
anumber of remediesaimed at
bringing greater transparency so
thatinvestors canbe clear about
what they are paying and the impact
charges have ontheirreturns,

As partofmyrole as Chief
Executive, I sit onthe ESMA Board
of Supervisors and am a permanent
IOSCO Board member Global
regulatory co-operationis crucial
to achieving financial stabiiity and
ensuring gcod conduct across
financial services Qurrelationship
with other regulatorsin Europe and
internationzally allows us to share
nformation, intelligence and best
practice and these relationships
support consistent and effective

Financlal Conduct Authority
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supervision. ltisimportant that

we continue to be able to share
informaticn and data with our EU
counterparts after the UK leaves the
EU. We are strongly committed to
engagement with our counterparts
around the world.

This year marks the FCA's last at
Canary Wharf, aswe prepare for

the next stage of ourwork with a
new office in Stratford. Our move

to Stratford will give us a quality
bullding, excellent facilities, the right
nfrastructure to meet our future
needs and provides value for money.
We will start moving in May 2018

This year also marks the last year
whenwe will have the benefit of John
Griffith~-Jones’ experience. During
the last four years, John has steered
the FCA from the beginning and has
helped to ensure that we are well-
positicned for the future. lwould

like to thank him personally for his
stewardship.

Iwould like ta thank allmy FCA
colleagues for their hard work and
enthusiasm andthe FCA Board for
their continued engagement and
challenge.lamlooking forward to
what my second year will bring

A Y

Mdes Bolley

Andrew Bailey

ChiefExecutlve's statemant
Andrew Balley

r

The UK's vote to

leave the EU and the
uncertainty about

the consequences for
financial services has
shown the needfora
conduct regulator with
clear priorities.

'/ 4






=
o
=
z
<L
5]
=
s
.
=

rNAO;gf ¥

Financlal Conduct Authority Chapter 1
Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17 Crverview of the year

Chapter1
Overview of the year

Financial markets are essential to every personand business in the
UK and make a significant contribution to our national economy. Our
aimis to ensure the UK financial system works well. By doing this, we
provide benefit to the economy and the public as a whole.

We regulate over 56,000 financial services firms, over 140,000
approved persons workingin the industry and the UK's financial
markets. Financial services contribute around 12% of the UK's total
economic output, directly affecting the strength of our economy and
attracting internationai investment. We have an over-riding strategic
objective to ensure that the markets we regulate function well. To do
this, we also have three operational objectives. These are to secure
an appropriate degree of protection for consumers, to protect and
enhance the integrity of the UK's financial system andto promote
competitionin the interests of consumers.

How we regulate is performing. This approach gives
us both adeeper and an earlier
understanding of emerging risks and
helps us ensure that lessons learned
inone sector canbe applied across
others We use the informationin
our Sector Views to help decide our
Business Plan priorities.

Ourregulationimproves the way
financial markets work and how firms
conduct their business. By doing this,
we provide benefit to individuals,
businesses, the economy, and
therefore the public as awhole.

Our objectives are setoutinthe
Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 (FSMA) Weuse a proportionate
approach to regulation, and prioritise
the areas and firms which pose a
higher risk to our objectives and the
areaswhere we can best serve the
public interestrepresented by

our objectives,

Qur regutatory role involves
identifying and tackling instances of
poor conduct and marketabuse We
settheprinciples, rules and standards
that firms must meet to ensure
they operate fairly and effectively to
benefitmarkets and consumers

We work with a wide range of
stakeholder groups to encourage
bestpractice, support innovation
and encourage competition that
meet consumers’ needs

We look at specific markets and at
1ssues which cut across sectors

We examine informationfroma
variety of sources. We use this -
constantly evolving information

to create our Sector Views. These
describe our view of how each sector

Qur Business Plan 2016/17 explained
ourwork programme and pricrities
for the financial year These were.

11
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1%

of peopleinthe UK
have atieast one
consumer credit
product, with

%
6%
of them having an

outstanding debt
onthat product.

12
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pensions

+ financial crime and anti-money
laundering

whoiesale financial markets

advice

+ innovationand technology

« firms’culture and governance

« treatment of existing customers

Against each of these priority
themes, the Business Plan provided
indicative measures of success. As
well as reporting work undertaken
against our operational objectives,
this Annual Report gives details of
how wellwe have performed against
these measures.

This overview highlights some of our
waork to achieve our objectivesinthe
lastyear.

Securing protection for
consumers

We set the rules and standards for
firms, to ensure they can provide

fair cutcomes for consumers. While
itisfirms' responsibility to treat
customers fairly, we canintervene

if firms fail to do so, inciuding taking
acticn to raise industry practice and
ensuring consumers receive redress.

Abetterdealoninsurance

Many customers automatically
renew their generalinsurance
policies without checking how much
their premiums have gone up or
shopping arcund for the best value.
Soin2016weissued newrules
which generalinsurers must meet at
renewal, including giving customers
details of their previous year's
premiurm and encouraging themto
shop around.

Wehave aiso published final
guidance for life insurance firms
tohelp ensurethey treat their
‘closed-book' customers fairly,
including keeping them well informed

about thelr policy, including products
andcharges.

High-cost creditand overdrafts

Since taking over the regulation of
consumer creditin April 2014, we
have focused onthe preductsthat’
present the biggestrisk to consumer
protection We published a call for
input to get evidence for ourwork
on high-cost credit, including a
review of the payday loan price cap
we introducedin 2015 Aswellas
areview of the price cap, the call

for input sought evidence onhow
high-cost credit products are used,
by whom and whether consumers
get appropriate protection. We
included overdrafts, to consider the
coensumer protectionissues arising
from poor price transparency, and
the nature andlevel of charges. We
planto report on the findings of our
callferinput during summer 2017

We alsolooked at the impact for
consumerswhen debt management
firms close.

Customersinarrears

61% of peoplein the UK have at least
one consumer credit product, with
26% of them having an cutstanding
debtonthat product. We estimate
that two million credit cardhelders
have persistent levels of debtand a
further two million cardholders were
inarrears or defaulted on payments.

We published the resuits of
ourreview into how firms treat
customerswho areinearly arrears
forunsecuredlending products, such
as credit cards and personal loans.
We found that some firms failed to
identify and help these customers,
and gave each firmin the review
specific feedback about what they
should be doing.

Separately, we found that some
mortgage firms hadincorrectly
included customers' payment
shortfall balances when calculating
their monthly payments. We told
mortgage firms to stopthis practice.
We clarified our rules to improve
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understanding ameng mortgage
firms and we set up anindustry
working group to develop a remedy
framework that firms can use with
affected customers,

Capping pension exit charges

In 2016, the Treasury announced that
itwould place anew dutyonthe FCA

to capearly exit charges forthe over
55swhowanted early access totheir
pension pelicies under the new pension
freedoms. Our newrules meanthat exit
charges are capped at 1% for personal
pensions started before 31 March 2017,
and firms cannot charge any exit fees
for personal pensions started after
thisdate.

Ensuringredress when'things
go wrong

Firms have now paid more than

£26 9bninredress to consumers
affected by the mis-selling of
payment protectioninsurance
(PPI). We have brought in a deadline
for PPl complaints of 25 August
2019. To encourage consumers
todecide whetherto act, we

will run an extensive consumer
communications campaign to telt
them about the deadline, howto
check whether they had PPl and how
to complain. We have worked with
firms handling PPlcomplaints to
simplify the process for consumers.

We have also maderules and
guidance relating to how firms should
handle PPl cemplaints inlight of the
2014 Supreme Court jJudgmentin
Plevin v Paragon Personal Finance
Limited. Our rules and guidance will
reduce the uncertainty following the
judgment, enabling firms to take a
fair and consistent approach and
ensurethe best outcomes for
consurners at the earliest stage in
thecomplaint process.

An application for judicial review

of our decision to implement a PP
deadline and our rules and guidance
onhandling PPl complaints inlight
of the Supreme Court judgment

in Plevin has been made. We willbe
defending that application.

Financial Conduct Authority
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Unfair treatment of business
customers

We commissioned a 'skilled person’
toreview allegedinappropriate
treatment of small business
customers referred to the Royai Bank
of Scotland’s Giobal Restructuring
Group (RBS GRG) between 2068 and
2013 The skilled person completed
its report onthis review in September
2016, and in November 2016 we
announcedthereport’s summary
findings. We have also committed

to publishing afuller account of the
review findings as sconas possible.
RBS has now setup acomplaints
review process andagreedto
provide automatic refunds for
complexfees to some of these small
business customers. We welcome
theinvolvement of anindependent
third party to provide oversight of
the complaints review process. This
independent third party will give us
reports onaregularbasis.

Contracts for Difference

Retail Contracts for Difference
{CFDs) are complex financial
instruments offered to retall
customers through online trading
platforms. Our work has shown that
CFDs are high-risk products and
that the vast majority of clients lose

‘macney on them. We published a

consultation paper explaining our
concerns and propoesing measures to
address them.

Protecting consumers by
strengthening the UK's
financial system

Foilowing the financial crisis in 2007,
ring-fencing was one of several
reforms the Government introduced
to strengthen the financial system.
As partofring-fencing. certain

UK banks must ring-fence their
essentialretail services fromtherest
of their panking group.

The lead regulator forring-fencingis
the Prudential Regulaticn Authority
Qurroleistomoenitor and manage
negative impacts oncoensumers,
market integrity and competition.

Chapter 1
Overview of the year

Lastyearwe worked closely with
firms to improve and finalise their
ring-fencing plans, which mustbe
implemented by 1 January 2019.

Protectingand enhancing
theintegrity of the UK
financial system

Qur aimisto ensurethatthe UK
has a healthy and transparent
financial system.

Ongoing supervision of firms

We aim to deal rapidly with events

in the market that could threaten
market integrity or cause harmto
censumers. This work applies to both
our market integrity and consumer
protection objectives. We ident fy
these 'risk events' ina number of
ways, including our thematic work,
regulatory returns and our regulatory
assessments. Over 2016/17, we
received 24,916 event-driven cases
for 'flexible' firms across all sectors.
Ofthe 24,916 events receivedin
2016/17, we are still assessing 2,049.
We took supervisory actionon 36%
of these events, as they hadthe
potential to cause most harmto our
objectives.

Equalaccess to IPO information

The UK initial Public Offering

(IPO) process plays avital rolein
helping companies raise finance.
Between 2011 and 2015, 460
companies floated onthe London
Stock Exchange, raising around
£53bn Itisimportant that potential
investors have fair access to timely
information inthe run-up to the
IPO. We published a consultation
paperinMarch 2017 which proposes
a package of policy measuresto
improve the range and guality of
information available toinvestors
during the IPO process. We will
implement changes in 2017,

13
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The impact of volatility on
illiquid assets

We undertook work into property
funds which suspended trading
because of the highlevel of demand
for redemptions following the UK's
vote toleave the EU. Welooked at
whether firms had treated their
customers fairly and communicated
effectively, both whentrading

was suspended and resumed. We
published a discussion paper to
gather more evidence into the
problems associatedwith open-
ended funds which hold illiquid assets
and whether furtherregulatory
intervention could resoivethem.

We aimto publish aresponse to the
feedback wereceive Iat('er this year.

Countdown to the Marketsin
Financial Instruments Directive
{MIFID I}

MiFID ilis the Directive that requlates
firms that provide serviceslinked
tofinancial instruments like shares,
bonds and derivatives. it comesinto
force on 3 January 2018 and will create
new investment services and expand
the definition of whatis considered
afinancialinstrument. Last year we
published four consultation papers on
different aspects of MiFID 11, as well as
anew guide for affected firms. We also
rananumber of industry workshops
tohelpthese firms. We opened the
authorisation processin January 2017
to allow sufficient time for applications
and te minimise potential market
disruption from thelarge number

of firmswe expect to apply for new
authorisations.

Promoting competition
for consumers

Healthy competition helps empower
consumers as wellasinformthem
This encourages firmstotry andwin
custom through improved service,
quality, price and innovation. Our
aimis for successful, competitive,
innovative firms to thrive and for
uncompetitive firms either to change
ortoexit themarket.

14
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Asset management

Over three-quarters of UK households
withworkplace or personal pensions
use asset management services and
the UK asset managementindustry
manages nearly £7tnassets To
understandif competition was working
wellinthe asset management sector,
we undertook a market study and
published our interim findings. They
showed weak competitioninanumber
of areas, sustained high profits and
oftenunclear performancereporting.
Wehave proposed apackage of
measures toimprove competition
inthis market and will publish our

final feedback later this year. We

also consulted onwhetherto make
areference tothe Competition and
Markets Authority on the investment
consultancy market.

Credit cards

We publishedthe resultsof

our market study into how well
competition was working for
consumersin the credit card

market. Our findings showed that
competition was working fairly well
for most ofthe 30 milfion consumers
who hold a credit card. Consumers
are generally shopping around

and switching for the best deals.
However, competition tends to focus
onfeatures like introductory offers,
andthereisless competitionon
lenger-terminterest rates, fees

and charges.

We have significant concerns about
the scale, extent and nature of
problem credit card debt and firms'
limited incentives to reduce this. We
proposed arange of remedies for
consumers, including further action
for firms to ensure they intervene
earller, before consumers getinto
problem debt.

Greater clarity about insurance
add-ons

Insurance add-ons are products

sold alongside primary insurance
products But consumers often don't
realise they have bought add-cns or
that they are buying add-on products
which are poor value for money or
aren'tright for their needs.

Following our market study into this
issue, we are running a pilot looking at
publishing insurance value measures,
including claims frequencies, claims
acceptanceratesandaverage claims
pay-outs, for four general insurance
products We publishedthesedatato
give consumer groups comparable
measures toimprove market
transparency and encourage firms to
improve the value of their products.

Innovation

We have continued, through cur
Innovation Hub, to positively foster
innovationthat focuses on offering
better outcomes for consumers.

Theresourcesto deliver
our objectives

Our staff

Qur staff areintegral to achieving
our objectives. We have a wide remit
anditis vitat that we attract, develop
andretain the right people to deliver
our objectives.

In 2016/17 we started our first
apprenticeship programme. We
currently have 104 employees on our
graduate programme. We continued
to develop our curriculum and
internal Academy programme, and
56% of allemployees have attended at
feast one training event this year.

Qurinfrastructure

We continually develop and improve
ourinformation systems tokeep
pace with our regulatory and
operational requirements. This year
we invested £58.5 million to deiiver
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change projects toimplement EU
and UK legislative changes, improve
our operational capabilities and
maintain our information systems.

In 2018 we willmove from our
existing London offices to the Queen
Elizabeth Clympic Parkin Stratford.
Qur new building willbe more
efficient and provide theresilient
infrastructure we need to continue
to help users of financial services

Qur Mission

Throughout 2016/17 we drafted

and consulted extensively onour
Mission It provides the framework

for the strategic decisions we take,
thereasoningbehind ourwork and

the waywe choosethe tools todoit.

[t gives firms and consumers greater
clarity about how and why we prioritise,
protect and intervene infinancial
markets. We published the finalversion
of our Missionin April 2017

Over 180 consumer groups, firms,
trade associations, academics

and individuals responded to the
consultation Thebreadth and depth
of their comments proved invaluable
in helping inform our Mission it
underlines that ourroleis toserve
the publicinterestthroughthe
objectives Parliament has given us
Qur stakehoiders told us they want us
tobe moratransparent about howwe
make our requlatory judgements, and
the approach explained in our Mission
ensures we willbetter deliver this.

Our Mission explains how we will seek
to use qualitative and quantitative
measures to understand and
evaluate the impact of our work.
Over the next year, we will publish
further documents to explainhow
We carry out our main activities
—authorisingand supervising

firms, taking enforcement action,
encouraging competition and
influencing market design -andhow
the Mission affects this work.

Financlal Conduct Authority
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Brexit

The UK's decision to leave the EU
willhave important impiications for
the financial services sector, the
regulatory framework and hence

our work. We are providing impartial
technical advice tothe Government
to support the EU withdrawal
negotiations and related legislative
change, particularly where they could
affect our ability to continue to meet
our operational objectives. We are
working with firms to understand
therr plans to continue to service
their cross-border operations.

We have begunwork with the
Treasury to provide technicalinputto
work invoiving the Great Repeal Bill
Thisis a significant task that involves
aline-by-line analysis of each piece
of EU legislation for which we are

the lead requlator. Our fundamental
objective in this workis to give all
interested parties certainty, so

that thereis a clearand functioning
regulatory regime onthe day that
the UK ceasestebe amember of
the EU. We will continue to advance
our statutery objectives and thus
maintain high conduct standards
androbust, proportionate and
sustanatle regulation.

We gain significant benefit from our
co-operationwith other requlatorsin
Europe andinternationally. This allows
ustoshareinformation, intelligence
andbestpractice, andthese
relationships support consistent and
effective supervision. Itis impartant
that we continue tobe able to share
regulatory informaticn with our EU
counterparts after Brexit

Chapter 1
Overview of the yaar

I

The UK's decision to
leave the EU will have
important implications
for the financial services
sector.
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Measuring our performance

We want to be an accountable and transparent requlator. Legislation
reqguires us to assess how we have advanced our objectives every

year. We have measured our performance over the last year using an
outcome-based performance framework.

Taking into account both the
informationwhichthe indicators
{figure 2.1} give us and lcoking at the
range of activities which are set out
inthisreport, ourjudgementis that
we have acted compatibiy with our
strategic objective and advanced
our operational objectives over the

course of the year.

Figure 2.1: Qutcome-based performance framework

Our Mission explains howwe

will improve cur approach to
measuring our impact it sets out
the 3-tier framework we will use to
measure how we are doing. This
includes measuring our operational
efficiency against our value for
money framework, the impact of

our interventions and cutcomes

Ensuring that financial services markets function well

Statutory
objectives

Securing an appropriate degree
of protection for consumers

Protecting and enhancing
the integrity of the UK financial
system

Promoting effective
competition in the interests
of consumers

Caonsumers.

* have access to
fair products
and services, -
which deliver
what they
promise -

Fair products
and services

Qutcomes

indicators
Improved

consumer
experience

Congumers
canbe
confident that
firms treat
them fairly and
| fixproblems
promptly

Building
trust and
engagement

Effective
remedies

Consumers

cantrust firms

tobe fit and
properand
for financial
markets to be
clean

Clean
regulated
markets

Low financial
crime

Arespected
regulatory
systemthat
lets good firms
know where
they stand

Attractiveness
of market

Respected,
joined-up
reguiation

Competition
contributes
toimproved
consumer

" outcomes

Value for
money
products and
services

Getting better
service

Firms
compete on
clear costs and
consumers
have the
information
they need

Competitive
markets

Clear and
usefyl
information

This performance framework applies to bothretail and wholesale markets. ‘Consumer’ here means not only retail consumers but

also wholesale market participants.



(NROI |

National Audst Oiice

Financial Conduct Authority Chapter 2
Annual Repart and Accounts 2016/17 Measuring our performance

Figure 2.2: Overall, how satisfied are you with your product provider?
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Sodrce Financial Lives Survey 2017
onmarkets as awhole to ident:fy Satisfaction with providers of Y { J
commonroct causes We will different products amongst UK
develop the means by which we adults is mostly moderate or high Onlv half of
measure against this framework (figure 2.2), with satisfactionscores nly hair or consumers
i - o] » »
during 2017/18. of 7-10 {out of 10) recordeq by 69% with a savings account
10 90% of consumers. Savings
accounts present an exception: are moderately to

Performance measures under only half (51%) of consumers with . o .
. . a savings account are moderately Completely satisfied with
our statutory objectives

to completely satisfied with their their provider
provider, a finding that may reflect

mer protection )
Consumer prote the current low levels of interest

© Weundertakeresearchandmoenitor  rates available onthese products ”
the marketto understand what
consumgrs think about the products Complaints
and services they use and how
satisfied they are with them The Our complaints data come from
selection of metrics below gives an information that firms give in their
indication of changes in consumer returns to the FCA, and fromthe
outcomes Financial Ombudsman Service. We
maonitor this information to assess
We mention our Financial Lives the scale of issuesin the industry and

Survey 2017 throughout this Annual identify emerging trends
Report. [t ran from December 2016

to April 2017 and around 13,000

consumers participated We ensured

that we surveyed afullrange of

consumers andthe results represent

the UK population This survey gives

us useful insightinte how UK adults

aged 18 and over experience the

financial services sector.
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Figure 2.3a: Compiaints received
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Figure 2.3b: Complaints received

by reguiated firms by regulated firms
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Figure 2.3a shows the total number
of complaints received by firmsin
2014 and 2015.Figure 2 3b shows
the number of complaints for 2016
Rule changes to our complaints data
that came into effect during 2016
meanthat the datafrom 2016 are
not directly comparable with 2014
and 2015,

We made changes to our complaints
rules to enhance our analysis of
complaints and toimprove how firms
handle complaints. Those changes
mean that all complaints madeto
firms must bereported to us, rather
than only those stillunresolved by
the end of the next business day.
The newrules came into force on 30
June 2016 but not all firms used the
new reporting return fromthat date
due to their own financial year end
date and different reporting periods.
For 2017 all firms will have to report
under the newrules.

The new reportingrules have
resufted inan overallincrease

inthe number of complaints.
However, data from six of the largest
banks show us that if they had
reported under the old rules their
complaints would have decreased
by approximately 14% within 2016,

18

2015

2016

B Number of PPi compiaints

Number of PPlcomplaints — new rules

M Number of complaints excluding PPI

Number of complaints excluding PPi~new rules

indicating thatthe increase was
principalty due to the requirement to
report all complaints

While the totalnumber of complaints
reportedtothe FCAhasincreased
significantly, due to these rule
changes, the total number of
reported PPl complaints changed

little when comparing 2016 with 2015,

Fromall FCA complaints data

from firms, generally 2016 saw an
improvement in the time takenfor
firms to close their complaints,
compared to 2015 More complaints
were closed by firms in eight weeks
orless However, because of the
reporting changes, more complaints
willnow be reported to the FCAby
firms as being closed within eight
weeks inthe second half of 2016.
The overalltrend is éncouraging
However, handiing complaints
promptly may be affected by
different factors, suchas the
emergence of more complexissues

In 2016, 59% of all complaints to
firms were upheld (where the firm
agreed with the complainant).
Thisis up from 54%in 2015, andis
the same percentage asin 2014.
This percentage does not change
rmaterially when PPlis excluded

The total amount of redress paid

by firms to consumers inresponse
to complaints has decreased from
£5.2bnin 2014 and £4.1bnin 2015

to £3 9bnin 2016. This was mainly
driven by a decrease inredress paid
for generalinsurance and protection
products, including PPl We estimate
over 90% of redress paidinthe
generalinsurance and protection
sector is for PPl Whenredress for
general insurance and protectionis
excluded, total redress decreased
from €£699min 2015to £564min
2016. Thisis closer to the £551m paid
in2014
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Figure 2.4: How satisfied were you with
how your complaint was handied by your
provider?

Sector Scorg 7-10
{outof10)
Retail banking 45%
- Consumer credit 40%
Retail investments 41%
General insurance and 33%
protection
Mortgage * 27%

Sinanciai Lwves Survey 2017,

*sarmple size lower than 100

Figure 2.4 shows that firms still

have morework todotoimprove
how well they handie complaints.
Allsecters showed thatless than
half of customers (45% being the
maximum) gave arating that they
were moderately to completely
satisfied with a provider's handling of
a compiaint.

We wili continue te menitor the
effect that our comptaints-handiing
rule changes have cn satisfaction
scores over 2017/18.

Financial Conduct Authorlty

Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

The Financial Ombudsman Service

The Financial Ombudsman Service
received 1,394,375 enquiries over
2016/17, (comparadto 1,631,955 1n
2015/16and 1,786,973 11 2014/15).
Not all enquiries resultinnew cases
beinginrtiated. In 2016/17 321,283 new
cases were set up for investigation
comparedto 340,899 new casesin
2015/16(figure 2.5).

Over 2016/17 the Financial
Ombudsman Service resolved
336,381 cases, with anoverall uphold
rate of a complaint of 43% (compared
to 438,802 and 51% respectively for
2015/16).

While complaint numbers have
decreased, we recognise that
complaints data are just one
indicater of how financial markets are
working Other factors can positively
or negatively affect complaint
numbers, such as growing consumer
awareness of their rights

Figure 2.5: Complaints received by the Financial Ombudsman Service
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Figure 2.6: Market Cleanliness Statistic
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Figure 2.7: Fraud reported to Action Fraud
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Protecting and enhancing the
integrity of the UK financial system

We aimto support a healthy and
successful financial system, where
financial markets are fair, efficient
and transparent, firms can thrive and
consumers have trustin openand
transparent markets. We have many
ways that we moniterintegrity and
the market cleanliness statistic in
figure 2.6 isjust one example of the
tools we use

We analyse the scale of ashare's
price movements in the two days
ahead of arelevant regulatory
takeover announcement, and
identify movementsthatare
abnormal. However, the degree of
these abnormal pre-anncuncement
price movements (APPMs) does not
necessarily show the level of insider
trading Many other factors could
cause an abnormal price movement
before a takeover announcement
Forexample, factors such as financial
analysts or the media correctly
assessing which companies are likely
takeover targets or significant, but
normal, trades that just happento
fallbefcre anannouncement. Itis not
possible to determine which of these
factorsis behind eachabncormal
price movement and so ifanyinsider
trading has happened.

Forthe fouryears before 2009,

the market cleanliness statistic for
takeover announcements remained
closeto 30% However, from 2010
onwards, we saw a sizeable decline in
the measureto 15.2%in 2014,

In 2016, the measure was 15%, the
same as in 2015. We wiit continue to
monitor the results and gather market
intelligencetoenable ustodrawrobust
conclusions about the underlying
trendininsider trading activity.

Figure 2.7 shows the number of
reports of fraud from individuals and
businesses (coming either directly
orthrough a police force)l made

to Action Fraud (the UK's national
reporting centre for fraud and cyber
crime) onthe phone or online. The
results for 2016 show that reported
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Figure 2.8: Firm perspective Figure 2.9: Firm satisfaction fraud has continued torise for
on how effective the FCA s with relationship with the banking and credit, and insurance

in regulating the financial FCA {%}

fraud However we are pleasedto
services industry (%}

see g strengreductioninreported
) N fraud infinancial investments, which
6.7 67 o 71 72 75 Meanscore may indicate that effortsinthis area

bythe FCA andarange of partner

agencies, including our ScamSmart
campaign, have helpedto educate
consumers and deter fraudsters to
reduce the levelof fraud occurring

Firmratings on 'FCA as effective
regulator’

. In 2017, we undertook a survey jointly
with the FCA's Practitioner Panel,

63 60 68 , 69 a9 77

2015 2018 2017 2615 2018 2017 asking firms to previde their views on
M ito3 M 4tcs  7tol Hito3 W 4tos Ftold the FCA, inctuding 'effectiveness of

theregulator and 'satisfaction with
Note Figures for 2015 and 2016 are from the FCA Practitioner Panel Survey 2016 report The 2017 results theregulatory relationship’

arefrom the FCAandPract:tioner Panel 2017 Industry Survey

with the FCA {figure 2 9) continuesto
show animprovement and has risen
from71in2015to7.2in2016t0 750
2017 (ratings out of 10).

Inthe most recent survey the mean
2 overall score rating the effectiveness
= Figure 2.10: Agreement that the FCA is achieving each of the tested objectives ofthe FCA {figure 2 8) increased
E from 6.7 to 7.0 {ratings out of 10,
—_ F 78% 79% 754, 76% The mean overall score rating
= 66% 59% satisfaction with the relationship
g
=
)
=

Protects consurmers Protects and enhances Promotes effective Stakeholders’ view of our
market integrity competition
performance
W 2015 W 2016 2017
We conductindependent annual

stakeholder research, through
BritainThinks, which asks a wide
range of our stakeholders —
including trade bodies, consumer
organisations, pariiamentarians and
the media-about their perceptions
ofthe FCA Thatresearchshows
that the majority of stakeholders
agree that the FCAis achievingits
statutory objectives. This remains
consistent with relatively little
change fromiast year {figure 2.10).

Source FCA Sta<eholder Engagement Research 2017 (BritainThinks)
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Figure 2.11: New bank authorisations and variation of permission

I
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B International

The BritainThinks survey also shows
that almost three-guarters of
stakeholders agree thatthe FCA'is
clearly establishing its authority over
the UK's financial services industry’
(72%) —anincrease of 6 percentage
points since the last wave of
stakeholder research. Stakeholder
perceptionofthe FCAhasreturned
to levels seenin previous years, after
adropin 2016.

Amajority of external stakeholders
feelthat they hear the 'right amount’
fromthe FCA(67%) Thisisat
percentage pointincrease fromthe
2016 wave of research.

Promoting effective competitionin
the interests of consumers

Inwell-functioning markets,
consumers have arange of choice,
with firms competing on service,
guality, price and innovation.

It is not possible to directly determine
whether competitionis workingwell in
aparticular market. Market data that
indicate the likely fevel of competition
must be gathered and considered as
awhole, These indicators caninclude
firms' ability to enter that market,
whether and which firms exititand
the degree of power firms in that
market hold. This s why we use our
competition tools, particularly market
studies, totake adetailed ook athow
competitionis working in a sector.

We give further information on how
we are meeting our competition
objective inchapter 5

22
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Anexample of this approach comes
from significant changes we made
tothe authorisation processin 2013
toremovebarrierstoentryinthe
banking market. Between thenand
the end of March 2017, we worked
with the Prudential Regulation
Authority [PRA) to suppert themin
the process of authorising 23 banks,
promoting greater market entry
with the intention of raising levels of
competitioninthe market.

For competitionto work well,
markets should be cpentoentryand
innovation. Figure 2 11 shows the
number of banking licences (either
viathe authorisationof anew firmor
an existingregulated firmvaryingits
permissions}. However, competition

canstillwork better. Fellowing from our

response to the CMARetail Banking
Market Investigationwe are taking
forward anumber of actions (see
"Treatment of existing customers'in
chapter 3 for further details).

Service standards

We monitor and report on other
performance areas, including
whether we are meeting our service
standards.

We track and report onour
performance against our service
standards for our regulatory
functions. and publish them on our
website every sixmonths

Qur service standards include
voluntary commitments and our
statutory obligations under FSMA
and other legislation. The standards
apply to arange of our services,
including how we deal with telephone
enquiries, cerrespondence and
applications

We have 65 service standards, up
from 54 when the FCAwas first
established Ofthese 65, during
2016/17 we met the standards for
44 of the applicable 63 standards
(67%).

Moreinformation about cur service
standardsis available on our website.
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Chapter 3
Protecting consw.mers

One of our operational objectivesis to ensure an appropriate degree
of protection for consumers. We encourage all firms to continually

focus on achieving fair outcomes for consumers.

QOuramis toensure that firms'
policies always consider censumers,
that firms have competent, trained
staff who treat consumers fairly and
that consumers get appropriate
redressif things gowrong. We
supervise firms to make sure

they are meeting their regulatory
reguirements and take actionto
enforce ourrules. We also protect
consumers by tackling crimingat
activity and driving up publiic
awareness about scams.

Inour Business Plan 2016/17, we
included three priority themes that
principally fell within this objective —
pensions, advice and the treatment
of existing customers

Taking action

Fair treatment of mortgage
customers in payment shortfall

We looked at how mortgage firms
calculate contractual monthly
instalments (CMIs) for customers
with payment shortfalls, to see
whether they meet our rules and how
customers have been affected We
foundthat some firms automatically
included customers' payment
sheortfzall balances and/or arrears
balanceswithintheir CMl czlculations
without considering customers’

circumstances and agreeing it with
them. We found that approximately
750,000 customers were likely to
have been affected

This practice lacks transparency,
canieadto harmandisikelytobe
abreachof currules. It cantake
acustomerliongerto repay their
payment shortfall, mayleadto
inappropriate fees being charged
and the customer unknowingly
overpaying towards their
outstanding mortgage balance.

Toresolve the situation
proportionately, practically,

fairly and swiftly, we developed a
remediation framework with input
fromanindustry working group We
consulted onthe framework, which
provides one method that irms can
usewhen providing remedy to, and
communicating with, their affected
customers. We expectfirmsto
determine their own approach

and deliver fair outcomestoall
affectedcustomers.

Principals and their appointed
representativesinthe general
insurance sector

UK general nsurers use avariety of
different distributors to sell products
tocustomers, including over 20,000
‘appointed representatives (ARs).
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Firms have now paid
more than

£26.9bn

inredress to
affected PPi
consumers
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ARs are firms or personswho
conduct regulated activities and
actas anagent for afirmwe directly
authorise. For example, they may
sellinsurance and warranties for
therr own products, such aswhite
goods and halidays, to millions of
consurmers each year

There are relatively few rules
governing ARs; the principal firm
that appointed themis responsible
fortheir oversight and control. We
have found widespread problems in
theway ARs operate We carrnied out
athematic review of principals and
their ARs and published thefindings
inJuly 2016.

Our review found that many
principals were not supervising their
ARs effectively. As aresult, many
ARs had poor sales processes and
practices, leading to consumer
harm and mis-selling. We tock early

- actionwhere ourrules had been

breached. Thisincluded preventing
some firms from taking on new

ARs, stopping sales activity and
getting the principals to conduct
past business reviews to identify
affected customers. We have
informed all relevant principal firms
of our expectations and are warking
with them to address the specific
issues we have identified We are
also working with firms who were not
includedinour review to ensure they
understand and comply with their
responsibilities.

Implementing the Lifetime ISA

Theintroduction of the Lifetime [SA
(LISA)was announced inthe March
2016 Budget, and it was available tc
investorsfrom 6 April 2017 1ts aim
isto help adults under 40to save
for a deposit for a first home or for
retirement. Cur rules regulating
the promotion and distribution of
the LISA came intoforce on b April
2017 We expecttheserulestohelp
investors make informed decisions
and put theminaposition to drive
effective competitioninthe market
for this new product

Delivering redress

Payment protectioninsurance (PPI}

Firms’ mis-selling of PPl has been
the biggest issue of financial mis-
selling nrecent years and has
damaged public trustin financial
institutions Firms have now paid
more than £26 9bn inredress to
affected consumers. However, our
research foundthat the perceived
open-ended timescale for making
complaints does not incentivise
consumers to consider whetherthey
wanttoact

Following consultation, in March
2017 we announced a deadline of

29 August 2018 for PPl complaints,
together with an FCA-led consumer
communications campaign to
encourage consumers to decide
whether to act. We have also made
rules and guidance on how firms
should handle PPt complaints inlight
of the Supreme Court's judgment

in Plevinv Paragon Personal Finance
Limited. I\nthat case, the courtruled
that the firm's failure to inform

the customerabout thelarge
commission payable fromtheir PP
premium made the relationship
unfair under s140A of the Consumer
Credit Act. Qur package should bring
the PPlissue tc anorderly conclusion
and bring finality and certainty for
consumers and firms.

An application for judicial review

of our decision to implement a PPI
deadline and ourrules and guidance
onhandling PPl complaintsin light
of the Supreme Court judgment

in Plevinhas beenmade Wewilibe
defending that appiication.

Facilitating fair redress

Itisfirstand foremost afirm’'s
responsibility to treat customers
fairly and provide appropriate
redress when things gowrong. When
thishappens, we canwork with

firms to help them setup voluntary
redress schemes.
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InNovember 2016, a debt purchase
and coltection firm, Motormile
Finance UK Limited, entered into an
agreement with us to provide redress
to over half a million customers

for due diligence failings whichled
tounfair customer contracts. It

also agreed towrite off £414m of
debt thatit was unable to show was
correct and properly due. We were
first alertedto this case by a high
number of customer complants to
cur Contact Centre. inthis case, asin
marny others, our subsequent review
resulted inthe firm changingits
processes, systems and controls to
address the problems we identified.

Similarty,in January 2017, HSBC
voluntarily agreed to set up a redress
scheme for customers who had paid
unreasonable debt collectionfees
charged by HFC Bank Ltd and John
Lewis Financial Services Ltd, both of
which are now part of HSBC Bank Ltd.
Our review into the initial aliegations
cf unreasonable chargesidentified
that around 6,700 customers were
potentially entitled to redress.

Unfair treatment of business
customers

in 2014, we appointed a ‘skilled
person'toreview Royal Bank of
Scotland's {RBS's) treatment of SME
customers transferred to its Global
Restructuring Group {GRG) between
2008 and 2013 . The skilled person’s
report considered the treatment

of small business customers in
fimancial difficulty and addressed the
allegations of pcor practice inthe
way such firms were treated by RBS
GRG, as setcutinthe report by Dr
Lawrence Tomlinson and referenced
in Sir Andrew Large's report

In November, we announcedthe
summary findings of the skilled
person's report. The commercial
lending activities carried out by GRG
and adaressed by RBS's proposals
are largely urrequlated; therefore,
our powers are limited inthis area.
We have carefully considered the
skilled person's report and other
additional material, and conducted
further work.

Financial Conduct Authority

Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

RBS has put into place a complaints
review process which should provide
certain SME customers with aroute
to make a formal complaint, should
theywishto do so. Additicnally, RBS
has agreedto provide automatic
refunds for complex fees to some
SME customers. in particular,

we noted and welcomed the
invelvement of anindependent third
party to provide oversight of the
complaints review process.

Enforcement

We will take the necessaryaction
to enforce consumer protection,
including in refationto unauthorised
investment businesses such as
collective investment schemes,
investment andinsurance frauds,
deposit taking and boiler rocoms. .

We have a dedicated teamwho
review all reports of unautherised
activity against a set of measures to
identify the most serious matters
that posethe greatestriskto
consumers. Where we decide action
isappropriate, we use a variety of
methods andinvestigative tools to
stop the activity and prevent further
consumer harm. These tocls range
from publishing warnings about
unauthorised firms and individuals,
disrupting firms in a range of ways,
taking down websites and pursuing
criminal or civil action against
companies and individuals. We
issued atotal of 285 consumer alerts
in 2016/17 and published two actions
(onecriminal and one civil) related
tolarge-scale investigations into
unauthorised activity.

Raisingawareness

Helping firms prepare for the
impact ofaninterestrateriseon
financially vulnerable customers

We published the results of our
thematic review of mortgage
lenders’ strategies to mitigate the
impact of aninterest raterse on
financrally vuinerable customers

Chapter3
Protecting consumers

We found that most firms had
considered what characteristics may
make a customer more vulnerable to
ariseininterest rates and analysed
the number of customers who might
be affected.

However, firms were at different
stagesin developing strategies
totreat customers fairly when
interestrates rise, with few firms
able toimplement strategies if this
happened inthe near future.

We started thisreview in early 2016,
atatimewhenaninterestraterise
was generaily expected Sincethen, -
interestrates have been cut and we
recognise that thismaynotseema
high pricrity. However, we decided
tosharetheresults of ourreviewto
assist firms and customers to prepare
forwheninterestratesdorise

Generalinsurance renewals

The FCA, consumer grouns and some
industry representatives hadlong-
standing concerns about the lack of
competition and low levels of customer
switching in general Insurance.

In 2014, we ran alarge-scale
randomised trial with over 300,000
home and motor insurance
customers to find out which prompts
led them to make more active
choices atrenewal. We subsequently
introduced new rules and guidance
for generalinsurance renewals. Our
new rules require general insurance
firmsto:

- discloselast year's premiumateach
renewal

» include wording to encourage
consumers to check their cover and
shop around for the best deal at
eachrenewal

- identify consumerswho have
renewed with them four consecutive
times, and give them an additional
standard message encouraging
themto shop around
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In September 2016,
UK consumers owed

- £188.7bn

of consumer
creditiending
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The am of these requirements,
which came into effecton 1

April 2017, is to improve levels of
consumer engagement ininsurance
renewals, as well as the way that
firms treat existing consumers at
renewal. These new rules will make
price increases atrenewal more
transparent and we expectthisto
prompt mare consumers to shop
aroundto get abetterdeal.

Improving how firms deal with
customers inearly arrears

In September 2016, UK consumers
owed £188.7 billicn of consumer
creditlending. 61% of peopleinthe
UKhave atleast one consumer credit
product, and 26% of them have an
outstanding debton it.

We published the results of cur
thematic review into how firms
treat customersinearlyarrearsfor
unsecuredlending, whichincludes
credit cards, perscnalloans and
point-of-sale finance

We found that not all customers who
pay late have repayment difficuities.
However, most firms missed early
opportunities toidentify those

who were showing signs of financial
difficulty and offer appropriate help.

The repayment options firms
offeredto customers varied quite
significantly. Afirm's culture clearly
influenced their approachto, and
treatment of, customersinarrears
difficulties

We have giveneach firm specific
feedback about the good and poor
practices we found. We may take
further requlatory action, depending
onthe seriousness of the issues and
the firms' responses te our findings.

Weexpectaltfirms involvedin
collecting consumer credit debts to
consider theirapproach o arrears in
light of our findings

High-cost credit and overdrafts

Since taking over the regulation of
consumer credit in April 2014, we have
focused on the products we believe
posethe biggest risk to consumer
pretection. In November 2016,

we published a call for input to get
evidence and views for our work on
high-cost credit, including a review of
the paydayiocan price cap which was
introducedin January 2015

The call for input covered:

high-cost credit products, including
home-collected credit, some rent-
to-own, catalogue credit, pawn-
broking, guaranterandlogbook
loans

overdrafts

- thehigh-cost short-termcredit
(paydayloan) price cap

+ repeat and multiple high-cost shert-
term credit borrowing

Weplantoreport onthefindings of our
callfor inputinthe summer of 2017,

in line with our approach to high-cost
credit, we glsolook at theimpact for
consumers when debt management
firms wind-up. We actively contact
those affected and point them to
free sources of debt advice.

Packaged bank accounts

Followingthe newruleswe
intrcduced on packaged bank
accounts (PBA)in 2013, we
undertook athematic review to see
how well they were working and we
published cour findings in October
2016. While our findings suggest
therules have raised standards,
they also show firms have more

to do toensure they consistently
check customers'eligibility for the
insurancesinaPBA We also found
firms needed toimprove how they
handied complaints about PBAs
We have given specific feedback

to all the firmsin our review, which
includes the actions we expect them
to take to address the weaknesses
we identified.
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Folowing the publication of the
report, we have reviewed a further
sample of more recent PBA
complaints to test the extent to
which firms have raised standards
since our first review Individual
feedback willbe provided to each of
thefirmsinthe sample

Protecting consumers by
strengtheningthe UK's
financial system

Ring-fencing was one of several
important reforms the Government
broughtinto strengthen the financial
system following the financial crisis
thatbeganin 2007

Ring-fencingrulesrequire UK banks
with a three-year average of more
than £25 billion 'core deposits'to
rmg-fence’ orlegally separate therr
essential retail banking services
from the rest of their banking group.
Essential services are the core
services retall banks offer: accepting
deposits, facilities for withdrawing
moneay or making payments froman
account and overdraft facilities:

Working with the lead regulator

for ring-fencing, the Prudential
Regulation Authority (PRA), our role
is to monitor and manage potentially
negative impacts onconsumers,
market integrity and competition.
During 2016/17, we worked with
firms torefine and finalise their plans
forring-fencing, as they must be
implementedby 1 January 2019

Financial Conduct Authority

Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

Contractsfor Difference

Retall Contracts for Difference
(CFDs) are complex, leveraged
derivative financial instruments that
investment firms generally offer to
retail clients through online trading
platforms.

inthe pastsix years, our supervisory
work and themat:¢ reviews of

CFD firms have found increasing
instances of poor conduct and

risks of consumer detriment

across the sector Ouranalysis of a
representative sample of CFD client
accounts found that these products
were increasingly being sold to

retall clients and that 82% of clients
lost money on these products

As aresult, in 2016 we published

a consultation paper proposing

a package of policy measures io
address theserisks

In parallel, we have continued our
supervisary approach loocking at
therisks to consumers presented

by these products. Our focus has
included boththerisk toretall
customers trading CFDs onanon-
advised basis, where firfms may not
have improved the appropriateness
teststheyarerequired to apply before
takingon new clients, and the risks
arisingwhere CFDs are traded via
anintermediary onanadviscry or
discretionary basis onacustomer's
behalf. Other national regulators have
alsobeenlooking at these products.

Chapter 3
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Ring-fencing rules
require UK banks with
athree-year average

of more than £25 billion
‘core deposits’ to
‘ring-fence’ their
essentiat retail banking
services from therest of
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Qur Business Plan commitments — Pensions

Pensions policy and legislation have seen major
changes inrecent years, and was therefore a priority
therne for us in 2016/17. Recent changes to the
pensions sector have included the introduction and
staging of auto-enrolment into workplace pensions and
the introduction of the pension freedoms in April 2015,

Growing numbers of consumers have to make
irreversible decisions that will affect their long-term
financial wellbeing. While the market is changing, our
aims remain consistent. We want consumers to have
access to fair products and services which deliver
what they promise and to have confidence that firms
will treat them fairly and fix problems promptly. We

also want to encourage competition across the sector.

Theregulation of pension schemes is divided between
the FCA and The Pensions Regulator. The FCAis
responsibte for the conduct of firms that provide
contract-based pensions, including stakeholder
pensions, individual personal pensions and workplace
personal pensions such as group personal pensions.
We also regulate advice on pensions when given

to individuals.

Changes to pension rules

In January 2016, the Treasury decided that early exit
charges on some pension policies were creating
abarrier to the over 555 using the new pension
freedoms. Parliament gave us the power and adutyto
cap early exit charges to reduce this risk. in November
2016 we finalised rules which mean that:

*

early exit charges arecapped at 1% of the value

of members' contract-based personal pensions,
including workplace personal pensions begunbefore
31 March 2017

.

early exit charges cannotbe increasedto 1%iftheyare
currently lower than this

» firms cannot apply any early exit charge to personal
pensicon contracts begun on or after 31 March 2017

InOctober 2016 the Government announced thatit
will not continue with pians to aliow peopte to sell their
annuity incomes without current taxrestrictions As

a result, we withdrew our consuitation onrules fora
secondary annuity market.

increasing competition andinnovation

This year, we launched our Retirement Qutcomes
Review to assess the impact of the pension reforms on
competitionin the retirement incorne market.

The review locks at consumers' responses tothe
wider range of products and options now available

to them, and what affects the choices they make
Additicnally, we are examining how firms have adapted
to pensionrefcrms, what business models and
products are emerging and the impact on competition
in this market. We plan to publish the interim report

in summer 2017, setting out our findings and inviting
views on potentialinterventions.

Better value-for-money products and services
for consumers

Throughout 2016/17, we have been testing the
effectiveness of different variations to firms' 'wake-
up packs' via randomised control trials. Pension
providers send these packs to customers approaching
retirement to encourage themto take action ontheir
pension options.

To help encourage consumers to shop around when
buying an annuity, we have consuited enrequiring
annuity providers to provide consumers with an
information prempt This prompt will show the
difference between the provider’s annuity quote and
the highest guote available onthe market. We based
this requirement on behavioural testing which showed
this prompt encouraged consumers to shop around
and, if offered a better deal, switch provider

InDecember 2016, the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP) and FCA published a joint review
of industry progress in remedying poor value
workplace pension schemes. Overall, it found that
pension providers had made significant progress
inimplementing the recommendations of the
Independent Project Board (IFB)

As aresult, over one million workplace pensions
customerseither have, or sconwillhave, their charges
reduced to 1% orless. We continue to follow up the
smali number of providers which, at the time of cur
assessment, had not yet done enoughto meet the IPB
recommendations.
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The review was broadly supportive of the
effectiveness of independent governance
committees (IGCs) inimplementing the IP8's
recommendations. As such, we have decided to
defer the full IGC review to allow us to focus on other
priorities within our 2017/18 Business Plan

Information about pensions guidance

Qurrules state that firms communicating with

retiring customers about their options {'non-advised'
custormers) should tell them about the availabibity of
the pensions guidance service, Pension Wise InJuly
2016 we completed cur review into firms’ compliance
withthese rules. We found that most of the 20 pension
providersinour sample were, onthe whole, meeting
the requirements around signposting customers to
pensicns’ guidance

However, we dididentify a number of areas where
firms couid improve. We have encouraged all firms with
relevant non-advised sales processes iolook at the
action they should take based on our review's findings.

Under section 3330 of FSMA we must discharge our
general pensions guidance functions with aview to
securing an appropriate degree of protection for
recimients of pensions guidance from designated
guidance providers. As aresult, we have made minor
changes to the standards for retirement guidance
providers toreflect how the Pension Wise service

has changed (i.e. toreflectthe change in oversight of
the service from the Treasury to the DWP}and how
consumers wanting to access their pension savings
are usingit (i.e. changing the wording so that a Pension
Wise session cancover more thanone appointment
and that only 'relevant’ informat:on should be included
inthe record fromthat session),

Informationabout annuities for non-advised customers

We carried out a thematic review of non-advised
annuities sales practices. Based on our sample, we
found no evidence of an industry-wide or systemic
failure to give customers enough information about
enhanced annuities which resulted in actual loss

However, there was evidence that a smallnumber of
firms may not have given their customers enough
information to understand their options, the benefits
of buying an enhanced annuity and their right to buy
one on the open market. We have asked these firms to
undertake a past business review of all relevant non-
advised sales from July 2008 to the present time

Reducing harmto consumers from scams

We undertake a range of co-ordinated activities to
deal with pension-related scams. Specialist teams
have been set up to monutor, quantify and tackle cases
of systemic pension mis-selling and fraud involving
firms we regutate, and those unreguiated firms that
introduce business to them.

We work with firms to ensure they take the necessary
steps to protect consumers, and coiltaborate with
other agencies totackle scams. Over the past year, we
have issued alerts to industry warming of the dangers
of workingwith unregulated introducer firms, setting
out our expectations for firms advising on pension
transfers, and to seif invested personal pension (SIPP}
operators warning of the risks they face from evolving
pension scams.

We have continued our ScamSmart campaign over
the past year and give more detait on this campaignin
chapter 4 under 'Financial crime and AML

Measures ofsutmss against 2 2016!1? msPlan

Thef lnancla{Ombudsman Serwce experianc,eﬂnn
upward trendin thenumber of complaints itreceived
relatingm personal pensians between; 2009710 and
2016/17 (38% increasel. Complaintsabayt personal
pensions in 2016/} increased bymm;:afedm
ZﬂiSfIﬁand tcnaﬂeﬁzhsﬁ o

we acknowxedgematmnmlamts data_ srenn _1
imperfect indicator of how the frnanm farkets are

performing; but’ they help us assess the scale of issues

inthe nndustry and yﬂgntifyemergmg trends

Our Fmanctai Lwessurvey mmuamsthat 41,% afux

Tmoderatelyféémnpht&!ysat' fied with ﬂ\ékpensim

provider, or with the prowﬁarofthapensmn they took
out most récently If they have multiple DC| pensions:

A similar progortion (43%) of consumers also ‘
moderately to carnpietely trust their Current provider.

- Consumers aged 45and over reported thehighest

levels of satnsfaction and trust
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Qur Business Plan commitments — Advice

Changing consumer needs and pension reforms mean ontheir business models. We planto use the experience

consumers have to take more responsibility for their ofindividualfirms to publish resources tohelp all firms

financial future. Their choices are also more complex developingautomated models

and varied —making affordable, professional advice

andguidance servicesincreasingly important. So our We supported the Financial Advice Working Group to

work has concentrated on ensuringthat thereisa provide technical support onimptementing the FAMR

well-functioning market for advice and guidance for recommendations. The Working Groupincludes a

consumers, with clear and transparent costs. selection of consumer and industry experts fromthe
FAMR Expert Advisory Panel, the Financial Services

Suitable, affordable and accessible advice : Consumer Panel, the FCA Smaller Business Practitioner

Paneland the FCA Practitioner Panel’ One of the
group's aims is to help employers to help their stafflook
after their inancialhealth and improve 'rules of thumb’
and nudges to increase consumer engagement with
their financial choices. :

The Treasury and FCAlaunched the Financial Advice
Market Review (FAMR) in 2015 to address concerns
that the financial advice market in the UK was not
working well for consumers.

Ourwork has focused on encouraging a market that
delivers affordable and accessible financial advice and
guidance to all consumers at every stage of their lives.
We have worked with firms and trade bodies on howwe
could best supportthem, improve the advice market
and make the regulatory framework clearer. We have:

published information to help firms understandhowto
use the existing flexibility in our adviser-chargingrules

« amended our rules for adviser-chargingin firms where
all relevant services are providedin-house

consulted onguidance to address four of the FAMR
recommendations - streamlined advice, fact-find
information, the regulated advice ‘perimeter’ (actvities
where FCA regulation and powers apply) and the
employers’ and trustees' factsheet

There is more information on the implementation of
the FAMR recommendationsinthe jointreportthat we
published with the Treasury on 6 April 2017.

Assessing suitability review

Over the past year, we have assessed 1,142 individual
pieces of advice from 656 firms against our suitability
anddisclosure requirements. We issued feedback letters
te alifirms in the review with aur findings from their
specific files. We found these firms gave suitable advice
in 93% of cases These are positive results We believe
they are aresult of the successful adoption of the Retail
Distribution Review by advisers and reinforced by our
previous supervisory and enforcement activities.

Support to help firms provide appropriate advice

This year we set up an Advice Unit to provide feedback
to firms that are developing automated models to give
consumers lower-cost advice. We accepted 18 firmsinto
the Unit and are providing individual regulatory feedback
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Our Business Plan commitments - Treatment of existing customers

Qver the pastyear, our work tadeliver better outcomes for
existing customershasfocused onthe nformationthat
firms give their customers at renewal and onimproving
pricing transparency. We alsowant toensurethat thereis
greater choice and availability of products, and that barriers to
consumers’ switching or exiting products are removed.

Making pricing more transparent

Our cash savings market study found that savings
accounts opened years ago pay lower interest than those
opened more recently. Despite this, a significant number
of consumers do not move theirmoneyto accounts that
might pay more interest —evenwith the same provider
Following these findings, we have implemented rules that:

+ reguire providers to give clearer and more targeted
productinformationto make it easier forconsumersto
shop around

- make the switching process guicker by making it easierto
switchto another product within the same firm

We have proposed remedies infour main areas and trialled
the 'sunfight remedy’ We asked firms totellus thefowest
possibleratethat consumers could earn across all of their
easy access savings accounts and easy access cash 1SAs. We
then published thisinformaticntoraise awareness of firms’
strategies towards theirlongstanding consumers, and to
allow a comparison between open and closed accounts.

Encouraging choice, improving availability

The Competition and Markets Authority (CMA) made
recommendations toincrease competitioninretail banking
Following theirreport, we deveioped measures toimprove
the inforrmation these firms give about service quality, how
consumers can take actionand overdraft measures We
published our response to the CMA's final report and have
started actioninanumber of areas:

+ Promptingincreased customerengagement. We are
researching which prompts are mostlikely toincrease
consumer awareness and understanding of using
accounts, both forindividual consumers and smaliand
medium-sized enterprises (SMEs),

Improved transparency for overdraft users. We are
researching, testing andimplementing measures to
INcrease consumers engagement with their overdraft
use andcharges We also published work on overdrafts
thatwent beyond the CMA's recommendations (see
‘High-cost credit and overdrafts’ earlier in this chapter)

« Promotinginnovation Other CMArecommendations
included actingas an observer mthe steering
group tasked with establishing the openapplication
programming interface (API) standard for banking. We
will use our roleinthe groupto encourage solutions for a
broader set of accounts than just current accounts.

» Improving service. We are exploring what information
banks should publish to enable consumersto assess
differences inthe quality of service they provide We
have set up an expert group toadvise us on additional
information that couldhelp consumers.

We willwork closely with the CMA onthese meastires and
recommendations. We are also considering the competition
and conduct implications of firms' business models for
currentaccounts and other retailbanking products

We published final guidance that sets out our expectationson
what life insurance firms should doto treat their closed-book
customers fairty. We want to ensure that firms donot give
closed-book customers less attention than new customers,
and keep themwellinformed about products theyare
invested in, including on performance and charges

This guidance means that firms should identify what
‘treating customers fairly' means for them, the outcomes
far their customers they believe are fair and, where they
identify poor outcomes, take steps to address them

Musuresqumess agaimtzomn? BusinessPlan
OurFmanma!LwesSuweyzm?gavethefoﬂoMngresuits »

an customers swntchmg ﬁnancial pnoduct and adwsers

- BS%JUKaﬂuitsw&hanaccountforday-tmdaybankmg
WaldtheSame account forover three years. Of these
@JSWB Mhave neverswmedaccountbecm

msaidﬂwy were happywnth theirexisting provtder

. Zl%haﬁnwerconsndered swutcmwg

. SZ%MUKadtﬂtswhohad switched pmmder or opened a
newaccountwiththeir existing provider inthe last three
years did sobecause of a financial incentive, 21%did so on
the recommendation of afriend or colleague and 22% to -
get abetterinterest rate

» ofthase thathadswitched account (mdudangwth their

" existing prmideri oropenedanaccount forthe first time,
87% said the processwas easy
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Chapter 4
Protecting and enhancing the integrity
of the UK financial system

Our aimis to ensure that the UK has a healthy and successful financial
system, where financial markets are fair, efficient and transparent,
firms can thrive and consumers have trustin openand transparent
markets. Markets need to have resilient infrastructure and appropriate
access to meet the needs of their consumers, and corporate and

other wholesale users.

32

The focus of our work is on ensuring
we have the rightrules and policies in
nlace. We identify any necessary need
for structural changes and deliver
themina variety of ways. These
include improving standards across
financial markets, making sure market
participants play by therules and
taking actionwhenthey do not. These
are some of the main areas of work we
have undertakeninthe past yearto
enhance market integrity.

Takingaction

Protectingallinvestorsin
illiquid assets

Following the UK's votein June 2016
toleave the EU, demand by investors
torealise their assetsinproperty
funds exceeded many funds’ ability
tosetithem. As aresult, a number of
property funds had to temporarily
suspend trading and we closely
supervised the affected funds and
life insurers invested inthem during
this time. Since the financial crash of
2007, there has beeninternaticnal
scrutiny of how the actions of
investment funds and fund investors
could affect the stability of financial
systems. The liquidity of fundsis an
integral part of this and investment
inilliguid assets is agrowing
proportion of the investments held

by institutional investors such as
pension funds

We decideditwas timely to review
our regulatory approach toopen-
ended funds that investinilliquid
assets like property. We looked
atfirms across the value chain,
including depositaries, authorised
corporate directors, platforms,
wealth managers and independent
financial advisers. We wanted tc
find out if firms had treated all their
customers fairly, understand the
impact on market integrity when
firms decided to suspend funds or
apply fair value price adjustments
and examine the quality of
communications made by firms
during this period.

InFebruary 2017 we published a
discussion paper to find out more
about the problems in open-ended
funds investing in iiliquid assets, ask
ifthe current rules address them
andiffurther intervention fromus
is needed We will analyse feedback
to this paper and the findings of
our supervisory work and publish a
response Iate:r in2017.
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Ensuring providers act with
integrity

Animportant part of ourworkis
ensuring that only ‘fitand proper
persons' are allowed toundertake
regulated activity Where we have
evidence that ndviduals do not meet
our rules, we remove them from
the market—bothtc ensure market
integrity and te protect consumers
We can also take stronger
enforcement action, including
imposing financial penalties.

Forexample, since 2013, retall
investment advisers have been
required tohold a Statement of
Professional Standards {SPS) and
achieve the relevant professional
gualifications In September 2016,
webannedElizabeth Parry from
undertaking any requlated activity
and fined her £109,400 for sending
us a fake SPS andlying repeatedly to
us about being qualfiedtoactasa
retailinvestment adviser.

Financial Conduct Authority Chapter 4

AnnualReportandg Accounts 2016/17 Protecting and enhancing the
integrity of the UK financial
system

Taking action against market abuse

We take market abuse extremely
seriously and have powers to
undertake prosecutions whenwe
find evidence ofit.

InJanuary 2017, we brought a
successful prosecution against
Manjest Mohal, a former employee
of Legicaplc, and his neighbour
Reshim Birk for insider dealing. The
court also made a confiscation order
of nearly £163,000 against Mr Birk
While employed at Logica, Mr Mohal
gave insider information about a
takeover of the company to Mr Birk,
who traded on the basis of that
information and made over £100,000
inprofits.

Tesco

In August 2014, Tesco plc published
atrading update which gave a false
impression about 11s expected
half-year profits. In September it
announced it had overstated the
amoeunt This meant that those
who bought Tescosharesand
bonds between the dates of those
announcements paid a higher price
thanthey should have.
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We estimate Tescoplc
wili pay around 10,000
retail and institutional
investors approximately
£85munder theredress
scheme.

I
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inMarch 2017, in parallel with

action taken against Tesco by the
Serious Fraud Office, we announced
that Tesco had agreed to pay
compensation toinvestors who

had sufferedloss from Tesco's
anncuncement. We estimate Tesco
plc will pay around 10,000 retaitand
institutional investors approximately
£85munder the redress scheme,
plusinterest. Thisis the first time we
have used our powers under FSMA
torequire alisted company to pay
compensation for market abuse.

Investigation intoinsider dealing

Insider dealing can seriously damage
theintegrity of markets. in 2016,
after an eight-year investigation
begun by cur predecessor the FSA,
our evidence secured convictions
against two people for insider
dealing Thiswas one of our (argest
and most complexinsider dealing
investigations to date.

Two close friends (Mr Dodgsonand
Mr Hind) agreed to deal secretly,
sometimes onthe basis of inside
information. Mr Dedgson sourced
inside information from within

the investment banks at which he
worked, elther through workingon
transactions himself or through
finding cutwhathis colleagues were
working on He passed onthisinside
information to Mr Hind who then
undertook secret dealing for the
benefit of Mr Dodgson and himself.

They putinplace elaborate
strategies toprevent the
authorities fromuncovering

their activities. These included

the use of unregistered mobile
phones, encoded and encrypted
records, safety deposit boxes and
transferring benefits using cash and
paymentsinkind.

Inmany other instances of trading
undertaken by Mr Hind during the
indictment period, Mr Dodgson

or his employer was advising or
connected with the company traded
orwith a company which was party to
arelevant corporate transaction.

The offending was highly
sophisticated and took place over
several years. The investigation,
conductedin partnership with

the National Crime Agency, was
demanding and time-consuming.
investigators, forensic accountants,
iawyers, markets experts,
intelligence analysts and digital

-forensic specialists pooled thelr

skills to unravel the conspiracy. They
did so through painstaking

analysis of trading, financial and
communications data, surveillance,
documentary evidence fromthe
investment banks and the material
seized during searches under warrant.

Mr Dodgson and Mr Hind were
sentenced to fourand a half and
three and a halfyears imprisonment,
respectivetly.

Raising awareness and
increasing transparency

Crowdfunding

Crowdfundingis away inwhich
individuzls and organisations,
including business start-ups raise
money online to finance or re-finance
their projects and businesses.

Itis relatively new but has grown
significantly inrecent years.

As part of our post-implementation
review of our crowdfunding rules,
we published a call forinput on
crowdfunding platforms operated
by FCA-authorised firms. We
wanted te better understandrecent
developments inthe loan-based
crowdfunding market which currently
pose somerisks to our objectives,
including regutatory arbitrage and
theriskthatinvestors donot fully
understand the products offered.

Weplantoconsult onchangesto
ourrules toensure theregulatory
framework for crowdfunding remains
proportionate while providing
adequate invester protectionand
allowing for innovation and growthin
the market.
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Improving the UK equity initial
public offering (IPO} process

We published a consultation paper
inMarch 2017 which proposes a
package of policy measures to
improve the range and quality of
information available to investors
during the IPO process This included
aseries of rulestoensurethata
prospectus or registration document
is published and providers of
‘unconnectedresearch’ have access
totheissuer's management before
any connectedresearchis released.
The measures alsoincluded new
guidance to clarify our expectations
onanalysts’interactions with the
issuer's management and their
corporate finance adviserswhenan
IPO mandate and abank's syndicate
positioning s considered We will take
these discussions forward and make
appropriaterule changes during 2017

Addressing concerns around
dark pools -

‘Dark pools’ are systems for
transacting shares without 'pre-
trade transparency’ Put simply,
‘pre-trade transparency’is the
reguirement toshowafirm's
intention to execute atransaction,
including the price and volume.

Dark pools inthe UK have scme key
differences from other national
markets, including their approach to
best execution obligations. UK dark
pools can operate as either trading
venues or internal matching systems
run by investment firms.

There has hean public scrutiny of
dark pools, inciuding concerns about
price transparency, preferential
treatment of some ¢lients and
unfair advantages for more
technolegically advanced dark pool
users. We undertook a thematic
review of dark pools to look into
these issues. Our review found that
dark pooiclients welcomed the
additional liquidity and lower risk of

information leaks that dark pools
offer. We also found that significant
improvements had beenmade by
dark pool operators inthe quality
and accuracy of their promotionat
materials and management of
conflicts of interests. We did,
however, find that some areas
could be improved, including more
effective monitoring of activityin
dark pools with particular focus on
operational integrity, best execution
and screening for unwanted trading
activity, including market abuse.

Supporting resilient
market infrastructure

Oursupervision seeks toensure that
market infrastructureis resilient to
external effects caused by events
such as market volatility and sharp
increases in trading volumes.
Despite periods of significant market
volatility during 2016, we saw no
loss of trading days to operational
incidentsin major market
infrastructure.

InMay 2014, UK financial

authorities launched CBEST, a
testing framework to help firms,
infrastructure providers and
regutators understand the types of
cyber attack that could undermine
the UK's financial stability The FCA
have continued CBEST assessments
fortrading venues and major trading
firms and extended our cyber
resillence work to awider group

of firms.

system
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Figure 4.3: Number of whistleblowing cases
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Whistleblowing

Under the Public interest Disclosure
ACt 1998 (PIDA), we have a statutory
framework to protect workers

from harm if they blow the whistle
ontheir employer. Our approach
goes beyond PiDA by providing the
same level of confidentiality and
anonymity to anyonewho wants to
make disclosures to us where we are
required to treat their information
confidentially. In 2016/17 the

split between PIDA/non-PIDA
disclosures was 73%/27%.

Throughout 2016/17, we have
developed our approach to
whistieblowing further We have:

successfullyimplemented a

new case management system
toimprove ourhandling of
whistleblowing cases and to provide
uswithbetter analytics

worked with outside organisations,
including support groups and
charities who spoke at an nternai
whistleblowing eventin May 2016

engaged with other bodieswhich
canformally accept whistleblowing
disclosures to benchmark our own
approach towhistleblowing

+ reinforced staff training to
recognise whenan offer of
information fromanindividualis, in
fact, whistleblowing andimproved
our approachtointerviewing
whistleblowers

Overall, we have increased
resources to offer animproved levef
of service and continually improve
our response to the whistleblowers
who contact us

In2016/17 we managed

900 Intelligence cases from
whistleblowers (figure 4 1) We
sharedinformation with external
bodies. including the National Crime
Agency,police forces, HM Revenue &
Customs, and other UK and overseas
regulators in over 100 cases

The intelligence we received from
whistleblowers has helped us to:

- initiate enforcement investigations

« trigger FSMA section 166 skilled
persons reviews of firms

» conductvisitstofirms

= prepare firm assessments, including
onmoney laundering
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Figure 4.2: Classifications issued by recipients of whistleblowing intelligence in 2016/17
Classification 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15
Inteligence directly contributed to FCA 7 13 19
enforcement activity or the protection of :
consumers through other intervention .
Inteligence wasof significant valuetothe FCA . 159 - 235
and contributed to the discharge of its functions : c
Intelligence was, or may be, of value to the FCA 259 242 521
butis not currently actionable or does not meet
current regulatory risk thresholds
intelligence was of little value and is unlikely to 48 39 100
assist the FCA in the discharge of its functions
Not yet assessed 427% 631 465
Total 800 1,014 1,340

*We assess all whistleblowing aisclosures to determine ifrequlatery actionis necessary Disclosures canrequire follow-up work by multiple stakeholders across
the FCA We expecttosee anincreasein the number of high value whistleblowing cases as we conclude and make a final assessrment on these cases

Note thedatafor 2015/16 and 2014/ 15 reflects how those figures werereported:n previcus annualreperts The numbershave now changed significantly, in
particular forthe number of cases notyet assessed butthe table above shows how quickly we assess cases year onyear

- undertake IN-depth reviews within
firms

= carryoutthematic reviews

We do not have atarget for the
numbers of whistleblowing cases we
should receive. Quraimis tc ensure
that these who prefer to repert to
anindependent body know about
ourrole and that, if they take the
oftendifficult step of reporting on
aprevious or current employer, we
will treat them and their information
sensitively and professionally

We have seenadecline inthe number
of whistleblowing cases forthe
second yearinarow We believe that
whistleblowers are more aware of the
reporting mechanisms in their firms,
and soarereporting internally first.

Figure 4.3: Whistleblowing disclosures in 2016/17 by sector

Sector

Asset Management
Building Socreties
Commercial Insurance
Consurmer Credit

E Money

Financial Advisers
Frendly Sccieties
Investment Banking
Markets

Mortgage Intermediary
Mutuals & Credit Urions
Other/Not stated
Payments Services
Retal Banking

Retai Insurance

SIPP

Unauthonsed Business

Count
24

32
155

118
71
ad
29
il

164

60
100

42
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Our aimis to ensure that wholesale markets are clean,
effective and competitive, and that consumers can
trust them to be open and transparent.

As wholesale markets continue to evolve with new
technology and practices, we must ensure our rules
proscribing and prehibiting abusive behaviour remain
effective and up to date.

Market abuse

We started applying the new EU Market Abuse
Regulation (MAR), which came into effect on 3 July
2016. MAR strengthens the previous UK market abuse
framewark by extending it to cover awider set of
markets, platforms and behaviours

it also requires firms and trading venues toreport
suspicious orders as wellas transactions and
attempted market abuse. As aresult. we have
replaced Suspicicus Transaction Reports (STRs) with
Suspicious Transaction and Order Reports (STORs).
Although we previously encouraged firms toreport
potentially abusive orders, including orders that —had
theybeentransacted —would have led to market
abuse, MAR now makes this a requirement.

We worked closely with the industry to prepare for the
significant changes of this new reguiationto ensure
they were ready for the new regime. Theresponse has
been positive ~wereceived 1,898 STORs inthe last six
months of 2016, compared to 1,110 STRsin H1 2016.
Within these figures, we saw anincrease in the number

Figure 4.4: Total volume of suspicious transaction reports
{STRs) by behaviour type up to 3 July 2016 and total volume
of suspicious transaction and order reports (STORs) by

behavicur type from 3 July 2016 onwards

2016
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Wholesale financial markets

of reports containing non-equity financial instruments
and those reporting instances of market manipulation.

While there has been a significant increase in the
number of reports received under the new STOR
regime, the changes inreporting requirerments
mandated by MAR should be takenintoaccount. itis
not possible to make direct comparisons between the
STCORandSTR figures.

The STOR form requires submitters to categorise
the market abuse behaviour type as either market
manipulation orinsider deaiing While these
categories are broadly simiter to those detailed
against the $TRs above, it isimportant to present
the categories separately to reflect the changesin
reporting reguirements.

For the purposes of figure 4.4, Manipulation {MAR) still
includes misieading practices and other market abuse,
as well as manipulation of benchmarks; Insider dealing
(MAR) stillincludes misuse ofinformation (incuding
unlawful disclosure) but only where this resulted in
asuspicious order or transaction. Both categories
also include any reports received detailing suspicious
orders and/ or attempted market abuse.

Abreakdown of STORs received in @ach of four principal
asset classes —equities, fixed income, commodities and
foreign exchange is available on our website.

When we receive a STOR (previously STR), in addition
to determining whether to take any action with
respect to market abuse, we also assess the guality
of the report submitted to us to establish whether a
reasonable basis of suspicion exists, and whether this
has been clearly articulated within the report.

Where we believe the reasonabile suspicion test has
not been met, we will generaily provide feedback

tothe submitting firmor trading venue to ensure

thelr understanding and application of the regime is
appropriate In2016, 2% of STRs and STORs did not
meet the reasonable suspicion test. This is a decrease -
from 2015 when 2.5% of STRs did not meet the test,
andin 2014 when 5% of STRs did not meet the test.

MarketsinFinancial Instruments Directive (MiFID 1)

MiFiD llregulates firms that provide services to clients
linked to 'financial instruments’ (shares, bonds, urits
in coltective investment schemes and derivatives),
and the venues where they are traded. In 2016/17 we
published four consultation papers to implement the
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Directive These consultations have covered issues
including rules for the secondary trading of financial
instruments, systems and controls requirements for
firms providing MiFID investment services, guidance
on transaction reporting and conduct of business

MiFIDil comes into force on 3 January 2018 and
ntroduces a number of new iInvestment services
and financial nstruments. We expect toreceive
approximately 600 applications, either for anew
authorisation or a variation of permission.

To mitigate the risk of market disruption, we opened
the Authorisation gateway on 30 January 2017 for
early applications. We are communicating with the
affected firms to help them understand the changes
inthe authorisation process and to provide them
with the information they need to submut fully
completed applications.

FEMR -proactively requiating and monitoring

We have beenworking with the Bank of England, the
Treasury, the CMA and international regulators 1o
implement the recommendations from the Fair and
Effective Markets Review (FEMR) to look at the way
wholesale Fixed Income, Currencies and Commodities
{FICC) markets operate.

We have continued to implement FEMR's
recommendations over 2016/17, including authorising
the proposed seven major FICC benchmarks, working
with the new FICC Market Standards Board to identify
emerging risks and raise standards inglobal FICC
markets, and incorporating the FEMR findings into
our day-to-day supervision of FICC markets and
market participants. ’

Increasing the efficiency and effectiveness of
primary markets

We have continuedto implement the recommendations
from the UK Debt Market Forumin 2016/17. This work
has included extending our Wholesale Debt Approach
to applyitto alarger population of debt instruments,
inciuding ABS and Covered Bonds; expanding the

scope of our same-day service for around 30% of
supplementary debt disclosure documents and creating
our Early Engagerment team 1o ensure that the process
for first-time foreign debtissuers toraise capital is clear
and comprehensible.

'c)f’ i esaiéﬁrmspmdeaposatw res;nonseswﬁiie" .

We have undertaken several pieces of work to help
ensure UK primary markets continue to be effective,
including consultation on a proposed new Prospectus
Regutation —this follows European Commission
plans to replace the Prospectus Directivewitha -
new regulation from June 2019. The new regulation
aims to make the regime simpler, faster and cheaper
forissuers and give investors more choice and

more accessible information about investment
opportunities This should allow quicker prospectus
approval for frequent issuers, reduced disclosure

for secondaryissuances and create a specific,
proportionate regime for SMEs,

We have also published a Listing Review discussion
paper and consultation paper where we have sought
input on the structure of the UK's primary markets, to
ensure they continue to serve the needs of issuers and
investors Considering the broader market landscape,
and informed by feedback received, the discussion
paper looks both atthe structure of the listing regime,
as well as whether there are areas which are not
properly accommodated by the UK’s current primary
market framework. The consultation paper sets out
more developed technical proposals to enhance
certainaspects of the Listing Regime.

MmmafmmisﬁmtmelﬂMnmm
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Our Business Plan commitments - Financial crime and anti-money

laundering {AML)

We require all authorised firms {0 have effective
systems and controls, as well as robust governance,
to mitigate the risk that they could be used to commit
financial crime. However, these systems and the

way they are operated must be proportionate to the
financial crime risks of the firm, to ensure they do not
create unnecessary barriers for customers or exclude
them from access to financial services.

This section covers some of the most significant
work we have completed in this area this year We give
more detail on this aspect of our work in our Annual
anti-money laundering report on our website,

Our AML supervision

We have continued implementing our enhanced AML
supervision strategy. This includes our Systemic

AML Programrme which covers 14 major retail and
investment banks operating inthe UK, aswell as their
most important or high-risk overseas operations.

We also continued our AML reviews of other firms —
mostly smaller banks —that pose a higher financial
crime risk. Inthelonger term, we will extend the scope
ofthe programme from 75 to 150 firms.

We have recently extended our proactive AML
supervision by introducing anew programme of
visits to randomly selected lower risk firms . This

new programme will cover approximately 100 firms
ayear, across all the sectors we supervise. We also
contact firms across sectors to ask them about their
understanding of money laundering risk and their
approach to AML compliance.

Making AML requirements proportionate and efficient

Banks and many other financial firms are legalty
reguired to take steps to detect and prevent money
laundering. This is cruciat to securing the integrity of
the UK's financial system and preventing criminals
abusingit. But these measures have a cost, which

is ultimately borne by the public. We enccourage the
industry to explore ways to streamline AML measures
to reduce compliance burdens and make them more
straightforward for ordinary customers We have
commissioned a review of current sector innovations
to improve understanding of how technology can help
firms manage the risk of financial crime and money
laundering. We will publish the results laterin 2017.

Some firms try to ensure they comply with AML
requirements by refusing or withdrawing banking

40

services toindividuals or organisations they believe
are 'suspicious’. Thisisknown as 'de-risking'. However,
some customers have complained that they have
services withdrawn without knowing the reason and
the practice can leave individuals excluded from
access to banking services.

In 2016 we completed our de-risking impact
assessment of firms, to help ensure that firms adopt
a proportionate and effective response to de-risking.
We are now working with the banking industry to
encourage them to communicate better with their
customers when they decide to end or reject banking
relationships, and to consider whether their actions
affect consumer protection or competition.

We have also contributed to the Government's efforts
to ensure the UK implements the requirements of the
EU'slatest Anti-Money Laundering Directive. This
includes updating our guidance to reflect the revised
UK Money Laundering Regulations.

We remain a major participant in the Financial Action
Task Force (FATF), which will carry out an evatuation”
of the adequacy of the UK's AML regime later in

2017. Their feedback will help us understand how
international assessors and overseas authorities view
our AML regime. We also continue to participatein
international crime policy forums held by the European
Supervisory Authorities and Basel committees.

Supervising professional bodies

The UK has several different professional bodies
supervising the legal and accountancy professions,
The Government's 2015 National Risk Assessment
of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing found
that, among other issues, the number of professional
body AML supervisorsinsome sectorsrisks an
inconsistent approach . in March 2017 the Treasury
announced a new QOffice for Professionat Body Anti-
Money Laundering Supervision {OPBAS) to work with
professional bodies to help, and ensure, compliance
with the regulations. OPBAS will sit withinthe FCA and
we are currently preparing for this new role.

Using our intelligence and working with others to
prevent financial crime

This year we launched the Financial Crime Annual Data
Return to help us identify inherent financial crime risks
in firms' business. These data will allow us to focus our

supervisoryresources more strongly on firms with
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high-risk business models, to assess whether their
control frameworks match their risks.

We are a core member of the Joint Money Laundering
Intelligence Taskforce, a public private partnership
with law enforcement agencies and the financial
sector, 1o combat moeney laundering and financial
crime and help ensure the cleanltiness of UK financial
markets. In 2016 we were invited tojoin the Joint
Fraud Taskforce, another public private partnership
set up by the Home Secretary to bring Government,
law enforcement, requlators and the banking sector
together toimprove the UK's response to fraud.

in April 2016 there was widespread reporting of arange
of allegaticons, including monsey laundering, inrelation
to the dealings of the Panama-based law firm Mossack
Fonseca We have seconded staff tothe Joint
Financial Analysis Centre (JFAC), a task force launched
in April 2016 to analyse information from the Panama
Papers dataleak. The task forceis investigating
individuals and companies for criminal ar serious civil
offences linked to tax fraud and financial wrengdoing.
JFAC has identified multiple opportunities for joint
working with partner agencies and has contributed

to a number of ongoing investigations by identifying
hiddencriminal assets.

Deutsche Bank fined €163 m for AML failures

in January 2017, we fined Deutsche Bank AG over
£163m for failuresinits AML framework between 2012
and 2015. Deutsche Bank failed to properly oversee
new customer relationships and booking global
business inthe UK, exposing the UK financiai system
to financial crime risks.

Because of its inadequate AML controls, unidentified
customers used Deutsche Bank to transfer around
$10bn of unknown origin from Russia to offshore bank
accounts. This fine is the largest financial penalty for
AML control failings we have imposed so far

Reducing harm to consumers from scams

Our ScamSmart campaign aims to give at-risk
consurners the knowledge and tools to stopthem
faling victim to investment fraud. The campaign
educates consumers about the warning signs of a scam
and promoctes our Warning List. This toot provides a
searchable list of firms to avoid and gives information
about the risks of different investment ‘opportunities’

Ourwork to protect consumers from scams
recognises that criminals are opportunists, and that
their targets can change over time Ourresearch
shows that over one-fifth of over-55s and one-third

integnty of the UK financial
system

of over-75s believe they have been targeted by an
investment scam since 2013

In 2016 we launched a new phase of the campaign,
including new advertising, PR and social media activity,
and communications through partners. We worked
with arange of partners incluging banks, pension
providers, consumer groups, other reguiators and
crime prevention partners.

Measures of success against 2016/17 Business Plan

Figure 4.5 shows a large increase invisits to the:
scamSmart site and use of the Waming Listin 2016/17,
peakmg disring our advertising campaigns. intotal,
319,594 usérs visited the ScamSmiart sitein 2016/17
and 26,091 checked aninvestment ontheWarning
List, upfrom94 543and 13,795 respectmeiy in
2015/16. The number of users visitlng the ScamSmart
hub in 2016717 increased by 238% and the numper

of investriiert chacks madeon ouf Warnlng List
;ncreased bysg%
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Our Business Plan commitments - Firms' culture and governance

Cufture and governance in firms and theirimpact on
conductremainan FCA priority. We have therefore
beenfocusing onthe most significant drivers of good
or poor conduct culture that canlead to harm. We want
to see individuals within firms embrace accountability
for good conduct. The implementation of the Senior
Managers and Certification Regime [SM&CR) 1s central
to promoting a culture of accountability,

There are challengesin the systematic measurement
of culture; however, we believe that culture is
manageable While each firm's culture is their own
responsibility, we have taken steps to understand

and form an awareness of the cultures of the firms we
supervise in order to form judgements as to whether
the drivers of each firm's culture have the potential

to cause harm. We have used arange of supervisory
tools and methods to work with firms on the drivers
of their culture that are of interest to us, such as firms'
messages on purpose and values, tone fromthe top,
approach to employee incentives and capabilities, and
the effectiveness of management and governance.

We have engaged with external stakeholders through
speeches, roundtables and industry events to explain

our approach to culture and governance, and how this -

fits with our objectives. We continue toplay an active
partinthe Financial Stability Board’s Working Group
on Governance Frameworks.

Developing a culture of accountability withinfirms

Over the past year, we have undertaken an ongoing
programme of work to implement and embed

the SM&CR for banks, building societies, credit
unions and dual regulated firms to improve firms’
governance arrangements and to promote a culture
of accountability.

By 7 March 2017 ali certified individuals should have
been assessed by their firms as fit and proper for
their roles. Individual conduct rules came into force
to apply directly to aif staff (except those individuals
performing a set of specific ancillary, non-financial
services related functions}in firms that currently
fallunder the regime, not just Senior Managers and
Certified Individuals.

We have published new rules and quidance on.
+ Regulatoryreferences ~akey tool that requires firms
to share relevant information on individuals to help

other firms assess if potential new recruits are 'fit
and proper’.

« Thedutyofresponsibility, to clarify howthe FCAand
the PRA may take enforcement action against Senior
Managers. This appliesif they are responsibie for
managing any activities where their firm contravenes
arequlatory requirement, and they donot take
reasonable steps to avoid this happening
orcortinuing.

+ Applying our Code of Conduct sourcebook (COCON)
to standard non-executive directors inbanks, building
societies, creditunions, duai-regulated investment
firms andinsurance firms. This wilthelp raise standards
of conduct for these individuals, with the aim of
reducing the risk of future misconduct.

We have also published a discussion paper on whether
the iegal functionis captured under the SM&ACR.

We undertook a supervisory review of the Statements
of Responsibilities (SoRs} and responsibilities maps
that were provided tous by firms as part of the 7
March 2016 impiementation of SM&CR. We published
feedback specific to this review in September 2016,

Akey focus of our supervisory approach with banks
and insurers since implementing the SM&CR has been
to work with firms to ensure they have understood
and implemented the regime appropriately and are
able to deliver on the intended cutcomes of improved
governance and a culture of accountability.

From 2018, the SM&CR will be extended to apply to
all FSMA-authorised firms, and we will consult on
this extension during 2017, We will ensure that our
proposals are simple, proportionate and clear, and
appropriate for such alarge and diverse population
offirms.

Conduct rule breaches under the SM&CR

Following the implementation of the SM&CR, firms
arerequiredtoreport conduct rule breaches and
disciplinary actions to us annually.

As of the first reporting date, 31 October 2016, only
Senior Managers and certified staffin banking sector
firms were covered by conduct rules. From that
population, 32 firms have reported 75 conduct rule
breaches and 89 disciplinary actions incurred during
the initial period of 7 March 2016 to 31 October 2016

The conduct rules came into effect for all additional
staff (other than those mancillary roles) infirms on
7 March 2017 Therefore, the October 2017 report
willbe the first to include a full year's data for Senior
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Managers and certified staff, as well as the first set of
data for cther staff for the period since 7 March 2017.

The Qctober 2018 reportwill be the first to have a full

year's data on breaches for all staff who are subject to
conductrules.

Addressing the drivers of behaviour

Over the past year, we have continued to develop and
embed our approach to remuneration We consultedon
and made changes to bring our remuneration provisions
inline with the Eurcpean Banking Authority (EBA)
Guidelines on sound remuneration policies for firms
under the Capital Requirements Directive (CRD IV) and
to share our expectations of good practice further

Inducements and conflicts ofinterest

Since theintroduction of the Retail Distribution
Review (RDR), we have focused strongly on
inducements. Thisis toreducethe risk that advisers or
firms are inappropriately incentivised to recommend
productstotheir clients that are notintheclient’s best
interest inApril 2016, we published the key findings
from cur thematic review into benefits that firms

both provided and received forretail invesiments, and
emphasised our expectations about the inducements
rutes. Our key finding was that hospitality provided
orreceived did not always improve the quality of the
service to the client. We provided mdividual feedback
to the firms inthe review about improvements they
should make

1”7

By 7 March 2017 all certified
individuals should have been
assessed by their firms as fit
and proper for their roles.

7

Measuras ofsuccess against 20‘!6117 Business Plan _

Our armnual review of the remunefaﬂﬁn policies
and practices of ‘Level 1 firms’ (déposit takers and
investment firms with: ‘totalbatance heetsmer e
E£50bn) found theyhad undeftaken sighific
to efnbed conduct and culfire i’ _:ﬁééfjﬁﬂéi&ﬁqn
policies and practices this year. There were clear
improvernents in the sophistication of systems and
processes firms use to set awards, which give greater
weight to the behaviours and conduct of staff. Firms
continued to use tools to adjust awards to reflect
rmaterial poor performance and misconduct based -
onactualresults. There was a downwardtrendinthe
extent of supervisory feedback needed inthis area, as
setautlnfgureAG :

Hg-ud.&ategowofﬁadbadtgivonwemuval 1firm
lnthehnualrwiewlnresponsetoﬂwdruseol’toolsaﬂsm
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Promoting competition

Good, heaithy competition can be demonstrated by a range of different
measures. When it works well, consumers are empowered as weil as
informed. In turn, firms strive to win custom on the basis of service,
quality, price and innovation. This helps generate better outcomes for
consumers. We aim for successful, competitive, innovative firms to
thrive and for uncompetitive firms to change or exit.

There are many ways that
competitioncanbe weakened. For
exampie, firms may not provide
clearinformationto help consumers
make well-informed choices about
compiex services, or they may exploit
customers'lack of understanding

or behaviouralbiases. Additionally,
barrierstoc entry for new firms may
mean established firms do nothave
towork hard to keep customers.

We have an objective to promote
effective competitionintihe
interests of consumersinthe

markets we regulate. We also have
acompetition duty. FSMA states
that we must, sc far asis compatible
with advancing cur consumer
protection or marketintegrity

e [ o
AN Ll o
Effective competition provides
firms with incentives to deliver
what consumers want and provide

value for money as efficiently
and innovatively as possible

objectives, carry out our general
functions ina way that promotes

effective competitioninconsumers'

interests. Together, this mandate
empowers us to identify and
address competition probiems and
reguires us toadoptamore pro-
competitive approach teregulation.
The mandate alsorecognises the
potential of competitionto advance
cur operational cbjectives.

We aiso have powers (our
‘concurrent functions'} to:

+ conduct market studies {under
FSMAandthe Enterprise Act 2002
(EAQ2))

« enforce the prchibiticnsinthe
Competition Act 1998 (CAS8) and
Treaty onthe Functioning of the EU
cancurrently with the Competition
and Markets Authority (CMA)

« make marketinvestigation
references tothe CMAwithregard
to the financial services sector.

We consider that our concurrent
functions complement the
powers we already hold {including
those under FSMA] and give us an
additional toolto ensure that the
markets in financial services work
wellin the interests of consumers

Inthis report we outline some of
the work we have done to further

.@. H
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Well informed and engaged
consumers can play a key role in

driving effective competition
between firms
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our competition objective and duty.
We give more details in our Annual
competition report 2016/17 which
we have published on our website.

Market studies

We can conduct market studies
under either EADZ or FSMA

We decide which route is most
appropriate on a case-by-case basis.

We have opened and continuetc
conduct a number of market studies
using our powers under FSMA_ This
work is explained in more detail
below. We have not openedor closed
any market studies under EAO2 inthe
past year and no such market studies
are ongoing.

Credit card market study

The final findings of our credit card
market study, publishedin July 2016,
showed that:

» consumers shoparound, switch
and value the flexibility offered by
creditcards

+ competitionisfocused on
specific product features such as
introductory promotional offers and
rewards. Thereisless competitive
pressure oninterest rates outside
promotional offers and onother
feesandcharges

+ higher-riskconsumers havea
morelimited choice of products
and providers

« newanalysisincreased our concern
aboutlong-termcredit card debt

We have proposed a package of
remedies tecenable consumers
to shop around more effectively,
budget more efficientiy and repay
debt faster. These included:

» Clearer standards for
comparisonwebsites and
promoting quotation searches

Financial Conduct Authority
Annual Report and Accounts 2018/17

« informing customers when
promotional periods are ending

identifying customers inpersistent
debt or at risk of financial difficulty
and taking appropriate steps

providing alerts oncreditlimits
beingreached

- controls onincreasing credit
limits, including greater control
forcustomers

Cn 3 Aprit 2017 weissueda
consultaticn paper which proposed
newrules to tackle persistent

credit card debt and encourage
earlier intervention. This included
arequirement on firms to take an
escalating set of steps designed to
encourage custemers torepay debt
more quickly and avoid getting into
persistent debt in the first place.
Where custoemers in persistent debt
cannot afford to repay their balance
inareasonable pericd, firms would
berequiredtotake stepstoenable
themto do so, which could include
reducing theinterestrate being
charged. We also set out the details
of anindustry voluntary agreement
to give customers more cantrol
over creditlimit increases. This

will see the industry offer new and
existing customers greater control
over increases to their credit card
spendinglimits.

We are currently considering

the feedback received fromthe
consultaticn and, dependingon
the nature of responses, we expect
to publishfinalrulesinapolicy
statementlaterin 2017

Investment and corporate banking
market study

Our market study of theinvestemnt
and corporate banking market
focused on primary markets and
related activities provided in the UK.

We published our final report in
October 2016 We found that
rmany clients believe the universal
banking model of cross-selling and
cross-subsidisation fromlending
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and corporate broking services to
primary market services works well
for them. This was particularly the
case for large corporate clients.

However, we also found that some
practices could have a negative
impact on competition, particutarly
forsmaller clients. Asaresult,
wedevelopedatargeted set of
remedies to address these concerns
and ensure competitiontakes place
onmerit alone. These remedies
included a ban onrestrictive
contractual clauses, endingieague
table misrepresentationinbanks’
pitchestoclients, removing
incentives forloss-making trades to
climbleague tables, a supervisory
programme for Initial Public Offering
(PO} allocations and revising the
IPOprocess.

Asset management market study

The UK's asset management
industry manages nearly £7tn

of institutional and individual

assets. Over three-quarters of

UK households with occupational

or personzal pensions use asset
management services. In 2015 we
starteda market study to assess how
asset managers compete tc offer
value for money.

InNovember 2016 we published our
interimreport. We planto publish
ourfinalreportin 2017 Ourinterim
findings suggest that there is weak
price competitioninanumber of
areas of the asset management
industry. White the price of passively
managed funds has fallen, prices

for active funds have remained
stable. Despite a large number of
firms operating inthe market, the
asset managementindustry has
seensustained high profits over
severalyears. We alsc found that
investors are not always clear what
afund'sobjectives are and that

fund managers do notaiwaysreport
performance againstan appropriate
benchmark, making it hard for
investors to meaningfully assess this

Inour interimreportwe proposed
a package of remedies to make
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By publishing pilot data,
we gave consumer
groups, market
commentators and

other users commonly
available indicators of
value to help them assess
products and compare
between firms.

' [
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competition work betterinthis
market and protect those leastable
toengage actively with their asset
manager. [heseinclude:

= astrengthened dutyonasset
managerstoactinthe bestinterests
oftheir clients

« reformstohold assetmanagersto
greater account

« introducingan all-infeeto make
it easy forinvestors to see whatis
being taken from their fund

= measuresto helpretallinvestors
identify the most appropriate fund.

We alsoidentified widespread
concerns inthe investment
consultancy sector, involving both
demand-side and supply-side
operations. So we also consulted
onwhether to make a market
investigationreference to the CMA
onthis market.

We consulted on both the findings
andthe proposedremedies set
outinthe interimreport and
engaged widely with stakeholders
to seek views and evidence through
roundtables, following publication.

Complementing this work, in April

2016 we undertook a thematicreview
toassess whether UK-authorised
investment funds and segregated
mandates are operatedinine with
investors expectations frommarketing
anddisclosure materialandinvestment
mandates. ltisimportant this material
IS accurate andclear as investors make
decisions about investingin authorised
investment funds based onit. Having
identifiedweaknessesin current
practice, our report aimedtoachieve:

» product descriptionsthatare clear
and correct

-

effective governance and oversight
throughout the whole of a fund's life,
including for funds thatare nolonger
actively marketed

identifying trends that may indicate
inappropriate sales by monitoring

the distribution channels that
productproviders select aspartof
their responsibilities.

Generalinsurance add-ons: market
study remedies

Our market study showed that
competitionfor general insurance
add-ons (products sold alongside,
or onthe back of, ‘primary products'}
is often not effective. Consumers
are often unaware they have bought
add-ons or that add-ons are poor
value and do not meet their needs.

In January 2017 we published data

in our general insurance value
measures pilot. These include claims
frequencies, claims acceptance
rates and average claims pay-out by
insurers for four generalinsurance
preducts:

+ homeinsurance (combined buildings
and contents)

- homeemergency insurance

« personal accidentinsurance
sold as an add-onto motor or
home insurance

« keycover soldasanadd-onto
motor nsurance

By publishing pilot data, we

gave consumer groups, market
commentators and otherusers
commonly available indicators of
value to help them assess products
and compare between firms. We

.expectthesedatawillimprove

transparency inthese markets,
influence both consumer and
firmbehaviour and give firms the
incentives to improve the value of
their products to consumers. We
planto publish the second dataset
for the pilot in January 2018.

Mortgages market study

Inthe market study, which wilifocus
onfirst charge mortgages, we will
considertwe broad questions:

» Ateachstage ofthe consumer
journey, dothe available tools
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{including advice) help mortgage
consumers make effective
decisions?

+ Docommercial arrangemerits
betweenlenders, brokers and cther
playersleadto conflicts ofinterest
or misaligned incentives tothe
detriment of consumers?

Whenreferring to ‘tools’ we mean
any sources of help a consumer

may use when shopping arcund

or choosing a product, such as
information on products provided
directly by lenders, price comparison
websites or best buy tables and
mortgage calculators, as well as
advice {(whether provided by alender
or abroker)

We will also review whether there
are opportunities for better
technological solutions to any
problems we identify, including
wherethere are any barriersto
efficient delivery of information or
advice throughdigital channels.

We expecttopublishtheinterim
report for this market study, with our
analysis and preliminary conclusions,
ntate summer 2017

New Bank Start-up Unit

The New Bank Start-up Unitis ajoint
initiative from the PRA and the FCA
to give information and supportto
newly authorised banks and firms
thinking of settingup a newbankin
the UK.

Theaimistoreduce barrierstoentry
for prospective banks, to stimulate
competition and drive innovation

to promote better outcomes for
Censumers.

Over the past year, eight new banks,
have been authorised

The Payment Services
Directive [l {PSD2)
PSDZ isthe EUlegislationtoregulste

firms providing payment services.
It aims to promote innovation and

Financial Conduct Authority
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competitionin payment services by
improving the level playing field for
payment service providers (PSPs)
through lowering costs, increasing
payment security and consumer
protection, and bringing certain new
payment services withinregulation
PSD2 must beimplemented into

UK law by 13 January 2018 We
willcontinue to be the competent
authority responsible for authorising
and supervising PSPsunder PSD2.
The Payment Systems Regulator will
beresponsible for certainaspects
whichrelate to payment systems.

We have beenworkingto promote
our strategic and operational
objectivesin supporting an effective
implementation of PSD2 We have
engaged with a wide range of
external stakeholders, including

the Treasury, the Eurepean Banking
Authority (EBA), trade associations,
firms and consumer representatives.
Weissued a consultation paperin
April 2017 to reflect the Payment
Services Regulations 2017 issued

by the Treasuryin February 2017
whichimplement PSD2. Our
consultationincludes proposals for
guidance in ocur revised Approach
Document, which combines the
existing Payment Services and
E-Money Approach Documents, Our
authcrisationteams are preparing
to accept authorisation appliéations
from firms from 13 October 2017,
Qur supervision teams have been
working to update processesto
enable us to assess new notifications
and reporting from firms.

The EBAisresponsible for
implementing some of the
provisions, including developing
requlatory technical standards and
guidelines. The EBA is consulting
separately on these provisions

We have engaged withthe EBA to
represent the UK's interests inthe
development of these standards and
guidelines.
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Our use of competition
enforcementtools

In 2016/17, we continued to progress
our existing investigation into
anti-competitive agreements and
concerted practicesunder the
Competition Act 1998 We also
opened a new nvestigation.

We have used cther tools to
strengthencompliance under the
Act Duringthisreporting period we
haveissued 23 'onnotice'fettersto
firms These letters aredifferent

to 'private warnings' letters which
areissued under FSMA. We send
‘onnotice'letters where evidence
suggeststhere may be apotential
infringement of competition law,
butwhere we decide notto prioritise
opening aninvestigation. As aresult of
theseletters, the firmsinvolved have
undertaken anumber of Initiatives to
strengthen competition compliance.

We have also issued six advisory
letters. Theseletters are ntended to
increase awareness of competition
lawto ensure the relevant firms
improvetheir compliance. The types
of behaviour whichledtoboth types
of letterincluded inappropriate
exchanges of competitively sensitive
information across arange of
financial services sectors.

Our programme of Competition
Act-related work includes working
closely with external parties,
otherregulators and competition
authorities. This includes anongoing
and varied programme with trade
bodies, professionals and firms.
Forexample, we held a competition
law workshop in September 2016
formembers of the Council of
Mortgage Lenders, aspart of our
follow-onwork from the call forinput
on competitioninthe mortgage
sector Theeventaimedtoincrease
awareness of competitionlawand
includedinformaticnon our role as a
cencurrent competition regulator as
wellas the basics of competition law

47



Chapter 5
Fromoting competition

Financial Conduct Authority
Annyal Report and Accounts 2016/17

48

Our Business Plan commitments — Innovation and technology

Technology plays a fundamental andincreasingly
pivotal role in delivering innovative products and
services. Our aimis to strike a balance between
supporting innovation that benefits consumers and
ensuring consumers have adequate protection.

Increasing innovation and competition for consumers

Cur innovation Hub has continued to support new
and established businesses —both regulated and
non-regulated ~ to be able tointroduce innovative
financial products and services to the market-where
these are in consumers' interests. The Hub enables
businesses to understand the regulatory framework
and how it appties to them. as weli as providing advice
on the authorisations process.

Ourregulatory sandbox allows businesses to test
innovative products, services, business models and
delivery methods in a live enwvironment. Tests are
conducted on a short-term and small-scale basis, and
we work with firms to agree the testing parameters
and to build in consumer sefeguards.

Through international engagement, our Innovation
Hub aims to encourage innavative firms to enter the
UK. so promoting innovation and competitionin UK
financial services. To achieve this, we have signed
co-operation agreements with a number of overseas
regutators. To date, we have signed agreements with
seven regulators in Australia, Singapore, South Korea,
China, Hong Kong, Canada and Japan.

BigData

We have improved our understanding of how retail
general insurance (G firms are using data and
analytics. Big Data s producing arange of benefits
for consumers in motor and home insurance which,
inturn, encourages more innovation in products
and services. Although we did not find that Big Data
currently limits effective competition, we noted

the risk that it might lead to higher risk customers
being excluded from certainproducts. italsohas the
potential for firmas to make pricing decisions based
onreasons other thanrisk or cost. We will continue
to work with the information Commissioner's Office
(ICO) onrelevant data protection matters and have
also started work to look at pricing practices in the
retail Gl market.

Simplifying compliance

We have been working with firms to understand how
we coulduse technology to help firms to interact with
consumers, what role we can play in the development
and adoption of RegTechin financial services and
what regulatory barriers there are to innovation or the
adoption of RegTech in financial services

We have runthree TechSprint events to bring
participants together over two days towork on
shared challenges to assess and solve problems in
the industry. We willcontinue touse TechSprints as
one of our regulatory tools to explore solutions to
other challenges, acting as a catalyst to help uniock
the potential benefits of technological innovation and
encouraging the financial services industry to adopt
these changes.

Improving firms’ cyberresilience and infrastructure

Regulated firms continue to face challenges from
the pace of technological change and innovation
needed to respond to changing customer demands
—particularly access to financial services using digital
channels such as internet and mobile banking This
places strains upon existing, legacy IT environments
which were designed to meet very different needs.

Inresponse, we are strengthening our approachto
operational resilience. We are working together with
the Bank of England, PRA and the Treasury toimprove
the resilience of critical infrastructure that underpins
the financiai system.

We work with firms so that T failures do not have a
negative impact on customers or the integrity of the
market. Where significant failures occur, we assess
firms’ ability to

» restore servicesreasanably and quickly

have a clear understanding of the root cause

communicate to customers and the market clearly
and promptly

» take action tolimit the risk of similar events happering
inthe future

« compensate consumers, if appropriate
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The Bank of England, the Treasury, the National Cyber
Security Centre and the FCA have worked together to
develop a collaborative and coordinated strategy for
cyber resilience. This strategy s aligned with the UK
national cyber security strategy, and aims to assess
whether firms that pose the greatest risk are 'threat
aware’, able to defend themseives effectively, and
canrespond proportionately to cyber events. So far,
we have evaluated the cyber resilience arrangements
in place at 11 high frequency traders and 36 general
insurers and mtermediaries We plan to cover firms
across the spectrum of financial services in 2017/18.
We have also actively contributed teinternational
thinking on cyber resilience, including the G7 Cyber
Fundamentals and the CPMI-[OSCO guidance on
cyber resilience for Financial Market Infrastructures.

In 2016, we launched our Cyber Coordination Group
initiative, bringing together around 150 firms from
across the breadth of the financial sector The Group
will share intelligence, raise awareness of threats

and effective cyberresilience, discuss and work
collectively onhow to structure effective recovery
efforts and raise the overaliresilience of the financial
sector. Aligned to this work, we have continued to work
with firms to oversee adequate and proportionate
responses to cyberincidents.

I

Our aimis to strike

a balance between
supporting innovation
that benefits consumers
and ensuring consumers
have adequate
protection.

1”

Memresofsuccess agulnstzo:lslu Businm?hn

Overthe past year our Innovation Hubhas: recewed
371 requests for support from ﬁrms seeking to '

engaged with the
{nriovation Hub, Prior to 2016/17, 73% of firms rated.
their overail experience of the innovation Hub as good
or excellent. Thrs has mcreased to 79% mciudlng the

satisfaction oft,he'ﬁrms who' have

year2016/17.-.

intheﬁrstcohoftoaftﬁar_eguiatorysandbox 24

: appHcaﬁons fqutof 6§¥were deermed tomeet the-

with 18 firms undertaking

‘testifig: Ihthasecondeabort 77 firmis applied, with

31 meeting the eligibh i8. Séventeef) firms.
fiomthe innovation # & gorie onto successfuﬂy
become fuﬁyaqthoﬂ&éﬁ' s
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We are the conduct regulator for the whole of the UK financial
services industry and the prudential regulator for 18,000
authorised firms. With such an extensive remit, we need

to ensure the tools we use to regulate the market are both
proportionate and effective.

Our regulatory principles and
functions

Under FSMA, we have various
functicns, including making
rutes under FSMA, giving general
guidance, supervising and
authorising firms.

When exercising cur general
functions we haveregard tothe
following regulatory principles for
good reguiation:

.

efficiency and economy
proportionality

sustainable growth

responsibility of consumers
responsibility of senior management
tocomply withthe regulatory
framework

recognising the differencesin
businesses carred on by different
regulated persons

openness and disclosure

transparency

Theseregulatory principles underpin
allour work and are allequalty
important Asreguired by FSMA, we
include a compatibility statement
inour consultationpapers This
explains why we believe cur
proposals are compatible with our
duty to have regard to the principles,
recognising that not all the principles
will always berelevant ineach and
every case and more thanone
principle may be involved inany
specific context

Certainpieces of workillustrate
this Forexample, in curwoerk to
implement the Senior Managers
and Certification Regime (SM&CR)
explained in chapter 4 (under Firms'
culture and governance), when
performing our rule-making function
we gave considerationto the
following principles —responsibility
of senior management to compiy
withtheregulatory framework,
proportionality, cpenness and
disclosure, and transparency.

Qurworkon value for money
{explained later inthis chapter), which
is relevant to the discharge of all our
functions, focuses particularly onthe
principle of efficiency and economy,
as well as proportionality, sustainable
growth andtransparency
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We play animportant
role as the gatekeeper
for firms that want to
enter the market.

”
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Qurworktc ensure firms give
prompts onannuity sales (as
highlighted in our Pensicn theme i
chapter 3)is another example ofhow
we perform our rule-making function
and our function to give guidance.

it shows howwe try to encourage
increased responsibility of consumers
to make appropriate decisions about
theirretirement options.

QOurrules for authorising firms, and
the standards firms must uphold,
vary depending on the nature of
the business carried on by different
regulated persons. We hold firms
that pose a greater systemicriskto
markets to more stringent standards,
reflecting our proportionate
approach toregulation. Gurwork
oninnovation and the regulatory
sandbox (as discussed in chapter
5)alsoreflects how we recognise
different business modals,

Making rules to ensure that
markets function well

We use our policy-making powers to
promote and deliver robust, practical
rules and frameworks which support
our objectives This appliesboth to
policy we develop ourselves and to
cur work with external policy makers.

Our policy work is guided by the
foliowing principles. We:

L}

prioritise and target our policy
activities where they canmake the
most difference

+ make and support newrules and
guidance only ifwe believe they
will be effective to address, and
proportionate to, the relevant
problem

« review our rules where we believe
they nolonger achieve the right aims

+ seektoinfluencethe European
andinternational agendas and
timetables Ourgeneralapproach
to impiementing EUlegislationis
usuallyto ‘intelligently copyout’
agreedrequirementsinto our
Handbook, and only to go beyond

whatisrequiredifwe consider thisis
proportionate. Whenwe have done
50, it has generally beento preserve
existing standards of consumer
protectionor to minimise pessible
competitive distortions, andis always
accompanied by public consultation
andcost-benefitanalyses

Authorising firms seeking to
enter the market

Firms and individuals offering
financial services need to compete
effectively, run theirbusinessesin
the best interests of consumers and
uphold market integrity We play an
important role as the gatekeeper for
firmsthat want to enter the market
We assess firms and, where relevant,
individuals toensure they meet our
standards. Thisincludes examining
the sustainability of firms’ business
modeis and the fitness and propriety
of individuals.

In2016/17 we continued to receive a
high volume of applications:

« 3,540 applications for consumer
creditfirm authorisations

« 1,072 applications for non-consumer
credit firm authorisations

= 2474 variation of permission
applications

« 2.011 notfications of change incontrol
+ 326 relevant waiver applications

« 15,757 mutual society registrations,
de-registrations and associated cases

« 7771 passportingcases, consisting of :

« 423 newpassports inoradding
inbound passports

= 889 passportsout oradding
outbound passports

- 6,449 notifications to amend or
cancel existing passports

« 65,282 approved persons
applications
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= 8,330 UK paymentservice agent
registrations

We assess each applicationand
determine it as either authorised,
refused or withdrawn

We monitor our performance
against mere than 20 statutory
requirements, as well as a number of
voluntary service standards. We aim
to meet both statutory and voluntary
service standards and underhne
therrimportance through regular
tracking cases, continuous feedback
tostaffand prioritising resources.
Occasionally, exceptional factors
mean that it may not be possible to
determine cases for reason outside
of our control and we therefore
report onthe percentage of cases
where we met the service timing.

We largely concluded the work

to transfer the authoerisation of
consumer credit firms fromthe
Office of Fair Trading this year, with
99 3% of applications determined.
We will conclude the small number
of outstanding applications from
interim permissicn consumer credit
firms during 2017 These applications
are more complex cases which take
uslonger to determine and include
commercial debt management firms
and peer-to-peer platforms

Asfigure 6.1 shows, the number
of non-consumer credit related
authorisations has remained
relatively constant. Following the
end of the application period for
consumer credit firms with interim
permissions on 31 March 2016, the
number of new consumer credit-
related applications has fallen
significantly, as expected.

Amadest proportion of firms
withdraw their applications during
the determination phase {figure

6.2} Thus happens for a number of
reasons, including where it becomes
clear that we are likely to refuse it.

Theaverage processingtime
(figure & 3} shows thelength of time
taken over applications that were
determined during the periodbut it

Financial Conduct Authority Chapter 6
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Figure 6.1: Number of new authorisations applications

16,000 15173
14000
12,000
10,000
8.000
8,00C
4.000

2.000

o

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

W New authorsation — non-consumer credit
W New authonsation — consumercredit

Figure 6.2: Number of authorisations approved, rejected or withdrawn

Core firm processes Approved persons and passporting

B Approved B Rejected W Approved W Rejected
(13,896 cases) {29 cases) (80,659 cases) {29 cases)
Withdrawn Withdrawn
(1,170 cases) (1,512 cases)

Note Core firm processes refers to the application types listed infigure 6 3 plus canceliations and change in
contralapphcations

Figure 6.3: Time taken in weeks to process applications

25 [

il

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Avg Processing Time (weeks)

B veration of permission B Authonsation Wawer M Payment services and e-money

53



Chapter 6
How we regulate

Financial Conduct Authority
Annuat Report and Accounts 2016717

Figure 6.4: Statutory service standard performance and breaches

2014715

M Service standard
metin 100% of cases

does not capture cases received and
not determined. Measuring average
processing times only of cases
recognised upon closure canbe
misleading since it tends to under-
reportwhenthe age of open cases

is growing and exaggerate when the
average age of open casesis brought
back down. We have made significant
progress in clearing our older and
more complex new authorisation
cases. Average precessingtimes
rose slightly from 22 weeks in
2015/16to 23 weeksin 2016/17.

Figure 6.4 shows the number of
times that individual monthly service
standards were met or missed over
the year Some service standards are
not always applicable each month
(forexample, if we don't receive any
relevant cases in that month), so the
total number of standards missed or
met canvary fromyear to year.

Formore information on service
standards, see chapter 2 of this
report

Although there has been a slight
declineg in performance when
comparedto 2015/16, performance
still remains much improved over
the previouslow point at the end of
2014/15.
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M Service standard
metin80-99% of cases

2016/17

B Service standard
metinless than
90% of cases

How we supervise firms

Qur supervision of firms is forward
looking and strategic, aimingto
mitigate conductrisks before they
cause significant harmto customers
crmarkets. We assess firms'’
strategies and business modeis to
identify emerging risks and to ensure
our supervisory activity is tailored to

the potential harm each firm presents.

Fixed portfolio groups are a

small population of firms (out of
the total number we regulate}.
Based onfactors such as size,
market presence and customer
footprint, they could have the
biggestimpact on consumers or
markets and require our highest
level of supervisory attention We
allccate these firms a supérvisor or
supervisory teamwho proactively
supervise them using a continucus
assessment approach.

The vast majority of firms are
classified as 'flexible portfolio’ For
flexible firms, we deal with current
orermergingissues, based on our
risk appetite, seeking to address the
causes of potential or actualharmas
efficiently as possible. These firms
use our Contact Centre as their
first point of contact withus, but we
escalate themost sericus issues to
their pertfolic supervision team.

We are moving toward supervising
these firms in portfolios of similar
firms. Each portfolio of firms will

be the responsibility of a specific
supervisionteam. The team

will conduct analysis across the
portfolio, taking action on high-risk
firms and explaining good practice to
theirportfolio.

Figure 6.5: Number of firms in

each sector
No of firms

Wholesale 1,650
Financial
Markets
Investment: 3,000 .
Management
Retail 5,850
Investments
Pensions & 230
Retirerment ’
Incorme
Retail Banking 1,300
Retail Lending 30,000
General 5,800
Insurance &

Protection

Plaase note this does not include c8,000
FEA Authorised firms who are not currently
allocated toaspecific sector
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The tools we use to supervise firms

Qur supervision model s bullt on
three pillars of supervision activity:

« Pillar l1s a programme of proactive,
firm-specific supervisionfor the
mostimportant firms and groups
withina sector

Pillar lis event-driven, reactive
supervision, whichis focused
ondealingwith crystallised or
crystallising risks inaccordance with
ourrisk appetite

Fillar lllis our thematic approach,
where we focus onrisks and issues
across asectorasawhole

Pillar i interventionsin the market

Whiie we maintain a minimum set

of supervisory activities for fixed
firms, our approach gives cur
supervisors greater flexibility to

use their judgement when deciding
the appropriate level of supervisory
activity forindividual firms, including
high-risk flexible firms.

Figure 6.6: Meetings with Pillar | firms by
Sector for Fixed Portfolio Supervision
for 2016/17

Sector Firm meetings
Wholesale 1,724
Financiai

Markets

Investment 130
Management

Retait 166
Investments

Pensions & 339
Retirement ‘
Income

Retail Banking 980
Retail Lending . 236
General 925
insurance &

Protection
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We use face-to-face meetings

with senior managementinfirms
{figure 6.6) to ensure that we have
anappropriate and up-to-date
understanding of the firm's business
model, operations, key senior
individuals and their responsibilities,
cuiture and governance
arrangements. itisimportant that
we remainabreast of developments
inafirmtohelp usidentfyrisks
promptly, and take swift actionto
allow us to minimise potential harm.

For some firms (identified by the
PRA as beingimportant tothe
stability of the UK financial systern)
it 1s astatutoryreguirement to
hold an annual meeting with their
external auditors. The purpose of
these meetings is to gain a deeper
understanding of Issues at the firm,
andthethemes andtrends arising
fromthe external auditor'swork. 38
of these meetings were scheduled
and carried cut during the year.

Group supervision

Asingte teamis accountable for
supervising the activities of groups

- firms that are active in more than
one sector—and forreaching a single
overallview of the whole group In
reachingthe group view, the group
supervision teamwilldraw onthe
expertise of specialist supervisors
fromthe relevant sector supervision
team overseeing the group's
activities in that sector.

Pillar Il interventionsin
the market

Pillar Il supervision deals with current
and emergingissues andrisks The
purpose of event-driven Pillar |
workistodeal rapidly and efficiently
with events that may causeharm

to customers or threaten market
integrity. We decide ourresponseto
each eventinaccordance with our
risk appetite and aimto address the
causes of potential oractualharmas
efficiently as possible.

Chapter &
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We identify risk eventsinanumber
of ways. These could be threugh
Pillar {assessments, thematic work,
anotification fromthe firm, Contact
Centre enguiries, awhistle-blower or
regulatory return. We tackie events
with the potential to cause the most
harm to cur objectives and where
thereisgreater risk to consumers
or market integrity. Fixed-firm
supervisors assess currentrisks
and apply our risk tolerance inthe
context of their knowledge and
understanding ofthefirmand its
business model. We manage risks
which arise in flexible portfolio firms
by a combination of arisk event
triage team, specialist tearmns and
sectorteams working together to
consistently apply our risk appetite

Qver 2016/17, we received 24,916
event-driven cases for flexible firms
across all sectors. Approximately
10,900 of all these cases were
raised following analysis of firms'
regulatory returns. Ofthe 24 916
eventsreceived N 2016/17, we

are stillassessing 2,045. We tock
supervisory action on 36% of the
eventsreceived where the event had
the potential to cause most harm to
our objectives.

Pillar lllinterventionsin
the market

Pillar lli supervision aims to address
our key priorities both forindividual
products and for specific issues. Itis
drivenby sector risks and aliows us
to address risks that are commonto
mare than one firm, and potentially
across more than one sector.

There aretwo forms of cross-firm
work that canbe carried out under
Pillar I11:

Thematic work: we assess acurrent
oremerging risk about anissue or
product across anumber of firms
nasectorormarket Thiswork
canfocusonfinding out what is
happening and suggesting ways of
tacklingthe problem
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We prudentially
regulate around

18,000

firms
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Market-based (or multi-firm}
supervision: this involves short,
focusedinterventions targeting

a group of firms. They are sector-
based supervisory investigations.
Incemparison to thematic reviews,
these reviews tend to reguire fewer
rescurces and are iess likely to
resultinruie changes, guidanceor a
publishedreport

Market-based {or multi-firm)
supervision represents a key part of
our revised approach to supervising
flexible portfolio firms. For example,
inthe asset management market
we have undertaken anumber

of projects lincluding risk-free

box profits, dealing commissions
and fund governance) looking at
how firms operate and used the
conclusions from that work to help
inform our market study work.

We have run anextensive regional

UK programme of events —'Live

& Local' —for nvestment, general
insurance and mortgage firmsto
helpthem understand how to comply
with ourrules. These eventsincluded
presentations, workshops, roundtables
and one-to-one surgeries with our
supervisors. We alscheld a Chairman's
Junchineach area that we visited. In
total, we spoke tonearly 2,600 firms
andust under 3,200 advisers as part of
this programme in 2016/17.

Specialist supervision

To ensure that we continue to
properly regulate markets andthe
firms within them we have specialist
teams who focus on supervising
specific activities and 1ssues. These
are Client Assets and Resclution
{CARD), Prudential, Technology and
Resilience, Conduct Specialists and
Financial Crime.

Within CARD, our visitand desk-
based review schedule enables
continued oversight of firms and
increases our regulatory impact
across all categories of firms that
fallwithinthe client assetsregime,
including newer categories suchas
debt-based crowdfunding firms. In
2016 we have also focused attention

onfirms cutsourced activities to
ensure appropriate oversight of

. delegated functions.

InJdanuary 2017 the Treasury
published amendments to the special
administration regime regulations.
Atthe sametime, we published
aconsultation seeking feedback
onanumber of aspects of the

clent assetsregime that apply if
aninvestment firmfails. Together,
these proposals aim to ensure hetter
outcomes for clients and marketsif
annvestment firm fails.

Managing our prudential regulation
responsibilities

While the PRA s the prudential
regulater of deposit-takers, insurers
and major investment firms, we
areresponsible for prudentially
regulating around 18 000 firms,
including asset managers, investment
firms, platforms and infrastructure
providers. The aim of our prudential
approachisto minimise harmto
consumers, wholesale market
participants and market stability
when firms suffer financial stress or
failin a disorderly way. Qur view s
that failing firms of all sizes should be
allowed to fail in anorderly way. We
take areactive approachto smaller
firms, as they pose lessriskto our
objectives and allow for disorderly
failureinthese cases.

Alongside the implementation of
the MarketsinFinancial instruments
Directive (MiFID Il) whichis covered
under our Wholesale priority theme,
our prudential work has focused on:

+ continuingtcimplement the Capital
Reqguirements Directive IV

+ changesto our Supervisory Review
and Evaluation Process to meet the
European Banking Authority's new
guidelines

+ implementing the Recoveryand
Resolution Directive and helping
firms toimprove their wind-down
planninginthe event ofa firm failure
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Continuing oversight
of markets

Aspart of curworktoensure that
markets work weli for all market
participants and support sustainable
economic growth, ourrcieisto
maintain the robustregulatory
standards which help underpin

the global reputation of the UK's
capitalmarkets

Timely and accurate
market disclosures

The UK listingregime relies on
disclosure and transparency to allow
investors to make fully informed
decisions To achieve our cbjective
of ensuring markets work well, it is
critical that market disclosures by
listed companies are both timely
and accurate. Thisensures that
investors canrely onthem when
making decisions to hold, buy or sell
aninvestment.

The UK Listing Authority (UKLA)
focuses ontheissuers of securities,
their disclosures andthe sponsors
workingwithissuersinthe primary
market In2016/17, we reviewed 276
equity transaction documents, 351
debt transaction documents and
162 fundtransactiondocumentsin
addition to approving a further 409
supplementary prospectuses.

Related-party transactions by
premium listed companies

The UK listing regime gives

investors confidence that premium
listed companies meet arange

of standards on governance and
investor protection The related party
transactionrules protect minority
investorsinlisted companies by
ensuring thatlarge shareholders and
company directors do not unfairly
benefit fromthelr position.

We cover ourwork onmarket abuse
andtransactionreportinginchapter
4 Linder 'Wholesale'

Financial Conduct Authority

Annual Repart and Accounts 2016/17

How we enforce our rules

Qur enforcement work supports

our cbjectives by making it clear
there are real and meaningful
consequences for firms and
individuals who den't follow the rules.

Our approach to using our powers
focuses on specific deterrence
(deterring the person from offending
again) and general deterrence
(deterring others from offending)
our investigations also help build
public confidence that wrongdoing
is properlyidentified and dealt with.
Qur public sanctions underline

the value and legitimacy of the

rule requirement or standard our
investigationis upholding Inthis
way, investigations draw clear lines
that therest of the market can
follow, helping everyone comply and
ensuring markets work well.

We work closely with other regulators
andiaw enforcement, both
domesticaily and internaticnally,
toidentify and actearly when
enforcement action is necessary.

We use a wide range of enforcement
powers —criminal, civil and regulatory
—to protect consumers and markets
and to take action against firms and
individuals that do not meet our
standards.

We cantake action such as:

withdrawing a firm's authorisation

« prohibiting individuals from
operating infinancial services or
fromundertaking specific activities

+ suspending firms and individuals
fromundertaking activities

- censuring firms and individuals
through public staterments

+ issuing fines against firms and
individuals who breach our rules or
commit market abuse, snd against
firms that breach competitionlaws

- applyingtothe courts for injunctions
and restitution orders

Chapter &
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There arereal

and meaningful
consequences for
firms and individuals
who don‘t follow
therules.
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Figure 6.7: Total value of financial penalties levied

£1,409.8m

1,500 "l

Total value of fines{Em)

2014715

Figure 6.8: Financial penalties imposed

Number of financial penalties imposed

Total value of financial penalties

Number of financial penaities imposed against firms
Total value of ﬁnandai penalties imposed against firms .
Number of financial penalties imposed against individuals

Total vaiue of financial penalties imposed against individuals

*

bringing criminal prosecutions to
tackie crimes such asinsider dealing
and firms undertaking regulated
activities without authorisation

Full details of our enforcement work
canbe foundinthe Enforcement
annual performance account
2016/17 on our website

Improving our enforcement
following the Green Review

In 2014, the Treasury published
areview intothe FCA and PRA's
decisicn-making processes inlight
ofthe collapse of HBOS. In 2015, the
PRA and FCA published their own
jointreportand areport by Andrew
Green GC. In 2016/17 we continued
to implement the recommendations
fromthesereports, including:

« publishing a summary of our
referral process and framework,
revised referral critenia and case
selectionapproach

£884.6m

2015/16

£181.0m

2016/17

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
43 34 15
£1,409.8m £884.6m £181.0m
23 17 6
£14050m . €8804m  €180am
20 17 9 .

L €6Im  E42m €0.9m

amending our Enforcement Referral
Documentinline with the Green.
Report recommendations

updating our Enforcement Guide

ensuring FCA and PRA Investigating
teams keep each other and their
respective supervisoryteams
regularlyinformed, as appropriate,
about theinvestigation's progress

abolishing stage 2 and 3 penalty
discounts andimproving the
process and transparency for stage
1settlerments

providing a more flexible response
and updates during investigations,
improving transparency

Inaddition to the Green
recommendations we have
ntroduced a process for ‘partly
contested' cases.

We will also publishanannual review
of decisions by the Regulatory

Decisions Committee, inlinewith the
Review'srecommendations

Outcomes from our
enforcement work

We delivered strong public cutcomes
N 2016/17 Weissued 180 final notices
{155 againstfirms and 25 against
individuals), secured 209 outcomes
using our enforcement powers (198
regulatory/civiland 11 criminal)
andimposed 15 financial penalties
totalling £181m {higures 6.7 and 6.8)

Figures for 2015/16 and 2014/15
include exceptional fines related
to FXand LIBOR misconduct. We
remaimn cemmitted to investigating
and holding firms and individuals
accountable for misconduct and
ensuringwrongdoers pay for the
costs ofremediation. There has
beenno changein cur approachte
rmisconduct or financial penalties.
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However, we do not publishthe
outcomes of all cur cases. This may
be because, following investigation,
we find no evidence of misconduct
orwe conclude that, given all of the
circumstances of the case, itis not
appropriate or proportionate to
take disciplinary action. Inthe last
financial year, 62% of the total cases
closed were closed withno action
being taken.

Managing enquiries

Qur Contact Centreis thefirst point
of contact for enguiries from both
censumers and flexible pertfolio
firms.

Over 2016/17 we handled around
313,000 enquires frcmconsumers
and firms Thisis adecrease fromlast
year, duetothe end of the application
periods for consumer credit firms.

We monitor the subject and product
type of consumer enquiries. Credit,

investment and insurance products
ate the most commaonissues.

The topreasons that consumers give
for contacting us are:

« Theauthorisaticnstatusor
permissions of afirm.

« Their experience of issues and
concerns post-sale about the selling
practices they have encountered or
suitabllity of the purchased product.
The mainissues raised concern
fees/charges, misleading advice
and the products not meeting the
consumer's needs.

« Theybelievethe treatmentthey
havereceived from firms is not fair,
including onissues regarding claims
handling, arrears/repossession
queries, difficulty in contacting firms
and unexplained/dispropoertionate
Ncreasesinpramiums

Firms are mostlikelyto contact us
aboutreporting viathe GABRIEL
system, applications via the
Connect system, and regulation and
Handbook questions.

Financlal Conduct Authority
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This year we have takena more
proactive approach to contacting
firms and further improved our
service by:

« providing more flexible opening
hours to help consumers and firms
atpeaktimes

« usingcommon thermes from
enguiries to improve our processes,
make communications clearer
andtcrefer casestointernal
departments

)

increasing training te enable staff
todeal with increasingly complex
calitypes

« proactively contacting firms to
support themwithregulatory
reguirements and issues

- creatinga better servicefor
vulnerable consumers and
improving communication,
including a translation service
and partnerships with consumer
organisations

Value for money

We are committed to achieving
value for money (VFM)in delivering
our statutory objectives, and to
embedding VFM inte our culture and
decision-making.

There are three main elementsto
our approach:

Economy: Are operational costs
economic inrelationtorelevant
comparators?

Efficiency: Are we doingthingsin
the most efficient way to deliver the
FCA's strategy orchange?

Effectiveness: Are we achieving the
rightthings to detiver our desired
outcomes, ie are we delivering public
value?

We focus on minimising the cost
oftheresources we use while
considering the effect onthe
quality of cur work; we mustbe
able tojustify any increase in costs.

Chapter §
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For actions such as proposedrule
changes, we are required to estimate
compliance costs, alongwith other
costs and benefits, and publish
these as part of our consultation.
The SmallBusiness, Enterprise and
Employment Act 2015, as amended
by the Enterprise Act 2016, gives
regulators, including the FCA new
reporting requirements to increase
our transparency. We have given
more details en our obligations under
this Act inour separate Enterprise
Act Annual Report. We published
this onour website in June 2017. The
reportexplains the changes we have
made since 8 May 2015 to impose s
requirement, set standards or give
or amend guidance for business and
ensure these are complied with.

We always try to ensure that our
regulationis fit for purpose,
well-targeted and does notimpose
unnecessary burdens on firms. To
make the most efficient use of our
resources we use our Sector Views
to helpinform our sector strategies
and priorities. We are alsoimproving
how efficiently we deliver our results
through initiatives to improve our

‘authorisation and supervisory work

We arealsc examined by the
Comptroller & Auditor General who
lcoks at how economically, efficiently
and effectively we have used our
resources in ourwaork (value for
rmoney studies). This helps teinfarm
us of areas where we canimprove.
This year, forexample, we assisted
the National Audit Office with its
review of Vulnerable Consumersin
Regulated Industries.
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To deliver our objectives as effectively as possible we:

+ encourage diversity

« supportandinvestinour people, infrastructure and systems

« usetheresources available to usin an economic, effective and

efficient manner

« encourage good corporate citizenship and corporate responsibility

- transparently measure and monitor our performance
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Qur people

We alm to attract, develop andretain
thebest talent, recognising that

our people arekey to our ability to
meet ourobjectives. We encourage
diversity. We want to create a working
environment that not only encourages
difference, but one where everyone
feels valued and respected — where our
people can be themselves and deliver
positive results

Recruitment

« Number ofemployees for 2016/17

. » Employeelevelsincreased from
3 285103 422 fromthestartto
the end ofthe year.

- Duringthe yearwe made
987 appointmentsintcroles,
through acombinationof 560
internalmoves and 427 external
appointments.

= We currently have 104 employees
onour graduate programme, 47
of whombeganthe programmein
October2016 1n 2017 we hired 48
graduates and 21 summerinterns.

Wereceived 3,417 applications from
267 different universities

« We piloted our first apprenticeship
programme in September 2018,
hiring ten apprentices. Our
programme offers individuals the
opportunity to combine practical
onthejoblearning with professional
study, achjeving a nationally
recognised gualification. We intend
toincrease our apprenticeship
programme to fifteenin 2017,

« Employeeturnover:

« External turnover has reduced
this year and ended the year at
10.9%

We continue to focus ondirect
recruitment of candidates to reduce
our use of recruitment agencies,
this hasresulted in an estimated
cost saving for the year of just over
£590,000, with noreductionin
candidate quality

We have proamoted internally where
possible, and with great effect, to
best use our existing talent Where
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the skill set has not existed internally

we have gone to the market torecruit

the bestavailable talent.

We provide a comprehensive range

of wellbeing benefits and aimto treat

employees who are sick with dignity
andrespect, providing support,
counselling, tallored rehabilitation
programmes and (if appropriate)
workplace adjustments that may
help that individualto continue
productive employment with us.
During 2016/17 anaverage of 6 5
days per year (2016 5.3 days)was
lost per persondue tosickness
absence.

Employee survey

Our annual employee survey helps
us identify and take actionin areas
which are important to employee
engagement.

The survey for 2016/17 was based
onanew approachwith an updated
set of questions and scoring scale;
forthisreason, we are not ableto
provide a proper comparisonwith
data from previcus years,

Financlal Conduct Authority
Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

inthe 2016/17 employee survey,
67% of staff reported favourably
ontheirlevelof engagementin
workingatthe FCA - 10% above the
Best Places toWork benchmark for
a UKlarge company (500+ staff).

In particular, staff take prideinthe
FCA'saccomplishments towards its
objectives and a majority feel they
make a difference in their work here.

Diversity and Corporate Social
Responsibility were the highest
scoring categoriesin 2016/17. Areas
ident fied for development were
Talent Management and Reward

Development

Giving our employees accesstothe
right development opportunitiesis
an essential part of what we offer
asanemployer The FCA Academy
offers staff high-quality structured
learning In 2016/17 we have,

» Completedthethirdyear ofour
MScinFinancial Regulation. There
arecurrently 26 (25 fromthe FCA)
studentsintheir secondyearand 32
intherr firstyear (28 fromthe FCA).

Chapter 7
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+ Continuedtodevelopthe FCA

curriculum and internal Academy
programme. We delivered a total

of 5,319 training days overthe year
56% of all employees have attended
atleastone training event this year

- Arranged 67 secondmentstothe

FCAand91fromthe FCAto partner
organisaticns. Theseinclude
authorised firms, the European
Securities and Markets Authority
(ESMA} the Treasury, the Bank of
England and consumer bodies.
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Diversity and inclusion

We have a strong commitment to
OurtarQEts: diversity andinclusion. To bean
effective and efficient regulator, we
. 0 ‘ needto make sure that we recruit,
o develop and keep the most talented,
engaged and diverse workforce As
partof this commitment, in June

of our Senior 2016 we signed the Government's
Leadership Team Womenin Finance Charter which

. . - seeks toincrease the representation
(SLT) to Identlfy as of women in the financial services
female by 2020 sector, particularly at senior levels.

The Charter requires us to set

0 andreport ongender targets. Cur
o targets are:

. . « 45% of our Senior Leadership Team
of our SLT to identify (SLT) to identify as female by 2020,

as BAME by 2020 and 50% by 2025. Currently 39% of
the SLTidentifies as female.

We have also set targets for Black,
Asianand Minority Ethnic {BAME)
diversity at senior levels, as part of
our continued commitment to BAME
progression. Qurtargets are.

+ 8% of our ST toidentify as BAME by
2020, and 13%by 2025, Currently,
2% of the SLT identifies as BAME.

Other initiatives we have undertaken
inthis areainclude working with our
recruitment suppliers to have more
diverse shortlists inour recruitment
processes andthe introductionof our
BAME Reverse Mentoring scheme

We are encouraged that we have
remained in the Stonewall Top 100
Workpiace Equality Index. Weare
also aLiving Wage empicyer.

More information on our diversity
and inclusion work, including an
update on progress against our four
equality objectives and workforce
data, is available in our Annual
diversity report which is published
on our website Our public sector
equality duty objectives are also
covered on our website under
‘corporate responsibility”.
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Improving our infrastructure

We need to continually develop and
improve our information systems
and capabilities to keep pace with
our regulatory and operational
requirements. This year we invested
£58 5 millionto deliver change
projectsto implement legislative
changes and to improve our
operational capabilities and maintain
our information systems.

Key work delivered over the past year
includesimplementing the SM&CR,
MiFID and MAR (as discussed earlier
inthe report). Other key initiatives
include work to implement the
Capital Requirements Directive and
Regulation (CRD V), the Mortgage
Credit Directive and the Banking
Recovery and Resolution Directive

We have invested in operational
improvements to support cur
intarnal systems and effective
working. Most notably, we have
commissioned a virtual datacentre
inthe public cloud. This cloud-
based data centre willenabie us

to produce better quality data
analytics, increase innovation and
provide a more flexible, better value-
for-money service than traditional
physical datacentres.

Moving to Stratford

We are moving our London offices
to the Queen Elizabeth Olympic
Parkin Stratfordn 2018 We planto
move from our Canary Wharf offices
in stages between May and August
2018.

Ournewbulldingisontrackto
receive an excellent rating against
the Building Research Establishment
Environmental Assessment Method
(BREEAM) standard, reflecting our
commitment to good environmental
and corporate respensibility
practices



I

i

(NAO)

MNaiional Aot G-

5

i

- 2.‘

i
Y.

1]

Ni%

o8 aaiise

A ¥

Qurwork in 2016/17 nas focused onv

the build and fit-out of the new
building —both ofwhich are on target

the building layout and internal
design—improving the waythe FCA
works together

ourworkplace strategy—ensuring
that our new building, technology
andways of working willhelp us
toattractandretainthe best
pecple, and enable themtowork as
efficiently and effectively as possible

.

working with staff to ensure
continuity of all our services during
the transition

Sustainability

We aim to follow best industry
practice for our environmental
impact We believe sound
environmental management and
careful use of resourcesisrelevant
to one of the principles of good
regulation which 15 to make the most
efficient and economic use

of resources

Financial Conduct Authority
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Qur environmental principles are laid
downinour Environmental Policy
Statement on our website under
‘Sustainability’. We include a detailed
sustainability report st Appendix 3,
which demonstrates the progress we
have made this year.

Community engagement

Cur community engagement
programrme encourages our pecple
to volunteer with their chosen
registered charity or community
group. We support andencourage
volunteering by allocating paid time
off for employeestobe activein

their community. Last year 1,305
people across our Edinburgh and
London offices volunteered a total of
14,839 hours. This represents 38%of
employees, against our target of 30%.

Chapter?
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Charitabledonations

The FCA Charity Committee
supported Shelter UK and Little
Havens Hospice throughout 2016 All
donations have come from staffand
their fundraising efforts We raised

« Shelter UK—£7 881 {excluding gift aid)

+ Little Havens Hospice—£8,782
{excluding gift aid)

Through our Payroll Giving scheme,
in 2016, cur employees donated
£157,992 to various charities, an
increase of £45,000from 2015.

Freedom of Information and
Data Protection

Freedom of Information Act

The Freedom of Information Act
2000 (FolA) requires us torespond
torequests forinformationwithin 20
workingdays inmost circumstances.
During 2016/17, we recerved 787
requestsforinformation, of which
we treated 597 as formalrequests
—anincrease of around 16% since
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2015/16 We closed 579 formal
reguests — 80.5% within the statutory
deadline (figures 7.2and 7.3).

Thisyear the key requests were

for information about FCA
complaints-handling, enforcement
investigations, the Alternative
tnvestment Fund Managers
Directive (AIFMD), redress of
payment protectioninsurance

(PPI), the handling of whistleblowing
notifications, professional indemnity
insurers' details, contract and
procurement information, the
Markets in Financiat Instruments
Directive {MIFID), passporting issues
andrequests relating tothe changes
inpensionrules. Requests came
from a range of sources {figure 7.1},

We disclosed material in
approximately 50% of cases where
we heldthe informationrequested,
which remains the same as for
2015/16. We have alsc added more
information to our disclosure log
wherethe informationis of wider
publicinterest Thisis published in
our Publication Scheme Guide to
Information, available on our website.

If arequestertells ustheyare
unhappy with our response or the
way we have handled theirrequest
thenwe carry out aninternal review
ofthe case. If the requester remains
dissatisfied when our internal
review process has been completed
they canaskthe Information
Commissioner's Office (ICO) to
investigate ThelCOsetsoutthe
result of thelrinvestigationina
Decision Notice, whichis published
onthe ICO website.

Figure 7.1: top FolA requesters by
sector in 2016/17

Media 192
Consu;ﬁ'e(s 1735
Service providers/ 118
management companies

Legél advisers 49
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Figure 7.2: FolA requests closed during 2016/17

Business as usual* 21
information accessibile by othermeans -~ . .18 ]
information intended for future pubhcatxon ‘ 2
Néinforeoetionheld . - 55
No mformatlon provided 82
Noresponse fromrequester =~ = w0 L .29
Over cost limit, 88
Qver cost limitand same:inforrhation provided: - - 37
Referred to another authorlty 1
Réquest satishidd L - 141
Request W|thdrawn 8
8ime lnfarmatlégz;m& o l99_,
Data Protection Request 1

*BAU requests are those requests which can be treated as routine correspondence and responded to outside
the scope of FolA, for example where explanations rather than recorded iInformation have been requested

Figure 7.3: Qur performance against meeting the statutory requirements under FolA

in 2016/17

Qi Q2

Q4] @

Q3

2014/15

M Requestsreceived M Requests closed

If either we orthe requesterare
unhappy with the ICO's decision,
both parties can appeal to the First
Tier {Information Rights) Tribunal
and, if stilldissatisfied, to the Upper
Tribunal (but only on 2 point of law
and with permission}.

In2016/17 the 1CO decided in

our favour in all six investigations
undertaken (including one where
we provided alimited amount of
information duringthe course of
the investigation) The FCAwas not
apartytoany appeals tothe First
Tier {information Rights) or Upper
Tribunal during 2016/17.

T
o
B
% completed within SLA

Qz [oX] Q4 Q1 Qz Q3 Q4

2015/16 2016/17

% of requests completed within the SLA (RHS}

DataProtection Act

We are required to notify the

iCO each year of how we process
perscnaldata. We submitted our !
notification in November 2016,
whichis publishedonthe ICO's
website. Underthe Data Protection
Act (DPA), we must respond within
40 calendar days te 'subject access
requests’, which are reguests made
by individuals who want to receive
any information we hold about them

Over 2016/17 we received 147
subject accessrequests, compared
1o 71in2015/16. Weresponded

to 139 (including several carried
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Figure 7.4: Number of MPs’ letters received by the FCA
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forward from 2015/16) — 78% within
the statutory deadline

Complying with FolA and the DPA
costusapproximately £998,0001n
2016/17 (compared to £863,000 for
2015/16) Thisincluded processing
requests under both pleces of
legislation, time spent by staffin
different business areas and the cost
of investigations by the Information
Commissioner. We estimate that
the average cost to process each
requestis £83Z compared to
approximately £8601in 2015/16.

We cannctrecover this expenditure
fromrequesters because there s
very limited scopewithin FolA and
the DPA to charge for information.
We did not incur any costs for
externallawyers oninvestigations
and appeals.

Compiaints

The financial Services Act

2012 requires us to establish
arrangements for the investigation
of complaints againstus We
consider the investigation of
complaints tobe akey part of

our accountability We process
complantsinaccordance with

the Complaints Scheme which s
available fromwww.fca org.uk/your-
fca/complaints-scheme.

Thevolume of complaints against
the FCA has remainedrelatively
static, moving from 580in 2015/16

775

2015716 2016/17

10577 1n 2016/17. Thereisnonew
discernible trend inthe 1ssues
involved, aside from complaints
aboutinterestrate hedging
products However, we continue
toreceive a number of complaints
from consumer credit firms who
have received an administration fee
hecause theyhave not submitted
their GABRIEL returns ontime.

Where complainants are dissatisfied
with the outcome of their complaint
they may referthe matterto

the Cffice of the Complaints
Commissicner. During 2016/17

the Complaints Commissioner
overturnedthe FCA's decisionon
eight cases, two of theminfull and
sixinpart The Commissioner's
FinalReports for complaints

are available from http://fscc
gov.uk/publicaticns/, as are the
Commissioner’'s Annual Reports. -

Inaddition to business as usual
activities, we have a continuous
improvement programme in
operation designed toimprove
operational efficiency, governance
and control Thisconsists ofa
20-point action plan covering topics
ranging fromdevelcping a knowledge
sharing library to enhancing cur
existing quality assurance framework
Within this prcgrammeis a work
stream inrelation to Root Cause
Analysis (RCA).

RCA1samethod of problem solving
used for identifying the root
causes of faults or problems A
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factoris considered aroct causeif
removal thereof prevents thefinal
undesirable event from recurring.

We wiltuse the findings from our
complaintinvestigations towork with
other divisions mthe organisationto
help improve our performance and
public value

MPs' letters

In2016/17 wereceived 451 letters
from parliamentarians (figure 7.4).

We aimto respondto 50% of letters
within 15 working days and more
complexletters within 30 working
days. In2016/17 50.8% of letters
were dealt with in 15 working days
and 94.8% in 30 working days.

During the course of the year, we
have reviewed the way we handle
MPs'letters and improved our
processes. We have voluntarily
armended our SLAs sothat, from
February 2017, ouraimistorespond
10 80% of lettersin 15 working days
and 100% in 20 working days. So far
we are meeting these new targets.

Some of the mainissues MPs raised
with us on behalf of constituents
were about Investments (in particular
investment losses), consumer credit
(many relatingto the authorisations
process) and a variety of mortgage-
relatedissues.
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Chapter 8
Working with our partners

We are anintegral part of the UK's wider financial regulation
framework. Anintrinsic part of our work involves joined-up working
with arange of different partners, from internationat regulators and
agencies to tackle global regulatory concerns, to close collaboration
and liaison with arange of UK bodies, covering areas such as consumer
awareness, prudential regulation and forming policy on emerging risks

to our objectives.
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We work closely with a range of
public bodies, each with their own
duties and ohJectives. Theyinclude
the Prudential Regulation Authority,
the Bank of England, the Payment
Systems Regulator, the Competition
and Markets Authority, the Money
Advice Service, The Pensions
Regulater, the Financial Ombudsman
Service, the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme and the
Treasury.

The Bank of England, including the
PRA, has varicus Mermoranda of
Understanding with the FCA and
PSR. Thisincludes a Memorandum of
Understanding inrelationto payment
systermnsinthe UK dated March 2015
InJune 2016, a review of the first

year of co-operationinrelationto

UK paymenit systems was published,
with the conclusionthat co-operation
between all parties with the Bank of
England was working well

Payment Systems Requlator
(PSR)

The PSR became fully operational
onlApril 2015 andis a subsidiary
ofthe FCA Thefirstreguiatorofits
kind in the world, its purposeisto
make payment systermns work well
for the people and organisations
that usethem Thisis supported

by its objectives of promoting
competition, innovationand
service-users' interests.

Incurrole as one of the competent
authorities for some of the business
rule provisionsinthe Interchange Fee
Regulation, we worked withthe PSR
fwhich aiso has competency for these
rules) toidentify how we will cooperate
effectively to monitor compiiance.

The FCAand PSR expecttobe
competent authorities for menitering
and enforcing Regulation 105 of the
Payment Services Regulations 2017,
We have worked closely with the

PSR to develop ourdraft approach
totheseregulations and continue
toworkwith them in preparation

for the coming into effect of those
regulaticnsin January 2018.
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In 2016, the consumer group Which?
submittedasuper-complainttothe
PSR about authorised push payment
scams, arguing that victims of this
type of fraud do not have enough
protection. The PSR investigated

the super-complaint and found that
thistype of fraud was a growing issue
and thatmore neededtobe done
toaddressit The PSRannounced a
programme of work aimed at reducing
fraudsters ability to perpetrate scams
and, whenthey do occur, at increasing
the chance that victims are able
torecover funds The FCAworked
closelywiththe PSR to developits
response. Wewillworkwithfirmsto
tackle concerns at hoth sending and

receiving banks, monitor progress and,

if there areunraesolved sector-wide
issues, initiate further work.

More information about the activity
ofthe PSR overthe lastyear canbe
found inits own Annual Report.

Financial Conduct Authorlty
Annual Repart and Accounts 2016/17

Prudential Regulation Authority
(PRA)

Much of our co-ordination with

the PRA happens dally through
ourjoint working, supplemented

by regular scheduled meetings at
senior level. Qur Chief Executive 1sa
member of the Prudential Regulation
Committee, andthe PRACEO s a
member of the FCAboard

We have a Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) with the PRA
whichincludes arrangements for how
we carry out our responsibilities and
how we measure our performance
through detailed quarterty reporting,
and underlines cur aim of working in
an independent but co-ordinated way.
Over 2016/17 co-ordinationremained
strong and any material failures of
co-ordinationwere remediated at
the earliestopportunity The FCA

and PRA continue torecognise

that with differing objectives and
responsibilities, it may sormetimes

be appropriate to take divergent
approaches.

The PRA has the power of veto where
it considers thatacticnwe are taking
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may threaten financial stability or
cause the failure of a PRA-authorised
personinaway that would adversely
affect financial stability. This power
has notbeen exercised this year.

Theregulators have co-ordinated
effectively on policyissues such

as the Senior Managers and
Certification Regime, remuneration
andring-fencing of banks. In 2016
the PRAandthe FCAjeointly issued
aconsultation paper which made
anumber of proposals to improve
thetransparency ofregulatory
enforcement processes, following

. recommendations by the Treasury

(as discussed in chapter 6).

Theregulators work closely together
torespond effectively te specific
incidents through the Authorities’
Response Framework which allows
for aco-ordinatedresponse required
bythe FCA, Bank of England and the
Treasury to aneventthatresuits
inmajor disruption to the financial
sectorand/or tothe authornities.

Bothregulators continue tareview
the shared FSAIT legacy systems
toensure both organisations
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We work closely with the
Financiai Ombudsman
Service to understand
the issues that
consumers are facing.

I
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have systems which meet their
individual needs while supporting a
collaborative approach to sharing
information. The strength of this
apprcach enabled theregulators
to minimise disruption to normal
operations during a brief cutage
which affected certain shared
systems in September 2016

The regulators made good progress
onupdating their Memorandum of
Understanding to reflect a number
of changes, includingthe FCA's
concurrent competition powers, the
Senior Managers and Certification
Regime, and changes requiréd as
aresult of the Bank of England and
Financial Services Act 2016.

Financial Policy Committee
(FPC)

The FPC s the UK's main body
foridentifying, monitoring and
mitigating financial stability risk.

Qur Chief Executiveis amembper of
the committee and we work closely
with the Bank of England on areas of
interesttothe FPC.In2016/17, this
work focused primarily en household
finance, investment funds, FinTech,
andcyber risks.

Financial Ombudsman Service
and the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme [FSCS)

Censumerswho are dissatisfied
with regulated firms'responseto
their complaints cancomplaintc the
Financial Ombudsman Service, and
we use their complaints data to hefp
us assessthescaleofcurrent and
future issues. We also work with the
FSCS, theindependentbody which
handles claims for compensaticon
from consumers whenregulated
firms becomeinsolvent.

We are currently reviewing the
funding arrangements for the F5CS
and published a consultation paper
onthisin December 2016 We are
keen to ensure that these funding
arrangements are sustainable from

the perspective of firms that pay
levies, and that consumers continue
toreceive appropriate compensation
wheanthings have gone wrong.

We work closely with the Financial
Cmbudsman Service to understand
the issues that consumers are
facing. This year, our engagement
has included a range of ongoing
policy issues, including consumer
credit, pension redress and PPI.

The Money Advice Service
(MAS)

We work with MAS, anindependent
organisationresponsible for
providing free, impartialfinancial
guidance across the UK, and for
funding and co-ordinating the
provision of free debt advice

The Government consulted in March
2016 on settingup a two-body
delivery model for government-
sponsored guidance. This

inciuded replacing MAS with a new,
streamlined money guidance body
and bringing together the Pensions
Advisory Service and Pension

Wise into a new pension guidance
body However after considering
concerns raised by respondents
tothe consultation about howthe
two bodies might work effectively
together, the Government
announcedin October 2016 that

a single body {the Singte Finance
Guidance Body) would be better able
torespond to the different financial
guidance needs of consumers.

It consulted on this approachin
December 2016

The government anticipates that the
Single Finance Guidance Body will
belaunchedno earlier than autumn
2018 We continue towork with the
MAS, the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP) and the Treasury

to provide support throughout the
transition process to ensure that
implementing the new modelis
carried out effectively.
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Competition and Markets
Authority (CMA)

The CMA works to promote
competition for the benefit of
consumers, both within and outside
the UK. Itsaimis to make markets
work wellfor consumers, businesses
and the economy. Since 1 April 2015,
we and the CMA have had concurrent
competition powers. These

powers give the FCA the power to
enforce against infringements of
competitionlaw, additional powers
to conduct market studies intohow
competitionis workingin markets
and powers torefer marketstothe
CMA forin-depth investigation.
Forexample, we have consulted
onwhetheritis appropriate forus
torefer the asset management
consultancy sectortothe CMA

for investigation.

International partners

Cver the past year, our participation
in European and global bodies and
activities has remained anintegral
aspect of our work, notwithstanding
the outcome of the UK Referendum.
Whatever the eventual terms on
which the UKleaves the EU, the
relationships between, and work we
undertake with, regulators and bodies
bothinthe UK andinternationally
willremain a crucial part of ensuring
markets workwellinthe UK.

Globaland Europeanregulatory
standards, rules and guidance
continue to formacentral partof

the framework within which we
currently operate. Our aim has been
toengage withinternationzl standard
setters andregulators toensure the
regulatory frameworkis aligned with
our objectives and approprigte for the
firms and markets operatinginthe UK.

Cur pricrities in international
regulatory discussions over the past
year have included ongoing work

on globa! standards for benchmark
regulation, the asset management
sector, conduct and governancein
firms, data exchange, cyber security
and financialinnovation.

Financial Conduct Authority
Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

Ourworkininputtingto the
development and implementation
of European legislation has

focused on arange of initiatives
affecting ourwoerk, suchasthe
finalisation of the Markets in
Financial Instruments Directive and
Regulation, Regulations on Market
Abuse, Benchmarks, Prospectuses,
and Packaged Retail and Insurance-
Based Investment Products (PRIIPs),
andthe Insurance Distribution
Directive, together with continuing
input to the EU Capital Markets
Union programme.

We have continuedto workclosely
with Eurcpeanregulators on broader
policy discussions, developing
regulatory standards, sharing our
reguiatory expertise and identifying
new and emerging issues. In June
2016, forexample, we hosted a
regulatory seminar for over 40
Europeanregulators to discuss
models for arisk-based approach
to supervision. We alsohcsted a
seminar on asset management and
financial stability issues in Aprilwith
participation frominternational
regulators, industry and academics.
We haveremained active inall of the
Eurcpean Supervisory Authorities -
particularly the European Securities
and Markets Authority (ESMA)
where our Chief Executive is the

UK member ofthe ESMA Board of
Supervisors and our staff participate
in nearly altESMA committees.

We are active members of the
International Organisation of
Securities Commissions (IQSCQ),
with our Chief Executive a permanent
IOSCO Boardmember We are
represented in all Policy Committees
andtaskforces of IOSCO. We chairthe
Committee on Asset Management
andvice-chair the Enforcement and
Exchange of Information Committee;
we also chair the Benchmarks task
force and vice-chair the Market
Conducttaskforce

Chapter 8
Working with our partners

69



Chapter 8
Working with our partners

70

Financial Conduct Authority
Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

We are a member of the Financial
Stability Board (FSB). Our Chairman
attends the FSB Plenary and the
Standing Commitiee on Supervisory
and Regulatory Cooperation. in
2016/17 we contributed tothe FSB's
work on asset management, conduct
and governance, shadow banking,
and technological innovation, in
particular FinTech.

We continue to closely engage
with many other international
organisaticns, including the:

International Association of
Insurance Supervisors

Financiai Action Task Force

QOrganisation for Economic
Cooperationand Development
(OECD)—-we currently chair the
G20-0OECD Task Force on Financial
Consumer Protection

« International Financial Consumer
Protection Network

«» European Banking Authority

- Europeaninsurance and
Occupational Pensions Authority

European Systermic Risk Board

In addition to our ongoing
engagement with a range of
international policy forums, we
continued to work with many other
regulators ona bilateral basis. In
2016/17 this ncluded meetings

by our senior executives inthe US,
Hong Kong, Singapore and China
among others, and we welcomed a
wide range of foreign delegations
from both estabiished and emerging
marketstothe FCA.

Statutory panels

We are required to consuit onthe
impact of our work with four statutory
panels. These panelsrepresent the
interests of consumers, practitioners,
smaller regulated firms and markets.
We also consult with the Listing
Authority Advisory Panel.

These panels play animportant role
Inboth advising and chaltenging us,
and bring a depth of experience,
support and expertise inidentifying
risks to the market and consumers
We consider their views when
develaping our policies and when
deciding and implementing other
regulatory interventions. Each
panel publishes its own annual
report lexcept the Listing Authority

Advisory Panel}.

The Consumer Panel

Thisrepresents the interests of
consumers, monitershow far we

are fulfiling our statutory objectives
withregard to consumers when
developing rules or pelicy and
provides us with advice and challenge.

The Practitioner Panel

The panelrepresents the interests
of practitioners It provides us with
input from the industry as awhole.

The Smaller Business
Practitioner Panel

Thisrepresents smaller regulated
firms, who may otherwise not have a
strongvoice in policy making.

The Markets Practitioner Pane!

This paneireflects the interests of
practitioners who are fikély tobe
affected by our functionsinvolving
markets.

The Listing Authority
Advisory Panel

This non-statutory panel advises us
on policy issues that affectissuers of
securities, and on policy regulation
proposals fromthe FCAlistings
function.
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Consumer organisations

Woe actively seekinsights from
consumers through a variety of
sources including consumer bodies,
our Contact Centre and the Financial
Services Consumer Panel. To enable
us to meet our consumer protection
objective, we undertake extensive
research to build our knowledge

of consumers and their needs. We
also carry out behaviouralresearch
and apply insights from behavioural
sciences inourwork, including
contributing to the G20-OECD

Task Force on Financial Censumer
Protection.

We continue towork closely with a
range of consumer organisations
across the UKtoensureour
regulationreflects real-life consumer
experiences, and our work inthis area
hasbeenrecegnised asbest practice
by the UK Regulators Network.

Qur consumer organisation network
includes:

Age UK
AdvicelJK
Alzheimer’s Society

Citizens Advice {Engtand aﬁd Wales,
Scotland, and Northern Ireland) ©

Christians Against Poverty
Fhe Consumer Council for Northern

Ireland ' ) .
The Financial Services Consumer Panel
Money Advice Scotland |,

Money Advice Trust
MoneySavingExpert

Scope

Shelter

StepChange

The Money Charity

Toynbee Hall

Which?

Young Scot

Financial Conduct Authority

Annual Repart and Accounts 2016/17

We engage with a growingrange of
other groups who work directly with
consumers, to help us spot emerging
issues. We also convene and attend
financial capability forums across
the UKto gainabetter picture of
grassroots consumer issues

This year we ran aninnovative project
toimprove our understanding of

the current practice and prevalence
of unauthorised lending. We would
usually survey firms and consumers
inamarket, butthisis notancption
where thelenders are deliberately
avoiding detecticnand consumers
are hardtoreach. Instead we worked
closely with the Local Government
fllegal Money Lending Teams in
Britain and the relevantbodies in
Northernireland. We buil ontheir
experience to identify known areas
of activity and used their contacts

to expand our networks and find
advisers with knowledge of lenders
and the consumers using them.

We used this preliminary work to
develop cur series of roundtables
across the UKinknownhotspots
of unauthorisedlending activity.
We hosted eight roundtables
around the country with over 70
peogple from over 50 organisations
dealing with consumers familiar
with unauthorisedlenders. We
alsoidentified a wider set of

over 150 contacts with potential
knowtedge in this area through our
UK consumer network and referrals
from roundtable participants. We
designed a questionnaire for them,
building onthe roundtable findings
to conselidate our understanding.

Fromthis, we built a picture of
consumers’ experience and have
useditto strengthen both our
understanding of credit markets and
of any unintended consequences of
our interventions

We know the rescurces of many
consumer organisations are
increasingly stretched. Cur
partnership team has developeda
range of alternative ways for these
bodies to provide their expertinput
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to our consultation and discussion
papers, market studies and thematic
reviews. Forexample, weruna
secondment programme which
puts our staff within consumer
organisations. This givesthese
organisations additional rescurces
and ensures our staffbring back

a deeper knowledge of consumer
Issues and behaviours. This year,
we have seconded staff to Citizens
Advice, Age UK and the Consumer
Councilfor Northernlreland.

We have completed significant work to
understand the needs of consumers
invulnerable circumstances and the
needs of consumers struggling te
accessfinancial services. Our Mission
highlights these as areas wherewe will
continue towork with firms to make
sure they treat customers fairly when
theytake business decisions that affect
thefinancially vuinerable or those trying
to access financial services.
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The Financial Conduct Authority's business mode!

The FCA regulates the financial services industry in the UK, supervising the conduct of over 56,000 firms, including
more than 18,000 firms we regulate prudentially that are not covered by the Prudential Regulation Authority.

Inaccordance with FSMA, the FCA seeks to maintain adeguate reserves in order to meetits Ongoing Regulatery
Activity. Over the last two years the FCA has retained its surpluses before pensionsto improve its netliabilities position
from €28 4mto €1 3m{Table 8) The driver for the remaining accumulated deficitis the Final Salary Pension deficit

Table 1: FCA Surplus for the year

2017 2016

£m £m

Over recovery against budget 18.2 174
Additional fees collected 55 21
Add back management to financial accounting pension adjustment 248 150
Net Scope Change income/(costs) 81 (242}
FCA surplus for the year before pensions 56.7 10.3
Net actuarial losses for the year in respect of the final salary pensicn scheme (65.3) (6.5}
FCA {loss)/surplus for the year (8.8) 38

Fees and otherincome

Feeincome: the FCA does notreceive funding from the UK government as it funds the cost of delivering its statutory
objectives by raising fees from the firms it reguiates. It 1s given the powers to raise fees under FSMA _Fees are raised
to cover the FCA's budgeted Ongoing Regulatery Activity (ORA) whichrepresents the net costs of the FCA's core
operating activities after offsetting Other income

Alsoincludedin fee income are application fees, other regulatory income and scope change (set-up cost) recoveries
Under certain circumstances, for example when legislationis introduced by Parliament, there may be changes to the
scope of the FCA's regulated activitizs which can include new responsibilities. Material activities resulting from this
scope change are controlled and reported separately from ORA sc they are Individually identifiable from a cost and
fee perspective. These activities areincluded as part of the cost of ORA only when the scope change activity has
been fully embedded into ongoing responsibilities

Otherincome: comprises income from publications and training services, recovery of costs incurred by the FCA
for engaging skilled persons to carry out a s166 review, interest on bank deposits, sundry ncome, and income for
providing levying and collection services for other regulatory bodies.
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Penalities: Whenthe FCA levies penalties (on a firm or an individual} following disciplinary action, the amount the FCA
is entitled to retain on behalf of its fee payers is imited to the retained enforcement costs for that financial year as
agreed with the Treasury. This amount is returned to fee payers through reduced fees in the following financial year.
The extent ofthe rebate s therefore dependent onthe level of penaltiesissued during the previous financial year
The FCAvretained £46.4m in penalties in 2016/17 (2016: £46.3m) relating to enforcement costs, these penalties will be
rebated tofirms inthe 2017/18 fees

Penalties collected by the FCA over and above the agreed enforcement costs are notretaned by the FCA rather they
are passed over to the Exchequer.

The Payment Systems Regulator’s (PSR} business model

The PSRisresponsibie for requlating the main interbank payment systems Bacs, CHAPS, Cheque & Credit, Faster
Payments Scheme LINK and Northernlreland Cheque Clearing as well as Mastercard and Visa Europe, the two
largest card payment systems in the UK.

The PSRis co-located inthe FCA's building at Canary Wharf andis operaticnally supported by the FCA through a
Provision of Services Agreement (PSA) with the aim of fully maximising value from the FCA's existing resources and
infrastructure thus enabling the PSR to operate efficiently and effectively.

The FCAIs given powers to levy fees to recover the PSR's costs under the Financial Services (Banking Reform] Act 2013,

Analysis of performance during the year

The financial statements have been prepared on a consolidated basis and include the PSR,

Results for the year ended 31 March 2017 {Statement of Comprehensive Income}

Table 2: Results for the year

2017 2016  Increase/ldecrease)
£m £m £Em
Feeincome 5439 5171 26.8
Ctherincome 224 365 (14.1)
Totailnceme 566.3 553.6 12.7
Staff costs (3219} (324.1) (2.2)
Administrative costs (187.7) (219.2} (31.5)
FCA surplus for the year before pensionlosses 56.7 10.3 46.4
Net actuarial losses for the year in respect of (65.3) (6.5) (58.8)
the defined benefit pension scheme
FCA {loss)/surplus {8.6) 3.8 {12.4}
PSR {loss)/surplus {0.6} 17.5 (18.1}
Group {loss)/surplus {9.2} 21.3 {30.5)

The Group made aloss of £9 2m for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016 surplus of £21 3m}. The movement of

£30 5mwas driven by

1. Anactuarialioss of £65 3m{(2016: foss of £6.5my principally as a resutt ofthe reduced discount rate used to calculate the

defined benefit pensionliability.

2. Af18 Imyvarianceintheresults ofthe PSR, duetcarebate of £5.0missued tofee payersin 2017 relating to an operating
surplusin 2016 Prioryear alsoincludedthe receipt of £12.3m fees nrelation to set-up costs incurredin 2015
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Partly offset by:
3. AE£33 6mreductionincosts, primarily mIT and 5166 ('skilled person') professional fee expenses.

4. Af12 7mincreaseinfeeincome predominantly due to thefirst year of consumer credit

Feeincome

Group feeincome increasedyear onyear by £8.9m as detailed below (Table 3), with the FCA fees increasing by
£26.8m, and areductionin PSR feeincome cf £179m.

Tabie 3: Fee income

2017 2016 | increasef{decrease}

£m €m £m

Ongoing Regulatory Activity budget 502.9 479.0 238
Recovery of scope change activities 16.4 26 138
Consumer credit fees - 104 (104
Annual Funding Requirement 518.3 492.0 27.3
Additional Ongoing Regulatory Activity fees 5.5 21 34
Additional scope change recoveries 1.5 . 02 13
Application fees G4 225 (13.1}
Special project fees - ’ 82 03 75
FCA feeincome 543.9 5171 26.8
PSR feeincome 1G.2 281 (179)
Group feeincome 554.1 545.2 8.9

Note: Consumer credit fees of £10 4mare now included in the ORA budget as part of ongoing responsibilities
The FCAfeeincomeincreased from £517 1mto £543 Smdueto

1. Af27.3mincrease inthe Annual Funding Requirementduetoa £13.8mincrease intotal scope change recovenes,
of which £7 7mrelates to the first year recovery of £62m of consumer credit set-up costs, which are to be recovered
overupto 10years. The remaining scope recoveriesin 2017 relate to implementation of the Senior managers and
certificationregime (SM&CR) in the Banking Sector and the Mortgage Credit Directive. Scope change activities are
absorbedinto the as the additional responsibilities are integrated with existing activities Theremainingincreaseinthe
Annual Funding Requirement was entirely due to the impact of a full year of consumer credit.

2. Specialproject feesincreased £7.9m duetotheincrease of ring fencing activities during the year
3. Applicationfees declined £13.1m as the majority of consumer credit applications were processedin 2016.

The PSR fee income declined from £28 1min 2016 to £10.2m in 2017 as the prior year fees included the recovery of
setup costsforthe PSRand £5mrebateissued to fee payersin 2017 relating to an operating surplusin 2016

Otherincome

Group otherincomereduced by £14 Im from £34.8m to £20 8m, the largest contributor to this being a decling in
'income’ from skilled personsreportof £13 3m This 'income' represents a recovery of costsincurred by the FCA
forengaging skilled personstocarry cut a sl66 review The costs incurred by the FCA (recognisedin administrative
costs as professional fees} are recovered from the firmin question Overall this has a net zero impact on the profit or
loss of the FCA.
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Total operating costs

Grouptotal operating costs (Table 4} reducedby £33 4mor 6% during the year from £552.2mto £518.8m. Thiswas primarily
drivenby areductionin FCA administrative costs, whichfellby £31 3m {14%), while staff costs alsofellby £2 2m (0.7%).

Table 4: Total operating costs

2017 2016 | Increase/({decrease)

Em £m Em

Staff costs (321.9) (324.1) (2.2)
Administrative costs : (187 7) {219.2) (31.5)
FCA operating costs {509.6) {543.3) {33.7)
PSR operating costs 9.2} (8.9} 03
Group operating costs (518.8) (552.2) {33.4)

Group staff costs: The average staff nurmbers increased during the year by 55 (1 8%) to 3,635. Abusiness drive
to reduce the use of short-term resources {temporary and contractor staff) who typically incur higher costs than
permanent employees drove down the staffcosts for the organisation.

Table 5; Average staff numbers

2017 2016 | Increase/(decrease)
Supervision 1,332 1,294 28
Enforcement & Market Oversight 670 656 14
Strategy & Competition 435 411 24
Operations and Central Services 926 871 55
FCA full-time equivalent employees 3,363 3,232 131
PSR full-time equivalent employees 58 a4 14
Group full-time equivalent employees 3,421 3,276 145
Group shorttermresource 214 254 (80)
Group staff numbers 3,635 3,570 65

Group administrative costs: fell year onyearby £31.7mor 14.3% from £221. 5m to £189.8m (Chart 1 below), due to:

+ Areductionin FCAIT costs of £20.4m {23 39%), mainly due to underspend in projects together with operational
efficiencies. The T spendislargely drivenby the necessary IT change resulting fromlegislation.

- AreductioninFCA professional fees of £8.8m (20.7%) driven by a decreaseinfees forslégreviews of £13.3m

Chart 1: Group Administrative Costs

21 23

| IT costs

M Professional fees

T costs

¥ Professional fees

874 Accommodation, office. travel
traning and other

870 Accommeodation, office. travel
traning and other

2016
£221.5m

M Depreciation, amortisation and
imparments

B Psr

Il Depreciation. amortisation and
Impairments

| PSR

449
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The FCA budgeted for ORA costs of £502.9m inthe year to 31 March 2017 and levied its fees on this basis. The actual
net ORA expenditure was lower than budget by £18 2m.

Table 6: FCA ORA Budget vs. Actual Expenditure

2017 2016

£m £m

ORA hudget 5029 479.0
ORA net actuals 4847 4616
Over recovery 18.2 174

The £18 2m over-recovery against budget was driven by lower externalenforcement case costs, reduced staff costs
together with slower than anticipated recruitment across the organisation, as well as savings inIT and project spend.

The over-recovery willbe retained to reduce the accumulated deficit and to help meet the move and dual-running

costs anticipatedin 2018/19 when the FCA willre-locate toits new offices in Stratford.

The difference between the accounting surplus [before the actuarial losses of the final salary pension scheme) of
£56.0mandthe ORA overrecovery of £18 2mis due to the financial accounting pension adjustment, the additional

ORA feesrecovered and the net scope change recoveries (as'set out in Table 1},

Table 7 reconciles the FCA's actual gross ORA expenditure of £524 7m (£484.7m net of otherincomel toits operating
costs, as set cutinthe financial statements, of £509 6m

Table 7: Operating costs

2017 2016 Increase/{decrease)
£m £m £€m
ORA actuals 4847 461.6 231
Add - Otherincome 40.0 46.9 6.9
Gross ORA actuals 524.7 508.5 16.2
Financial accounting adjustments:
Pensiocn scheme : {24.9) {150) {9.9)
Scope change costs:
Consumer credit - 374 {37.4)
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 61 7.3 {1.2)
Parliamentary Commission on Banking Standards 17 40 (2.3
Other 20 11 05
Total scope change costs 9.8 49.8 {40.0}
FCA operating costs 509.6 543.3 {33.7)
PSR operating costs net of intercompany adjustments 9.2 89 03
Group operating costs 518.8 552.2 (33.4)

The keyreconciling tems betweenthe FCA's ORA and operatingcosts are:

» Adifference between the accounting charge and the cash costs of £24 Smrelating to the pension scheme

= Scopechange costs of £9.8m, pnimarily relating to Markets inFinancial Instruments Directive ! (MIFIG 1)
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Financial position
Table 8: Movement in the Group Accumulated Deficit

FCA Total Group

ORA Scope FCANet | Pension Accumulated Accumulated

Reserves | Change | Liabiiities Deficit Deficit | PSR Deficit

Reserves £m €m £m £m Em £€m €m
At 1 April 2015 23.5 (51.9) (28.4) {145.5) {174.0) | (11.5) {185.5}
PSR Recovery J - - - - - 123 12.3
Over recovery against budget 17.4 N 17.4 - 17.4 52 22.8
Additional fees 21 - 21 - 2.1 - 2.1
Scope change {net costs) - (24.2)| . (242) - (24.2) - (24.2)
Pension movement - - - 85 85 - 8.5
At 31 March 2016 43.0 (76.1) {33.1} {137.1) {170.2) 6.0 {164.2)
Over/lunder) recavery against budget 1821 - - 18.2 - 182 (086 17.6
Additional fees | s - 55 - 55 - 5.5
Scope change (netincome) - 81 —EST‘ - 81 - 8.1
Pension movement - - - {40.4) (40.4} - {40.4)
At 31 March 2017 66,7 (68.0) (1.3) {172.5) {178.8) 5.4 {173.4)

1 PSR - Reserves balance of 1 Omto beretained with £4 4mreturred to fee payers

Chart 2: Group Accumulated Deficit

100
£

(50} .
1100) {115.9) o .
(200) ————
{250)
(300}

31 March 2014 31 March 2015 31 March 2016 31March 2017
Bl PSR Pension Defict M Scope Change
B ORAReserves — Consoldated Accumulated Deficit

The increase of £9.2min the accumulated deficit from £164.2mto £173 4m at 31 March 2017 is driven by the £40 4m
increase inthe pension deficit following the current year actuarial ioss of £65.3m, in part offset by the currentyear
contribution of £24.9m. The pensionliabilities will not crystallise for many years and the approach to managing and
funding the pension deficit is explained in Note 13 to the financial statements.

This adverse movementis partly mitigated by anincrease in ORAreserves of £23 7mdueto an £18 2Zmunderspend
against budget (Table 6) inthe year, together with an over collection of fees of £5.5m (Table 1). Net scope change
recoveries of €8 1malso reduced the overall adverse movementinreserves, Thescope change deficitis the
consequence of the FCA funding scope change costs in advance of recovery ofthose costs from the relevant firms. As
at 31 March 2017 the FCAhad incurred cumulative scope change costs of £68.0m (2016 £76.1m) the majority of which
reiate to the setup of the FCA's Consumer Credit functionwhich are to be recovered over aperiod of up to 10 years.
Table 9 below details the movements that resulted inthe net recovery of €8 1m during the current financial year
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Table 9: Reconciliation of scope change costs
Mortgage
Consumer Credit ‘
Credit MIFID? PCBS? Directive SM&CR? Other* Total
Scope Change £m £m £m £m £m £fm £fm
At 1April 2015 44.9 1.0 2.6 0.7 - 2.7 51.8
2016 costs 374 : 7.3 140 11 - 01 49.9
2016 recoveries {22.9} - - - - (28) {25.7}
At 31 March 2016 59.4 8.3 6.6 1.8 - - 76.1
2017 costs - 61 17 03 08 093 9.8
2017 recoveries (77} - (7.2) (3.0 - - (17.9}
At 31 March 2017 51.7 14.4 1.1 (0.9) 0.8 0.9 68.0

1 Marketsin Financial Instrurments Directive
2 Parliamentary Comrrussion on Banking Standards
3 Senior Managers and Certification Regime extension to allFSMA authorsed persons

4 This relates to Claims Management {£0 3m), Packaged Retall Investment Product Review (FO 3mj and EU Benchmarks (£0 Im}

Group cash and cash equivalents

Oftheyearendcash positionof £196 4m (2016. £232 2m), £13.3m (2016 £7.6m) was cash belonging to the PSR and
£46.4m (2016. £46.3m) relating to penalties collected in 2016/17 which will be rebated to firms in 2017/18 fees.

Penalties collected on behaif of the Exchequer

Penalties of £189 2m {2016- £877.2m)were collected, of which £148 7m (2016: £843.1m) were paid to the Exchequer.
No penalties wereissued for the PSR

Principal risks and uncertainties

Forboththe FCAandthe PSR, the mostimportant risk is the failure to meet their respective statutory objectives
Delivery of their statutory cbjectivesrelies not only entheir ability to influence the culture and conduct of the
industry they regulate but also on their own internal cperational environment and performance.

FCA External Requlatoryrisk: Thisis the riskto the FCA's three operational objectives arising from the activities

and conduct of the firms and markets the FCAregulates, which could cause markets nottowork in the interest of
consumers, harm the integrity of thefinancial system or leave consumers with aninadequate degree of protection.
The FCA's key externalrisks and issues are set outin more detailin the FCA's Business Plan 2017/18, which
incorporates the Risk Outlock. The FCA s focused ontaking a strategic approach torisk, placing emphasis on sector
and market-wide analysis. This putsthe FCAn a strong position to pricritise itsresources and efforts in order to
mitigate those risks.

The FCA'sbusiness plan sets out the mostimportantissuesineach of the sectors as well as six cross-sector
priorities as foliows.

Firms’ culture and governance —promoting the right cuftures, behaviours and effective governance and effective
governance across the industry to prevent harm

« Financial crime and anti-money laundering—seeking to make the UK financial system a hostile environment for
criminal money

- Promoting competition and innovation —tocking to sustain aregulatory environment where consumers and firms can
grasp the opportunities of competition while maintaining consumer protection and market integrity

« Technological change andresilience —aiming to ensure that new technologies are safely adopted and existing
technology and systems become more resilient, thus safeguarding consumers and markets, and buillding confidence in
the effectiveness of financialtechnology.
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+ Treatment of existing customers —pursuing further improvements in competition and the basic standards afforded to
consurmers

- Consumer vulnerability and access to financial services — seeking fair treatment for consumers

PSR External Regulatoryrisk

The PSR's key external risk is that payment systems will not work well for the pecple and organisations that use them.
The PSR's key risks are set out below:

+ Payment systemsare notopen, transparent and accessible
- Paymentsystems are notfast, easy to use, secure, reliable and do not provide value for money
« Paymentsystemsarenot responsNe to current and future needs and do not promote innovation and competition

+ Noimprovementin the representation of the peopie and organisations that rely on services provided by payments
systems

» Payments systems do not functioninthe bestinterests of the pecple and organisations that use them and the services
they support

- Consumers are not satisfied with the quality and outcomes of the PSR’ swork

FCA and PSR: Key environmental and operational risks

Environmental risks: which include risks associated with the operating environment for the FCA and the PSR—in
particular, political, legisiative or socio-demographic change. Whilst itis set out in statute that both the FCA and the
PSR are operationally independent organisations, they remain subject te changes inlegislation and scope by the UK
Government that canultimately affect the size, activities and complexity of both organisations. The Government's
decision totrigger Article 50, settingintrain the UK leaving the European Union, may impact the scope and scale of
the FCA's activities from April 2019.

Internal operational risks: Like any organisation, the FCA and PSR face significant operational risks which may result
infinancialloss, disruption or hoth. For the FCA and PSR these risks are summarised below:

» Peoplerisks: including risks assoclated with the capacity of our staff to deliver our business plan and the changing
capability needs of the organisation such as cyber security and data analytics expertise, and risks around staff morale
and engagement. The FCA and PSR continue to mitigate these risks as part of their People Strategy:

« Governance risks: including inadequate data and management information or failed internal processes and controls.
Theintroduction of the Senior Manager & Certification Regime (SM&CR] internally aims to strengthen governance,
controls and decision making; and

- Systemsrisks: including the availabllity, resilience, recoverability and security of core IT systems. Cyber risk continues to
be a major focus for both organisations, with a significant increase in investment, as we respond to the rapidly evolving
threat level.

Public confidence risk: which includes risks which could constrain the FCA's and PSR'’s ability to deliver against their
objectives, due to diminished leveis of public trust, & reduced ability te influence key stakeholders and/or areduction
in the organisations’ credibility and standing as effective regulators. This could result from inappropriate judgements,
decisions and actions taken {or inaction) which may be perceived by stakeholders as inappropriate; inconsistent or
Inaccurate messages being communicated externally; and clearly defining the FCA's and PSR's objectives and remit
so that public expectations are set and managed appropriately.

As we have set outin the Strategic Report, value for money is also a key area of focus for both organisations and we
willcontinue to embed our approachtoit.
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Going concern and key financialrisks

The directors have considered the FCA's Business Plan 2017/18 and the keyfinancial risks and uncertainties in
assessingthe FCAasagoingconcernas setout below

1. Liquidity risk: can be assessed bylooking at the following four key areas.

a. the FCA's currentliquidity position reflects the fact thatit has been funding (il curmulative scepe change costs for
consumer credit (£51.7m) which are beingrecovered at circa £6.2m perannum, and (i) capital expenditure over the
useful economic lives of the assets rather than when the expenditure s incurred. The carryingamount of assets as yet
unrecovered through feesis £104.5m at 31 March 2017

b. thetriennialvaluation ofthe FCA Pension Planresuitedin additional deficit funding coststo the FCA

‘c. the FCA's strong fee covenants are underpinned by the statutory powers granted to it toraise fees tofund tsand the
PSR'srequlatory activities. Of the firms onwhich the FCA currently levies its fees, the top 100 are responsible for 54.8%
ofthose fees (2016 55.5%),

d. the FCAiscurrently wellplaced from a iquidity perspective, with cash deposits of £179.9m at 31 March 2017 and an
avallable overdraft faciity which has been increased from £50mto £150m to meet the costs for the move to Stratford

2. Creditrisk: falls ntc two main categories

a. thecollectionof feesfromthe financial services industry the FCA has a strongrecord interms of collecting fees with
bad debt expenence averagingless than 0.2% of fees receivable over thelast three years

b. theplacement ofthose fees as deposits withvarious counter-parties: the FCA only invests with financial institutions
that among other things, meet its minimum credit rating as assigned by creditrating agencies. The FCA also spreadsits
deposits across a number of counter-parties to avoid the concentration of credit risk.

3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimate Uncertainty that havebeen considered by the
directors are the estimated useful economiciives of internally developed software and the assurnptions underpinning
the pension deficit as set out in Note 13 to the Financial Statements

Having regard tc the above, itis the directors’ opinionthat the FCAis well placed to manage any possible future
funding requirements pertaining to its regulatory activity and has sufficient resources to continue its business for
the foreseeable future,

The directers therefore conclude that using the going concern basis is appropriate in preparing its financial

statements as there are no material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
aboutthe FCA's ability to continue as agoing concern.

By Order ofthe Board

S Pearce O[W\AAAW

Secretary :

22 June 2017
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Directors' report and Corporate
governance statement .

Directors’ report
The directors present their report for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The directors use the Strategic Report to explain how they have performed their duty to promote the success of the
Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006

Directors’ responsibilities inrespect of the Annual Report and Accounts

The directors are responsibie for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financiafl statements foreach financial year. Under that{aw the
directers have elected to prepare financial statements in accordance with International Financiai Reporting
Standards, as adopted by the European Union. The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the directors are required to.

» select suitable accounting poiicies and then apply them consistenttly
» makejudgements and estimates that arereasonable and prudent

» state whether applicable International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union, have been
followed and any material departures disclosed and explained inthe financial statements

« preparethe financial statements onthe going concern basis, unless itisinappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that show, with reasonable accuracy, the
company's financial pesition and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are alsc responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and for taking reasonable steps to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

As far asthe directors are aware.

+ thereisnorelevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware

« thedirectors have taken ail the steps they ought to make themselves aware of any refevant audit information and
establish that the auditor 1s aware of that information

Thedirectors are responsible for maintaining and ensuring the integnty of the corporate and financial information

cnthe company'swebsite. UK legislation which applies to preparing and distributing financial statements may aiffer
from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Qualifying indemnity provisions

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the purposes of section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 were in force
during the course of the financial year ended 31 March 2017 and remain in force at the date of thisreport. '

Auditor

The Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (FSMA) reguires the Company's accounts to be examined, certified and
reported on by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Accordingly the National Audit Office was auditor throughout
the year

By Order of the Board
5Pearce
Secretary

22 June 2017
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Corporate governance statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

Introduction
This section of the report explains the Board's composition and governance structure. It alsc explams the Board's
role, its performance, ongoing professional development and succession planning.

We are an independent public body. funded entirely by fees from the firms that we regulate We are accountable to
the Treasury, which is responsible for the UK's financial system, and to Parliament. The Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000 (FSMA), which defines cur work and purpose, requires us to meet and consult with various stakeholders We
work with consumer groups, trade associations and professional bodies, our statutory panels, domestic regulators,
EU legislators and a wide range of other stakeholders.

We are open and accountable to the public through cur Annual Report and our Annual Public Meeting. We report
annually to the Treasury on how far we have met our regulatory objectives and are also subject to detailed scrutiny by
the Treasury Committee.

FSMA requires us to have regardto generally accepted principles of good corporate governance. Our Board is
committed to meeting high standards of corporate governance and thisreport sets cut howwe are governedin line

with the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code). The Board considers that we comply with the
Code as far asis appropriate

The Role of the Beoard, Board committees and executive cornmittees

The Boardis the FCA's governing body. It sets our strategic aims and ensures that we have the necessary financial
and human resources to allow us tc meet our statutory objectives

The Board's role includes:

a. Decidingwhich matters it should make decisions on, including exercising our legislative functions and other matters as
setoutinthe Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board

b. Makingstrategicdecisions about our future operation.

c. Overseeingthe executive management of our day-to-daybusiness.

d. Setting appropriate policies to manage risks ta our aperations and the achievement of our regulatory objectives.
e. Seekingregularassurance that our system of internal controlis effective in rmanaging risks.

f. Maintaining a sound system of financial contrel.

g. Takingspecific decisions that are notincluded inthe Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board, which the Board or
executive managementconsider are novel, contentious or so significant that they should take them

h. Maintaining high-level refationships with cther organisations and authorities. Theseinclude Government, the
Financial Services Compensation Scheme, the Financial Ombudsman Service, the Money Advice Service , the Bank of
England, the Prudential Regulation Authority, and the Consumer, Practitioner, Smaller Business Practitioner, Markets
Practitioner and Listing Authority Advisory Panels.

k. Establishing and maintaining the accountability for decisions made by committees of the Board and executive
management.

The Board is supported by its principal committees, shown inthe chart on the next page Membership of these
committeesisgivenin Table 3
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Our website gives more details on our governance arrangements under ‘Corporate governance’ We provide details
ofthe committees’ activities later nthis report.

QOur executive committees play an important rolein our overall corporate governance. The Executive Committeeis
chaired by the Chief Executive [tis our most senior executive decisionmaking body and discusses issues from across
the FCA it oversees our strategy, direction and activity in general, including delivery of our annual Business Plan It
moniters our direction and performance within the strategic framework set by the Board The Executive Committee
comprises the Chief Exacutive, the Executive Director of Supervision — Investment, Wholesale and Specialists, the
Executive Director of Supervision —Retail and Authorisations, the Executive Director of Enforcement and Market
Oversight, the Executive Director of Strategy and Competition and the Chief Operating Officer. General Counsel and
the Director of Risk and Compliance Oversight attend in an advisory capacity.

Beneaththe Executive Committee are a series of sub-committees. These include the:
+ Executive Diversity Committee - whichleads cur diversity and inclusionagenda

+ Executive Operations Committee - which monitors our economic and efficient use of resources, operational risk
management, people strategy and cuiture and operationalresilience

« Executive Regulatory Issues Committee - which takes decisions on regulatory issues, such as firm, sector or product
specificissues

- Policy Steering Committee - which maintains oversighit of our policy initiatives
The Senior Managers and Cert/fication Regime (SM&CR), which came into force in March 2016, does not formally
apply tothe FCA However, as best practice, we have set out a formal description of the core responsibilities of

rmembers of our Board, Executive Committee and those carrying out Senior Management functions. Qur website has
more details onhow we apply the SM&CR to ourselves under 'About Us'.

Members of our Board

FSMA sets out the requirements for the membership of our Board The Board currently comprises;
» the Chairand the Chief Executive appointed by the Treasury

» the BankofEngland Deputy Governor for prudential regulation

- two non-executive directors appointed jointly by the Secretary of State and the Treasury

- oneexecutive director and five non-executive directors appointed by the Treasury

All non-executive appointments adhere to the Code of Practice issued by the Office of the Commuissioner for

Public Appointments.
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Table 1 gives the dates of Board members' appeintments

Table 1
Expiry of current term / date
Name Qriginal appointment date - membership ceased
Andrew Bailey!
1/07/16 30/06/21
Executive Director - Chief Executive
Catherine Bradley
. 2/08/14 1/08/17
Non-Executive Director .
AmeliaFletcher?
1/04/13 31/03/19
Non-Executive Director
Bradiey Fried .
R 1/04/16 31/03/19
Nen-Executive Director
John Griffith-Jones
X 1704713 31/3/18
Chair
Baroness Ho
99 ; 1/04/16 31/03/19
Non-Executive Director
Ruth Kelly
i . 1/04/16 31/03/19
Non-Executive Director
Tracey McDermott ’
X 1/04/13 30/06/16
Executive Director — Acting Chief Executive
Jane Platt?
1/04/13 31/03/19
Non-Executive Director
Nick Stace
i 1/04/17 31/03/20
Non-Executive Director
Sam Woods
Bank of England Deputy Governor for prudential 1/07/16 Not applicable
regulation
Christopher Woolard
. . ' . 1/08/15 31/07/18
Executive Director — Director of Strategy & Competition

1 Andrew Balley previously served as a non-executive director between 1 April 2013 and 30 June 2016 due to tis former position as Bank of England Deputy Governor
for prudential regulation

2 Reappointed for an additional three-year term from 1 Apri 2016

John Griffith-Jones and Andrew Bailey were appointed as Chair and Chief Executive respectively, each foraterm of
five years. All other directors were initially appointed for terms of three years. Amelia Fletcher and Jane Platt were
eachre-appointed fora further term of three years with effect from 1 Apri{ 2016.

During the reporting pericd the Board's membership changed as follows:

« Tracey McDermottwas acting Chief Executive until a permanent successor was in post. Ms McDermottleft the Board on
20 June 2016

» Andrew Bailey was appointed ChiefExecutive on 1 July 2016

+ Sam Woods was appointed tothe Board on 1 July 2016 due to his position as the Bank of Englang Deputy Governor for
prudential regulation, in accordance with the requirements of FSMA

+ Nick Stace was appointed as a non-executive director with effect from 1 April 2017.
Amajority of Board members are non-executive directors {NEDs) and bring extensive and varied experience to the
Boardand Commitiees Baroness Hoggwas appointed Senior Independent Diractor (SID) with effect from

1 Aprif 2016,

The Board wants to ensure it has a diverse mermbership. [t pays particular attention in the recruitment process
toensure it has a variety of members with the appropriate balance of relevant skills and experience. Our female
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membership s above the 33% target figure for the boards of UKFTSE 350 companies as proposed by the Hampton-

Alexander review.

The executive members of the Board have continuous employment contracts withthe FCA, subject te the following
notice periods (as set out intable 2):

Table 2
Director Notice period
Andrew Bailey 6 mcnths
Christophar Woolard & months

Detalls of committee membership during the year can be found intable 3.

Table 3
External Risk and Remuneration Nominations
Audit Committee Strategy Cornmittee Committee Oversight Committee | Committee
Ruth Kelty {Chair) Jane Platt (Chair) Baroness Hogg (Chair) John Griffith-Jones John Griffith-Jones
{Chair) (Chair)

Catherine Bradley Amelia Fletcher John Griffith-Jones Catherine Bradley Catherine Bradley

Bradley Fried Ruth Kelly Amelia Fletcher Baroness Hogy Amelia Fletcher

Jane Platt Bradley Fried Christopher Woolard Bradiey Fried
Ruth Kelly
Barcness Hogg
Jane Platt

Board meetings and activities of the Board

Thereis aclear division of responsibility between the running of the Board and the executive running of the
organisation. John Griffith-Jones, as Chair, leads the Board and ensures its effectiveness, while the Chief Executive
isresponsible for implementing the strategy agreed by the Board, the leadership of the organisation and managing it
within the authorities delegated by the Board

The Board has a formaischedule of matters reserved toit, and meets regularly in order to discharge its duties
effectively. It held eleven scheduled meetings during the year, including a two-day strategy meeting, and held three

additionalmeetings to dealwith specific matters which required attention between the scheduled meetings.

The Board committees also met frequently during the year.
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Table 4 provides details of all the Board and committee meetings and attendance

Table 4
Scheduled | Additional External Risk
Board Board Remuneration | Nominations | Audit and Strategy | Oversight
Name Meetings Meetings! | Committee Committee |Committee |Committee |Committee
Andrew Bailey 11/11 3/3
Catherine Bradley 10/11 3/3 6/6 4/4 6/6
Amelia Fletcher 11/11 1/3 6/6 4/6 4/4
Bradley Fried 11/11 3/3 5/6 5/6 34
Baroness Hogg 9/11 213 5/6 6/6 6/6
John Griffith-Jones 11/11 3/3 6/6 6/6 6/6
Tracey McDermott 3/3 2/2
Jane Platt 9/11 3/3 5/6 4/4 4/4
Ruth Kelly 3/11 3/3 5/6 4/4 3/4
Sam Woods 7/8 0/1
Christopher Woclard 11/11 3/3 5/6

1 Additional to those scheduled at the start of the year

During the year, the non-executive directors met privately, both with and without the Chair and without members of
the executive present.

The Chair and Company Secretary ensure that the Board's agendas reflect our priorities and review papers before
they are circulated to members to ensure that informationis accurate and clear. Papers for Board and committee
meetings are normally Circulated one week before meetings. :

Committee chairs report to the Board after each committee meeting.

Board members rigorously challenge each other on strategy, perfermance, responsibility and accountability to
ensure that the Board's decisions are robust.

The Board addressed many issues during the year The principal areas of activity included:

Strategy and Policy
+ approvingthe Missicn statement

« reviewing market studies and analysis, including Sector Views

approving the strategy and business plan

+ approving major policy initiatives, such as the PPl deadline and campaign and capping pension early exit charges

assessingthe potentialimpact of the UK's withdrawal from the EU

- monitoring the progress of the Financial Advice Market Review

.

approving the FCA's communications strategy
+ approving and 1ssuing rules and guidance

Governance
+ reviewing the applicaticn of the Senior Managers and Certification Regime tothe FCA

- implementing recommendations of the Board effectivenessreview

*

reviewing the governance arrangements of the FCA and the PSR

reviewing the terms of reference of the Board committees

* approving major expenditure
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Monitoring performance
« reviewing the financial performance of the organisation, the achieverment of its statutory objectives and progress
againstits business plan

+ approvingits 2017/18 budget and fee allocation
+ approving the Annual Reportand Accounts

- reviewing the financial performance and approving the budget and business plans of the Payment Systems Regulator,
Financial Ombudsman Service, Money Advice Service andthe Financial Services Compensation Scheme.

+ assessing the outcomes of external surveys of the FCA's performance
« considering the annual report of the Complaints Commissioner

internal control and risk management
« discussingsignificant and emergingrisks

+ reviewingthe effectiveness ofinternal control andrisk management systems
+ reviewinglesscons-learnedreviews

More detail of the Board's activities during the year can be found in the minutes of Board meetings which are
published on cur website.

Company Secretary and independent advice

Each director has access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who advises the Board onall
corporate governance matters and ensures the Board follows appropriate procedures. The Company Secretaryis
also responsible for providing access to external professional advice for directors, if required.

tn general under FSMA, the FCA has the benefit of an exernption fromliability in damages for anything done or
omitted inrelation o the exercise or purported exercise of its statutory functions, provided that such acts or
omissions are in good faith. This is supplemented with indemnities given by the FCA for the protection of

individual employees, including directors. Accordingly, the FCA does not currently purchase Directors and Officers
Liability Insurance. ’

Succession

The Board considers that all of the non-executive directers bring strong independent oversight and continue to
demonstrate independence However, the Board recognises the recommended term withinthe Code and is mindful
of the need for suitable succession.

Succession planning remains a key agenda item for the Board and through 1ts Nominations Committee is able to
monitor the skills and experience of Board members and identify where gaps exists to facilitate engagement with the
Treasury onfuture appcintments.

Boardinduction andtraining

Cnjoining the Board, Directors are given background information describing the FCA and our activities. They

are given an induction pack whichincludes information on our governance arrangements, the Board's roles and
responsibilities, its committees and officers and other relevant information. We also arrange structured meetings
with arange of key pecple across the FCA to ensure directors have a thorough induction.

Members of the Board also receive ongoing professional development briefings onrelevantissues. During the year
the Chairman met with the non-executive directors to review their performance.
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The Board programme includes regular briefings from management and informal meetings which increase the
non-executive directors’ understanding of the business and the sector.

Board effectiveness review

External reviews of Board effectiveness are commissioned every two years. Thelast external review was undertaken
inJune 2015 and the findings reported In the 2015/16 Annual Report. Accordingly in March 2017, the Board agreed to
undertake a further review in the summer of 2017.

inintervening years the Board conductsinternal effectiveness reviews. Thelastinternal review was undertakenin 2016.

Conflicts of interests

All directors are required to declare relevant interests and where any potential conflict of interest arose during the
year the Board took appropriate steps to manage it. The Company Secretary maintains aregister of interests.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The'Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and providing assurance to the Board on certain matters including
the effectiveness of our internal controis, our operationairisk management framework and mitigation strategies, the
integrity of the financial statements in the annual accounts and the statements that relate to financial controls and
operational risk! and for oversight of the external audit process.

The Audit Committee consists entirely of non-executive directors.

During 2016/17, the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities and. in doing so, considered the fellowing:

» FCA'sfinancial policies

- identification of operational risks, including financialmanagement risks, information systems risk and people risks and
management's mitigation of these risks

Internal Audit's three-year plan

quarterly reportsfrominternal Audit
« commissioning anindependent review of the organisation's Internal Audit function

+ the NAO's audit strategy for the financial year

theintegrity of the financial staternents

financial reportingjudgements and disclosure issues

+ the Annual Report and Accounts and the Corporate Governance Statement

+ the FCAchair'sexpenses

- risk and control seff-assessments from directors

« annualreport oninternalrisk reviews by the Risk and Compliance Oversight Division
- pensionplanarrangements

1 Further information on the principal risks and uncertainties facing the FCA can be found in the Group financial overview (Chapter ).
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» keyinformation about technology projects
« potentialand actual litigation against the FCA
« completion of actions arising from the Davis Review

The Audit Committee also oversaw the FCA's relationship with the externalauditor Information on fees paid to the
auditeris givenonpage 112;

The Board's statement below gives more information oninternal controls. The Committee has assureditself that the
financial statements give a true and fair view and have been prepared with integrity.

In addition to the reportinthe Annual Report on the activities of the Committee, the Audit Committee chair provided
an update after each committee meeting to the subsequent board meeting.

The Audit Committee met on four occasions during the year. The Chief Operating Officer and the Executive Director
of Supervision - Investrnent, Wholesale & Specialists Division, the Executive Director of Strategy and Competition
andthe Human Rescurces Director all attended atteast one session. The Director of Internal Audit, the Director of
Risk Compliance and Oversight and the Director —Financial Audit from the National Audit Office (NAC) attended
each of the meetings. The Chair ofthe Board and the Chief Executive also attended meetings by invitation and
relevant members of staff are also invited to attend for relevant items.

The Audit Committee held private sessions with the Director of Internal Audit, the Director of Risk and Compliance

8]
% Oversight and external auditors during the year without management present. The committee alsc held private
E  sessionsonits ownwithout management present.
ad
=
—_ F Information on the committee’'s membership can be foundin Table 3 and details of its members’ attendance at
rjfé = meetings can be foundin Table 4.
3 £
< 0w Internal controls
Z 2

Theinternal control framework is animportant part of our governance arrangements. It is designed to provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance about the effectiveness of the control environment, to manage rather than
eliminaterisks to our statutery objectives

The Boardis satisfied that the internal control framework is broadly appropriate for thebusiness and was assured that.
a soundrisk management framework and internal controls have been maintained during the year. However, the Board
recognises that the risks facing the organisation are not static. Throughout the year, the Board observed the internal
control framewaork adapting accordingly andimproving, including the embedding of therisk and control
self-assessment process.

Cperational risks are cverseen by the Audit Committee and external regulatory risks by the External Risk and Strategy
Committee. The Board's policy oninternal controls andrisk management includes established processes and
procedures foridentifying, evaluating and managing significant risks. The Audit Committee reported at least quarterly
tothe Board oninternal controls and operational risk management. The Audit Committeereceived regular reporis from
managers on financial and operational controls and the risk management systems. It also received and reviewed reports
from the Director of Internal Audit which summarised work undertaken, findings and actions by management.

Key features of the internal control framework included the following:

-« Riskreporting that highlighted the key cperational and externalrisks faced. This supperted discussion onthe best course
of actionto mitigate the keyrisks and helped senior managers make decisions on pricrities and resource allocation. The
Executive Committee and the Executive Operations Committee regularly reviewed these reports and their views were
reported to the Audit Committee. :

« Areview of the framework of contrels to mitigate the key operational and external risks faced.

« Internal Audit provided independent assurance about the effectiveness of risk management and controls tothe FCA
Boardand management.
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+ The Audit Universe, which contained alithe FCA's activities, systems and projects that contribute to managing our risks.
Internal Audit assessed each unit within the Universe to support the prioritisation of reviews. Internal Audit periodically
reviewed the Audit Universe and priorities, considering factors including risk and how business critical and significant
they were.

» Clear reportinglines and delegated authorities, which were reviewed on aregular basis.

- The external audit, including interim and final audit, which provided assurance about financial controls to the Board and
senior management.

Clear segregationbetween the FCA's regulatory function and the internal treasury function to avoid either endorsingor
criticising any financial institution throughinvestment activities.

Ensuring appropriate policies and procedures were included in the staff handbook.

Directors and senior managers regularly communicated their commitment to maintaining an appropriate control
culture across the FCAto all staff.

ExternalRisk and Strategy Committee

The External Risk and Strategy Committee has responsibility for the review and oversight of the external risks® to
the FCA achieving its statutory objectives, the executive's appetite for such risks and the suitability of the scope and
coverage of the mitigation used to reduce the potentialimpact of suchrisks.

The Committee is also responsible for the effective operation of the Regulatory Decisions Committee (RDC). The
External Risk and Strategy Committee consists entirely of non-executive directors,

Tomeetits responsibilities, the Committee received regular reports from the Director of Risk and Compliance
Oversight, Director of Internal Audit and the Chair of the RDC. The Commitiee sought assurance from the FCA

executive and actively pursued open dialogue with the executive to ensure that:

a. themajor external risks to the FCA's statutory objectives from the financial market s that we regulate were identified
and prioritised appropriately

b. mitigation strategies were inplace to address these risks and that the scope and coverage of these strategies
supported the delivery of the FCA's outcomes

Duringtheyear, as part of its responsibilities, the Committee:

+ considered reviews into the following areas:

the impact of zero and negative interestrates on consumers and business models

managing the risks of some debt management companies failing to get authorisation

supervisionmonitoring of external risk

ring fencing of retailbanks

« organisationalrisk tolerance

« prudential regulation

- the potentialimpact of the UK's withdrawal fromthe EU

» reviewedthe development of house and sector views

2 Further infermation on the principal risks and uncertainties facing the FCA can be found in the Group financial overview (Chapter 9)
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- receivedregular reports fromthe RDC on operational performance, resources andrisk

» engagedwiththe FCA's panelsina structured way

+ considered gaps and cross-cutting risks based onthe werk of the Risk and Compliance Oversight Division

- reviewed progress of the programme to move the FCA's offices to the International QGuarter, London in Stratford

The Committee also reviewed its report for inclusionimthe FCA's Annual Report about risks to the environmentin
which the FCA regulates. Aswellas producing areportin the Annual Report onits activities, the chair of the External
Risk and Strategy Committes provided an update after each meeting to the next Board meeting

The Committee met on four occasions during the year. Five meetings have been scheduled for 2017/18 to coincide
withtherisk reporting cycle for the year

The Chief Operating Officer and latterly the Acting Chief Operating Cfficer attended one and two sessions
respectively with the Committee. The Director of Risk and Compliance Oversight attended each of the Committee’s
meetings at the Chair's request with the Director of Internal Audit attending allbut one

The Chair of the Beard also attended by invitation. Other expert members of staff were also invited to attend
relevantitems.

Private sessions were held with the Director of Risk and Compliance Cversight during the year without management
present The Committee also held private sessions onits own without management present.

Information onthe Committee's membership can be focund in Table 3 and is also available on our website and details
of its members’ attendance at meetings canbe found in Table 4. )

Qversight Committee

The Oversight Committee provides support and advice to the Board onitsrelaticnshipwith the Money Advice
Service {MAS) and Financial Ombudsman Service and its obligations for both under FSMA.

During the year, the Committee met on six cccasions and met with key individuals from both organisations.

Akey duty of the Committee was to review and challenge the basis of preparation, and underlying assumptions
ofeach organisation’s annual budget and business plan. The Committee also sought to ensure that the FCA
maintained good and effective working relationships with both organisations to ensure matters of mutual interest
were identified, discussed and acted on. Therefore, aregular feature of the Committee's discussions with the MAS
included updates on developments regarding the government’'s announcement in 2016 to create a new single
financial guidance body The Financial Ombudsman Service reported regularly to the Committee onits complaint
caseloads, including Inrelation to payment protection insurance.

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committeais responsible for making recommendations for maintaining an appropriate balance of
skills on the Board to ensure we maintain our agpility te meet our statutory objectives.

During the year, the committee met on six occasions and, among other things, considered executive membership on
the FCA Board and objectives for the Chairman, Chief Executive and Company Secretary for 2017/18,
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Regulatory Decisions Committee

The Regulatory Decisions Committee (RDC) makes the final decisions on behalf of the FCA on certainregulatory
matters.

The Extarnal Risk & Strategy Committee received quarterly reports framthe RDC Chair, whe also attended the
meetings to discuss significant matters inthose reports.

The RECisindependent of the division of the FCA that has conducted an investigation or considered an application
for authorisation

The Committee’'s members represent the public interest and are appointed to use their experience and expertise in
financial services to decide how we should use particular authorisation, supervisory and enforcement powers. These
include the power to stop firms or individuals providing regulated financial services and levying fines for breaches of
our rules and legal requirements.

The RDC becomes involved after the relevant division of the FCA has cencluded that it is appropriate forus to use
particular powers against a firm or individual. The divisicn submits its proposaland the supporting evidence to the
ROC. The RDC will review'the evidence and, in most cases, seek the views of the relevant firm or individual before
coming to a decision.

RDC members are selected for their experience of making independent evidence-based decisions, working in senior
and expert positians in financial services, and/or their knowledge and understanding of consumers and other users of
financial services. This range of skills and experience is intended to achieve fairness and enhance the objectivity and
balance of the FCA's decision-making and help improve consistency across sectors and cases.

The RDC's separate annual review of its activities for 2016/17 canbe found in A‘ppendlx 2 of this report

Competition Decisions Committee

The Competition Decisions Committee (CDC)is a committee of the Board comprising three persons appointed from
the COC Panel. The CDC acts as the decision-maker in Competition Act 1998 investigations on behalf of the FCA.
Thisincludes decisions onwhether there has been a competition law infringement, whether toimpose a financial
penalty for an infringement and any directions to be given. No CDC has yet been appointed.

The CDC Panelwas established in 2015 Panel maembers have attended two training sessions during the year

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee 1s responsible for ensuring there is a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on executive remuneration and for agreeing the remuneration packages of individual executive board
members and senior executives. The Committee is also responsible forrecommending to the Board the annual
budget for pay and incentive awards and also the remuneration of members of associated bodies (such as the Money
Advice Service, the Financial Ombudsman Service and the Consumer Panel | During the year, the Committee meton
seven occasions.

The Remuneration Committee consists solely of non-executive directors

Information on the committee’'s mambership canbe foundin Table 3 and on our website and details of its members’
attendance at meetings canbe foundin Table 4.

The terms of reference for each committee are available on our website at www.fca org uk/your-fea/documents/
corporate-governance
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Remuneration report

Remuneration Principles

The FCA'sremuneration principles are to attract and retain high calibre individuals and to provide them with clear
objectives that are focused onresults and behavicurs clearly aligned with the FCA's cultural characteristics. Pay and
incentives are differentiated based on performance and moderated across the organisation

Thetotal remuneration package, which is common to all FCA employees, comprises:

»+ basic pensionable salary

+ eligibilitytobe considered for performance-related pay

+ additional flexible benefits

- anon-contributory defined contribution pensicn

The Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration of the executive board members and senicr
executives. To help with this, the Committeereceived information on, and assessment of, their individual
perfcrmance. Performance was measured against the achievement of the collective objectives by reference to
the Business Flan, the objectives relating to the directors'individual areas of responsibility and assessment of their
leadership abilities.

Duringthe year, as part of its responsibilities, the Committee:

» agreed the objectives of executive board members and senior executives (before responsibility for this was passed to
the Nominations Committee)

reviewed the disclosure of remunerationinthe Annual Report

considered the fees payable to directors of associated organisations (such as the Money Advice Service) and members
of other bodies such as the statutory panels

considered the FCA's policy on payments to leaving employees

agreed the payand incentive award budget for the year and the overall pclicy on remuneration

considered the FCA's polficy inrespect of pension arrangements for employees who have met the lifetime aliowance or
the tapered allowance.

Remunerationfocus for 2016/17

There were no changes to the remuneration strategy this year. We continued to focus onrewarding those who:
= demonstrate successful and consistent delivery against objectives
+ make asignificant overall contributionto the FCA's goals

« demonstrate the values and behaviours that the FCAexpects andrequires

2016/17 Remuneration review

All salary increases andincentive awards for staffin 2016/17 were a matter for management judgement against
the FCA's common set of performance standards. The aim has beento ensure that members of staff at alllevels,
received appropriate recognition for their performance Abudget of 1% was made available for salary increases,
supplementedby an additional 0.5% to address anomalies, resulting in 68% of all employees receiving a pay award
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The budget for incentive awards was set at 15% of salaries. Of the employees eligible to be considered for an
incentive award, 93% received anincentive award of varying amounts as detailledin Table 5.

Table 5
Bonus percentage received Percentage of workforce whe received abonus
0% 7%
0.1% - 5% 1%
51%-9.9% 8%
10% - 14.9% 41% !
15% - 19.9% 21%
20% - 24.9% 18%
25% -29.9% ) 3%
30% - 34 9% 1%

In considering executive remuneration, the Remuneration Committee took advice from the Director of Human
Resources, other relevant staff and market data from Willis Towers Watson, its external consultants.

Basic pensicnable salary |

During the year, salaries of executive hoard members and senior executives were reviewed inline with the

nolicy. When making decisions on base salary, the Remuneration Committee was mindful of the importanice of
remuneration packages being sufficient to retain staff while awarding any salary increases Inaresponsible manner,
ensuring careful use of the FCA's resources.

Performance related pay

During the period under review, from 1 April 2016 tc 31 March 2017, the executive board members and senior
executives were eligible to be considered for a performance-related award up to a maximum of 35% of average base
salary applying during the previous year. Non-executive directors were not eligible to be considered for an award.

Other benefits

A sumwas available for the Chair and each executive board member which could be spent against arange of benefits.
This sumisincluded in ‘other benefits’ in the remuneration table While acting as Chief Executive, Tracey McDermott
alsohadaccessto acaranddriver and the value of this benefitis includedin 'other benefits’ inthe remuneration
table. The current Chief Executive has elected not to use a car and driver.

Pensions

The FCA Pensicn Plan (the Plan) has two sections, both of which are non-contributory; a defined benefits section
(closed tonewentrants and any future accruals) and a defined contribution section John Griffith-Jones and Andrew
Bailey are not members of the Plan but both were entitled to receive a non-pensicnable supplement instead.
Christopher Woolard is a member of the Plan. The sums paid to the Chair and each of the executive directors are
shownin the remuneration table.

Furtherinformation about the Planis set cutin Note 13 tothe Financiat Statements
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The table below sets out the remuneration paid or payable to any person that served asa Director during the years
ending 31 March 2017 and 2016. The remunerationfigures shown are for the period served as Directors.

Total FCA
Remuneration -
Performance- {excliuding Total FCA
Basic salary related pay Other benefits pension} Pensicn Remuneration
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 20186
£000 E£'000| €000 €000] €000 £000] £000 £000| €000 £'000| €000 £000
Chairman
John Griffith- 170 170 - - 3 2 173 172 20 20 193 192
Jones '®
Executive Directors
Andrew Bailey 330 - 65 - 24 - 419 - 30 - 449 -
26 .
Tracey 284 376 11 75 37 74 332 525 35 45 367 570
McDermott?
Christopher 300 200 50 41 29 19 379 260 30 26 408 286
Woolard*®
Group Fee Paid FCA Fee Paid
Non-Executive Directors 2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Andrew Balley 2@ - - - -
Bradley Fried® 42 - 35 -
Amelia Fletcher® 42 35 35 35
Barcness Hogg®’ 65 - 65 -
Jane Platt>® 45 38 45 38
Catherine Bradley 35 35 35 35
Ruth Kelly 5# 45 - a5 R
Sam Woods *° - - - -
Notes
Chairman

1. JohnGriffith-Jonesis nota memberofthe FCA Pension Plan and received anon-pensicnable supplement inlieu of
pension contributions. This amountisincluded under 'Pension’inthe table above

Executive directors ofthe FCA

2. AndrewBaileywas appointed Chief Executive of the FCA on 1 July 2016 and accordingly ceased to be anon-executive
director. Andrew's full-year salary is £440,000 per annum Andrew was awarded a performance bonus of £65,000 for 2017,
of which £26,000{40%) was paid in March 2017. The remaining £39,000 (60%] has beenheld ndeferment and will be paid
with the approval of the Remuneration CommitteeinMarch 2018 Andrewreceived a non-pensionable supplementintieu
of pension contributions of £30,000 paidincash. Thisamountis included under 'Pension’inthe table above.

3. Tracey McDermott was appointed acting Chief Executive on 13 September 2015 and continued until 30 June 2016
Tracey's full-year equivalent salary increased from £300,000 to £430,000 per annumon 1 September 2015 fora period
of 12 months. Her salary decreased to £300,000 in September 2016 whilst Tracey remained oncontract withthe FCA
untll 31 December 2016, Included in Tracey's 'Other benefits’is an amount of £19,822 being the value of the taxable
benefit-in-kind for the provisionof acar and driver from 1 April 2016 to 16 May 2016 in herrole as acting Chief Executive
The carwas also available as apoolcar for all FCA directors to use for non-taxable business travel

97



Chapter 10 Financial Conduct Authority
Directors' report and Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17
Corporate governance '

statement

4. Christopher Weolard was appointed tothe FCA Board on 1 August 2015. Christopher's full-year salary for year ending
2016 was £300,000 perannum. Christopher is a member of the FCA Pension Plan, he chooses tohave £10,000 of
the employer pension contribution paid into the Pension Plan, the remaining employer contributionis paidas a non-
pensionable cash supplement The amountisincluded under "Pension’inthetable above.

Non-executive directors of the FCA

5. lnaccordancewith FSMA the Treasury is responsible for determining the remuneration of non-executive directors. The
fee for non-executive directors remains unchanged at £35,000 per annum for 2017. An additional fee of £10,000 per
annumis payable to any non-executive director who has been appointedto chair a committee of the Board. An additional
fee of £20,0007s payable to the Chair of FCA Pension Plan Trustee Limited, the trustee of the FCA PensionPlan.

6. AmeliaFletcher and Bradiey Fried received a separate fee of £6,875 for their role on the PSR Board. John Griffith-Jones,
Christopher Woolard and Andrew Bailey, who was appointed as anon-executive director of the PSR en 1 July 2016,
received no separate fee for their respective roles onthe PSR Board.

7. Baroness Hoggwas appointed as a non-executive director of the FCA, Chair of the Remuneration Committee and
Chair of FCA Pension Plan Trustee Limited on 1 Apri 2016.

8. JanePlatt's feeswere paid to her primary employer, National Savings and Investments, whilst employed there. From
1 Septermber 2016 Jane received her fees directly from the FCA . Jane was appointed Chair of the External Risk and
Strategy Committee on 1 January 2016.

9. RuthKellywas appointed as a non-executive director and Chair of the Audit Committee on 1 April 2016,

10.5am Woods was appointed as the Deputy Governor of the Bank of England for prudential regulationon 1 July 2016 and
therefore became a non-executive of the FCAn accordance with FSMA. Sam does notreceive afee fromthe FCA.

Fair pay disclosure (audited)

Group Parent Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
Tighestfpawd Director’s total remuneration® £536,553 £598,175 £536,553 £598,175
mdian remuneration of total workforce £64,984 £65,014 £64,785 £64,897
Ratio {to total workforce) 83 97 83 92
Number of ernployees paid in excess of highest-paid Director Nit Nil Nil Nil

1 The difference between the total remuneration of the highest-paid director for the purposes of this disciosure and the total remuneration (excluding pension) as set outin
the directors’ remuneration table s that the directors' remuneration table includes actual amounts paid whilst the remuneration ratia s a calculation of full year equivalent
réemuneration

The Accounts Direction from the Treasury, in accordance with Schedule 1ZA, paragraph 14(1) of FSMA, requires
the FCAto disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest-paid director and the median
remuneration of the organisation’s total workforce for 2017 and 2G16.

The remuneration ratio represents the difference between the highest-paid director and the median full-time
equivalent annualised remuneration of the total workforce at the reporting period end date (excluding the highest-

paid director) expressad as a multiple. Definitions are below:

« Remuneration is total remuneration andincludes salary, performance-related pay and benefits, whether monetary or
in-kind It does notinclude severance payments or employer pension contributions.

» Total workforee includes employees, temporary staff, contractors and other short-termresource.

Thea median pay calculations reflect the FCA as a stand-alone entity (' FCA Parent Company’) and the consolidated
position including the PSR ('Group'}.
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The Chief Executive of the FCA was the highest-paid director for 2017 and 2016. The reason for the fall intotal
remuneration is due to the fact that the previcus year included the benefit of car and driver which the current Chief
Executive has elected not to use.

Excluding the highest-paid director, remuneration ranged from £19,250 to £440,000(2016: £21,448 to £582,359)

In 2017 no employees {2016, nil) received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid director.
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The Board of the FCA

John Griffith-Jones
Chair

Andrew Bailey Catherine Bradley
Chief Executive Non-executive Director

Amelia Fletcher OBE
Non-executive Director

Ruth Kelly
Non-executive Director

Sam Woods
Non-executve Director
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Bradley Fried Baroness Sarah Hogg
Non-executive Director Non-executive Directer

Jane Platt Nick Stace
Non-executive Director Non-executive Director

{Appointed with effect from 1 April 2017)
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Christopher Woolard Simon Pearce
Executive Director Company Secretary
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Company Number 01520623

THE CERTIFICATE AND REPORT OF THE COMPTROLLERAND AUDITOR GENERALTO THE
HOUSES OF PARLIAMENT

| certify that | have audited the financial statements of the Financial Conduct Authority for the year ended 31 March
2017 under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. The financial statements comprise: the Group and Parent
Statements of Comprehensive Income, Financial Position, Cash Flows, Changes in Equity; and the related notes. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financials
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union. I have also audited the information inthe Remuneration
Reportthatis describedinthatreport as havingbeen audited.

Respective responsibilities of the Directors and auditor

As exptained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibllities, the Directors areresponsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view. My responsibility

is to audit, certify and report on the financial statements in accordance with the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000. ! conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand). Those standards
require me and my staff to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

Anaudit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
givereasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whather caused by
fraud or error, Thisincludes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the greup's and
the Financial Conduct Authority's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;
thereasonabieness of significant accounting estimates made by the Financial Conduct Authority; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Inaddition [ read all the financial and non-financial informaticon in the Annual Report to identify material
Inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that1s apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the
audit IfIbecome aware of any apparent material misstatements cr inconsistencies | consider the implications for my
certificate.

lamrequired to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the expenditure andincome recorded

inthe financial statements have been applied to the purposes mtended by Parhament and the financialtransactions
recorded nthe financial statements conform to the authorities which governthem
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Opinion onregularity

Inmy opinicn, in allmaterial respects the expenditure and income recorded in the financial statements have been
.applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions recerdedin the financial statements
conformto the authorities which governthem.

Opinion onfinancial statements
Inmy opinion:

- thefinancial statements give atrue and fair view of the state of the group's and of the Financial Conduct Authority's
affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of the group's and the parent's surplus for the year then ended; and

« thefinancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by EuropeanUnion;

« thefinancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and MM Treasury
directions made under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

Opinion on other matters
Inmy opinion:

« the part ofthe RemunerationReport to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with HM Treasury
directions made under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000; and

Toveac Nags omd

- theinformation givenintheDirectors Report for the financial year for which the financial statementsare preparedis

istent with th Stat ts Aok kMg Wa tine.
::;)&g@ ent wi De n?.r;ctriwfeemen s Ve nupe.:’v; Voue \sooA p.&pwﬂd in avwrtea@ v
+ A aywd of MLL\MWO\AA Md.ﬂ.z and \D ommannsadd-
Mattersonwhlchlreportbye ption NGAod v k . - 3 ] \ ol " dalthod o

Ihave nothing to report inrespect of the following matters which [ report to you |f, inmy oplmon. Mmadoned rAYYarDAakS Ln

. adeguate accounting records have not been kapt of returns adequate for my audit have not been received from (Ko gw“b}" o
branches not visited by my staff, or r g O, redory N

« thefinanciat statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are notinagreement with the
accounting records andreturns; or

« 1have notreceived all of the information and explanations Irequire for my audit; or

+ the Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with relevant guidance.

Report

| have no observations to make on these financial statements.

d
Datez June 2017

Victoria, London, SW1wW 95SP
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Group Parent Company
Total Total Total Total
2017 2016 2017 2016
Notes £Em £m £m £m

Income
Feeincome 4 5541 545.2 5439 5171
Otherincome 4 208 348 224 365
Total income 5749 580.0 566.3 553.6
Operating costs
Staff costs 5 {329.0} {330.7} (321.9) (324.1)
Administrative costs 6 (189.8) (221 5) (187.7) {219 2)
Total operating costs {518.8) (552.2) {509.6) (543.3)
Surplus for the year 56.1 27.8 56.7 10.3
Net actuanal losses for the year 13 (65.3) {6.5) (65.3) (6 5)
in respect of the defined benefit
pension scheme
Total comprehensive {loss)/ 9.2) 21.3 (8.6} 3.8
surplus for the year

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March

Accumulated Deficit

Group Parent Company

£m £m

At 1April 2015 (185.5) (174.0}
Total comprehensive surplus for the year 21.3 38
At 31 March 2016 (164.2) (170.2)
Tota!l comprehensive loss for the year {9.2) (8.6)
At 31 March 2017 (173.4) {178.8)
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Statement offinancial position as at 31 March

Company Number: 01920623

Group Parent Company
Total Total Total Total
2017 2016 2017 2016
Notes £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 157 842 757 84.2
Property, plant and equipment 8 288 257 .28.8 257
104.5 109.9 104.5 109.9
Current assets
Trade and cther receivables g 220 337 227 344
Cash and cash equivalents g 196.4 232.2 1831 224.8
2184 265.9 205.8 2508.2
Total assets 322.9 375.8 310.3 269.1
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 10 (313.9) (392.8] (306.7) (3921}
Short-term provisions - (0.1} - (0.1
(313.9) (392.9) (306.7) (392.2)
Total assets less current 9.0 {17.1) 3.6 {23.1}
liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 10 (2.4) (7.5} (2.4) (7.5)
Long-termprovisions 10 {2.5) (2.5} {2.5) (2.5}
{4.9) (10.0} (4.9 {10.0}
Net liabilities exciuding 4.1 {27.1) 1.3 (33.1)
retirement benefit obligation
Retirement benefit obligation 13 (177.5} (1371) (177.5) (137.1)
Net liabilities inctuding {173.4} {164.2) {178.8} {170.2)
retirement benefit obligations
Accumulated deficit {173.49) (164.2) (178.8) (170.2)

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 22 June 2017, and signed onits behalf by

John Griffith-Jones, Chairman P]_JL C C\w
AN

Andrew Bailey, Chief Executive
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March
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Group Parent Company
Total Total Total Total
2017 2016 2017 2016
Notes £m Em £m £m

Net cash{used)/ generated by 3 {1.2) 251.8 {7.00 244.4
operations
Investing activities
Interest received on bank 0.6 08 0.5 o8
deposits
Expenditure on software 7 (219 (26.4) (21.9) (26.4)
development
Purchases of property, plant and 8 {13.3) (61} (13.3) 61
equipment '
Net cash used in investing {34.6) (31.7) {34.7} (31.7)
activities )
Net {decrease)/ increasein cash {35.8) 220.1 {41.7) z212.7
and cash equivalents .
Cashand cash equivalents at 2322 121 2248 121
the start of the year
Cashand cashequivalents at 196.4 232.2 183.1 224.8
the end of the year

105



Chapter11 Financial Conduct Authority
Financial staterments Annusl Repart and Accounts 2016/17

Notes to the financial statements

1. General information

The Financial Conduct Authority Limited (FCA) is a company incorporated in the United Kingdem under the
Companies Act 2006 and s a company limited by guarantee with no share capital The directors of the company are
the members and have agreed to contribute £1 eachto the assets of the company in the event of it heing wound up.
The nature of the FCA's operationsis set cutin the Financial Overview.

These accounts have heen prepared on a consolidated basis to include the Payment Systems Regulator Limited
(PSR), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the FCA.

Underthe FCA's Accounts Direction from Her Majesty's Treasury (the Treasury) in accordance with Schedule 1ZA,
paragraph 14(1) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (FSMA), we are required to disclose additional
information this year regarding sickness absence (no comparative data required) and have included this inthe ‘Our
resources' sectionof the Annual Report. ‘

Theregistered office is 25 The North Colonnade, Canary Wharf, London, E14 5HS

Thefinancial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that s the currency of the primary economic
environmentinwhich the FCA and the PSR operate

2. Core accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
conventioninaccordance with: International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the Eurapean Union,
the Treasury’s Accounts Directionissued under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, and those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 appliceble to companies reporting under IFRS. We discuss the reason why the going concern
basis is appropriate in the Financial Overview.

The principal significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below
We have included the policies with the relevant notes where possible. These policies have been consistently applied
to both accounting years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Under s 454 of the Companies Act 2006, on a voluntary basis, the directors can amend these financial statements If
they subsequently prove to be defective

b} Significant judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Actual results
could differ fromestimates Information about these judgerments and estimatesis contained in the relevant
accounting policies and notes tc the accounts. The key areas of estimation uncertainty are-

+ Pensiondeficit (note 13} -the quantification of the pension deficitis based upon assumptions made by the directors
relating to the discount rate, retail price inflation (RPI), future pension increase and life expectancy.

<) Group financial statements
The PSR is aprivate company, limited by shares (a singla share with a £1 nominal value), and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the FCA

d} Changes in accounting policy
There are no new or amended IFRSs or International Reporting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC) interpretations
that have been adopted.
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€] Impairment of intangibles and property, plant and equipment

Eachyear the FCA reviews the carrying amount of its intangible assets, property, plant and equipment tc determine
whether thereis any indication that its assets have suffered any impairment invalue. If any suchindication exists, the
recoverable amount of the assetis estimatedin order to determine the extent of the impairment. The assets’ residual
values and usefullives arereviewed and adjusted if appropriate.

Therecoverable amountis the higher of the fair value less costs to selland the value in use. If the recoverable amount
of an assetis estimated tobelessthanits carryingamount, the carryingamount of the asset isreducedtoits
recoverable amount. Animpairment is immediately recognised as an expense

When an impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount but so that the increased carryingamount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment been recognised for the asset in prior years. Areversal ofanimpairmentis
immediately recognised asincome.

f) Taxation
AsaUKincorporated company, the FCAis subject to the provisions of the UK Taxes Acts, the same corperation tax
rules as any other UKincorporated company.

Onthe basis of therelevant tax legislation and established case law, the results of the FCA's regulatory activities {on
which it does not seek to make a profit) are not subject to corporation tax because the FCA's regulatory activity does
not censtitute a 'trade’ for corporation tax purposes.

The FCA invests heavily inits own fixed assets, mainly IT software, and accounts for these as intangibie fixed assets.
It thus has significant levels of amortisation charges. The FCA has applied the intangible fixed asset taxrulesto these
assets and as aresult tax relief is available for the amortisation.

This amortisationis currently being utilised to offset any corporation tax due on investment incame, resulting in nil
corporation tax being payable by the FCA at this time.

The application of the corporation tax regime for intangible assets has alsoled to an unrecognised deferred tax asset
(unrecognisedinthe FCA's balance sheet}inrelation to unused taxlosses carried forward as it is not sufficiently
certain that the FCA will actually have taxable income to set against these losses in future. As at 31 March 2017 this
deferred tax asset equatedto £35.3m(2016: £33.1m).

The FCAis partially exempt for VAT purposes because a significant part of the revenuerelates to regulatory activities
which are cutside the scope of VAT,

Thecorporationtaxtreatment of the PSR's activities is the same as for the FCA, for the same reasons and agreed

with Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. Asthe FCAwholly owns the PSR, the FCA andthe PSR are part of the same
group for corporation tax and VAT
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3. Notes to the cash flow statement

Group Parent Company
Total Total Total Total
2017 2016 2017 2016
Notes £m £m £m E_m
Surplus for the year from operations 56.0 278 56.6 10.3
Adjustments for:
Interest received on bank deposits 4 {06} (0.8) (0.5) (0.8)
Amortisation of other intangible 7 286 319 286 319
assets
Loss ondisposal of intangible assets 04 - 04
Impairment of intangible assets 7 - 111 - ~ 11
Depreciation of property, plant and 8 116 11.1 1186 111
eqguipment
Impairment of tangible assets 8 - 0.3 - 03
Decreasein provisions 10 0.1 {01) ©.1) 0.1
Difference between pension costs 13 43 45 4.3 4.5
and normal contributions
Payments made against unfunded 5 06 - - 06 -
pensjon liability
Additional cash contributions to 13 {29.7) {19.5) {29.7) (18.5)
reduce pension scheme deficit
Operating cash flows before 711 56.3 71.8 38.8
movements in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 9 11.7 (13.7) 11.7 (3.4)
(Decrease)/increase in payables 10  (84.0) 209.2 {90.5) 209.0
Net cash (usedl/generated by 1.2} 251.8 (7.0} 244.4
operations ’
4.Income

FSMA enables the FCA toraise fees and the Financial Services (Banking Reform) Act 2013 enables the FCA toraise fees
onbehalf of the PSR, to recover the costs of carrying out their statutery functions. Fee income includes the annual
periodic fees receivable under FSMA for the financial year and is recognised in the year and measured at fair value.

Fee income
Group Parent Company

Total Totat Total Total
2017 2016 2017 2016
£tm £m Em Em
Ongoing Regulatory Activity fees? 5131 507.1 5029 479.0
Ongoing Regulatory Activity fees - - 10.4 - 10.4

Consumer Credit (CC)?
Additional Cngoing Requlatory Activity fees 55 21 5.5 21
Scope change costs recovered - CC 77 - 77 -
Scope change cosis recovered - non CC 102 2.8 10:2 28
Application fees and other regulatory income * 9.4 22.5 8.4 225
Special project fees 8.2 0.3 8.2 03
Total fee income 554.1 545.2 ' 5439 517.1

1 Ofthe £502 9m (2016.£479 Om) Ongoing Regulatory Activity fees, £46 3m (2016 £41 9m) related to penalties collectad in the previous year for the sum of enforcement
costs and returned to fee payers through reduced fees See note 11 on Penalties

2 2017 Consurmer Credit fees are now part of Ongoing Regulatory Activity

3 2016 figures for both group (€22 5m) and FCA (£22.5m) now nclude application fees and other regulatary income. previously disclosed as other income
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Parent Company

Group

Total Total Total Totat

2017 2016 2017 2016

€m €m €m €m

Skilled person reports (s.166) income?! 6.5 19.8 6.5 19.8

Services provided to other regulatory 98 98 115 11.5
bodies?

Publications and training services 06 14 0.6 1.4

Interest received onbank deposits 06 0.8 05 08

Other sundryincome 33 30 33 Z0

Total other income 208 34.8 22.4 36.5

1 Thisincome s a recharge of the costs of the s 166 reports to the firmyin question Overall this nas a net zerg Impact on the statement of comprehensive ncome for the FCA

as the these charges are included n administrative costs

2 This relates to services provided to other requlatory bodies as described nnote 16

5.Staffinformation

Staff costs {including executive directors) comprise:

Group Parent Company
Totai Total Total Total
2017 2016 2017 2016
Notes £m £m £m £m

Gross salaries and taxable benefits 247.0 23838 242.2 2347
Employer's national insurance costs 28.6 277 28.0 27.2
Employer's defined contribution 22.8 225 22.4 222
pension costs
Payments made against unfunded 3 06 - 06 -
pension liability
Net interest on defined benefit pension 13 4.3 45 4.3 45
scheme
Permanent staff costs 303.3 293.5 297.5 288.6
Temporary 29 83 25 83
Secondees 1.5 20 15 20
Contractors 21.3 269 20.0 252
Short-term resource costs 25.7 37.2 24.4 35.5
Total staff costs 3290 330.7 321.9 3241

Staff costs of £4 9m (2016 £8 1m) were capitalised during the year.
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The average number of full-time equivalent employees (including executive directors and fixed-term contractors) during
the year to 31 March is presented by division below:

Group ) Parent Company

Total Total Total Total

2017 2016 2017 2016
Supervision - Retail & Authorisation 822 808 822 808
Supervision - Investment, Wholesale and 510 486 510 486
Specialist
Enforcement and Market Oversight 670 656 670 656
Strategy and Competition 435 411 435 411
Sub-total 2,437 2,361 2,437 2,361
Operations . 654 619 654 619
Other central services 272 252 272 252
PSR 58 44 - -
Total 3,421 3,276 3,363 3,232

Asat 31 March 2017 there were 3,482 (2016 3,337) full-time equivalent employees of which 3,422 (2016: 3,285) were

FCAand 60 (2016:52) were PSR

The average number of short-term resources utilised during the year to 31 March by type was:

Group Parent Company
Total Total Total Total
2017 2016 2017 2016
Temporary 64 104 63 101
Secondees 24 34 24 34
Contractors 126 156 116 147
Total 214 294 203 282

As at 31 March 2017, there were 182 (2016:

(2016 11) were PSR.
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Redundancy and other departure costs incurred in accordance with theredundancy policy are set out below A
compulsory redundancy s any departure resulting frem arestructure or other changeleading to arcle ceasingto
exist. Cther departures are those mutually agreed with the individual concerned. Long-termill health settlements
arecredited back tothe FCA by cur insurers.

Number Number of ‘Number Number of
Number of ofother | Long-term Number of ofother Long-term
Exit compuisory | departures illheaith . compulsory departures il health
package redundancies agreed | settlements Total { redundancies agreed settlements Total
cost band 2017 2017 2017 2017 2016 2016 2016 2016
FO - - 3 - 3 - 1 - 1
£10,000
£10,001 - 1 2 - 3 - 4 - 4
£25,000
£25,001 - 2 2 - 4 4 5 - 9
£50,000
£50,001 - - 1 1 2 - - - -
£100G.000
£100,001 - Co- 1 1 2 - - 1 1
£150,000
£150,001 - - - - - - - - -
£200,000
£200,001 - - 1 1 - - - -
and above
Total 3 9 3 15 4 10 1 15
number
of exit
packages )
Total costs £0.1m £0.3m €0.4m | E0.8m £0.1m £0.3m £0.1m | £0.5m
6. Administrative costs
The administrative costs for the year ending 31 March comprise the following
Group Parent Company
Total Total Total Total
2017 20146 2017 2016
Notes £m £m £m £m
ITcosts 671 876 670 874
Professional fees 284 23.8 27.2 227
Professional fees: 5166! 65 19.8 8.5 19.8
Accommodation and office 375 34.3 375 343
services
Amgrtisation of intangible assets 7 2856 319 286 319
Travel, training and recruitrment 9.3 111 8.6 101
Depreciation of property, plant 8 116 111 11.6 111
and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangible 0.4 - 04 -
assets
Impairment loss 7/8 - 1.4 - 14
Other non staff costs G4 0.5 0.3 Q5
Total 189.8 221.5 187.7 219.2

1 These professional fees are the costs of the 166 ('skilled person’] reports recharged to the frrnin Guesuon Overa

ners.ve income for ine FCA as the recnarges “or these costs are recogn'sed in other income

' this nas anet zero impact on the statemert of compre -

111



Chapter 1l Financial Conduct Authority
Financal statements Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

Auditors

The Comptroller & Auditor General was appeinted as auditor on 1 April 2013 under FSMA. The auditor's total
remuneration for audit services is set out below:

Group | Parent Company
Total Total Total Total
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Fees payable to the National Audit Office for 98 28 76 76

the audit of the financial statements

7.Intangible assets

Inaccordance with IAS 38 Intangible Assets, costs associated with the development of software for intermal use are
capitalised cnly where:

i. theFCA candemonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the software

ii. the FCAhas adequate technical, financial and other resources availeble to it as well as the intent to complete
its development .

iii. the FCAhas the ability to use it upon completion

iv. the asset can be separately identified, it is probable that the asset will generate future economic benefits, and the
development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Only coststhat are directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use are included
inits measurement. These costsinclude alidirectly attributable costs necessary to create, produce and prepare the
assettobe capable of operating in a manner intended by management. All additions are initially capitalised as workin
progress during the development stage When the asset is brought into use (immediately once completed) it is then
transferred fromwork in progress to the appropriate asset category.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives, generally between three and
seven years, with the amortisation reported as an administration expense in the statement of comprehensive income.

Whensoftware is not anintegral part of the related hardware, it is treated as an intangible asset.
Where nointangible asset can be recognised, research and development expenditure is expensed when incurred

Internal software development costs of £21.9m (2016: £26.4m) have been capitalised as additions during the year
Internally developed software is designed to help the FCA carry cutits various statutory functions, such as holding
detalls relating toregulated firms. These functions are particular to the FCA, so thisinternally developed software
generally has no external market value. Management jJudgement has been applied in quantifying the benefit expected
to accrue to the FCA over the useful life of the relevant assets. Those expected benefits relate to the fact that such
software allows the FCA to carry out its functions more efficiently than by using alternative approaches (forexample,
manual processing). Ifthe benefits expected do not accrue to the FCA (for example, if some aspect of its approach to
dischargingits statutory functions changes, perhaps due to theimpact of implementing a European directive). then
the carrying amount of the asset would require adjustment.

The PSR doesnotholdintangible assets.
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internally Other software
generated software costs Workinpregress Total
£€m £m £€m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2015 140.4 25.5 39.0 204.9
Additions - - 264 26.4
Transfers 478 33 (52.4) (13)
Reclassification - - 2.8 28
Impairments - 07 (0.4} (1.1)
At 31 March 2016 188.2 28.1 15.4 231.7
Additions - 02 21.7 219
Transfers 177 - {17.7) -
Reclassification - - (1.4) (1.4}
Disposal (23.8} (1.8) - (25.6)
At 31 March 2017 182.1 26.5 i8.0 226.6
Amortisation
At1April 2015 94.8 20.8 - 115.6
Charge for year 277 42 - 319
At 31 March 2016 122.5 25.0 - 147.5
Charge for year 272 1.4 - 286
Disposal {23.4) 183 - (25.2}
At 31 March 2017 126.3 24.6 - 1509
Net carrying value
At 31 March 2016 65.7 3.1 154 84.2
At 31 March 2017 55.8 1.9 18.0 757

Ofthe net carrying amount of internally generated software of £55.8m and other software of £1.9m:

i. £22.2mrelatesto!NTACT, acase management tool for authorising firms and individuals and firms (four years

useful life remamning)

il. £16 1mrelatesto Gabriel a system for submitting regulatory data online {twe years useful life remaining}

iii. £5.6mrelates toBusiness Intelligence, areporting tool that allows business users to create andrunreports (one

year useful life remaining).

Of the netcarrying amcunt of work in progress of £18.0m

£1 8mrelatesto INTACT systems enhancements, used to gather information on the Senior Managers and
Certification Regime

£4 4mrelates to EMSZ (Evidence Management Systems) anupgrade of EMO's (Enforcement and Market
Cversight) evidence management application

£9 5mrelates to MiFID projects - the Market Abuse Regulation (MAR}, Markets in Financial Instruments

Regulation (MiFIR) and Markets in Financial Instruments Directive H (collectively 'MIFID '] are a major package of
reforms tothe regulation of securities, derivatives and investment markets.
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8. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairmentiosses.
Depreciationis calculated to write of f the cost less estimated residuzl value on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful economiclives. The principatuseful economic lives used for this purpose are

Leasehoid improvements Ten years or lease expiry
Furniture and equipment Tenyears
Computer equipment (excluding software) Upto five years
Leasehold Computer Furniture and Work in
improvements equipment equipment progress * Total
£m €m £m £m £Em
Cost
At 1 April 2015 23.6 42.5 14.6 7.0 87.7
Additions 01 07 03 50 6.1
Transfers 0.1 48 01 (3.7) 13
Reclassification - - - (2.8) (2.8)
Impairments - - - (0.3) ' (O.?)
At 21 March 2016 - 23.8 48.0 15.0 5.2 92.0
Additions - 02 - 131 133
Transfers 18 31 0.1 (5.0) -
Reclassification a1 - - 13 1.4
Disposat - - .1 - 0.1
At 31 March 2017 257 51.3 15.0 46| 106.6
E}reciation
At 1 April 2015 14.5 32.2 8.5 - 55.2
Charge for year 3.0 6.7 14 - 11.1
~ At31March 2016 17.5 38.9 9.9 - 56.3
Charge for year ) 40 59 17 - 116
Disposal _ - - {0.1) - 0.1}
At 31 March 2017 215 44.8 1.5 - 77.8

Net book value
At 31 March 2016 6.3 8.1 5.1 5.2 25.7
At 31 March 2017 4.2 6.5 35 14.6 28.8

Of the net carrying amount of €14 6minwork in progress, £14 3mrelates to the costs incurred relating to the move to
Stratfordin 2018, see note 14.

The PSR does not hold property. plant and equipment.
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9. Current assets

Trade receivables arerecognised initially at fair value. Appropriate allowances for estimatedirrecoverable amounts
are recognised inthe statement of comprehensive income whenthere is objective evidence that an asset is impaired

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term fixed-rate bank deposits with a maturity date of 12 months
orless and are subject to aninsignificant risk of changes invalue. The carryingamount of these assets approximates
totheir fair value.

Ofthe £196.3m (2016 €232.2m}, £5.1m (2016  £71.8m) related to fees collected on behalf of other financial
regulatory organisations (disclosed in trade creditors, note 10). '

The FCA currently has a £150m (2016 £50m} unsecured overdraft facility with Lloyds Banking Group (LBG) avallable
untitfurther notice and reviewed periodically by LBG. The increase is to meet the costs for the move to Stratford The
PSR does not have or need its own credit facilities currently.

intragroup receivable is based on a provision of services agreement between the FCA and PSR which sets out the
services supplied and the respective costs of those services The costs are based onchargesthe FCA incurs and
have been eliminatedinthe consolidated figures.

Group i Parent Company

Total Total Total Total

2017 2016 2017 2016

Notes " Em €m £em £m

Fees receivable 36 35 36 35

Net penalties receivable 11 1.4 10.2 1.4 10.2

Other debtors 1.4 13 13 13

Prepayments and accrued 156 187 156 187
income

intragroup receivable - PSR - ) - 0.8 07

Trade and other receivables 220 33.7 22.7 34.4

Cash deposits . 1799 1559 1769 1559

Cash at bank 165 76.3 62 689

Cashand cash equivalents 196.4 232.2 183.1 224.8

Total current assets 218.4 265.9 205.8 259.2

The average credit period is 37 days{2016: 36 days).
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair vaiue,

Allof the fees and other receivables have been reviewed for indications of Impairment. This provision has been
determined by reference to past default experience:

Group Parent Company

Total Total Total Total

2017 2016 2017 2016

Em £m £m £m

At 1 April ce 03 0.8 03

{Decrease)/ increase in provision for fees (0.2} 0.5 {0 2} a5
receivable

Total at 31 March 0.6 0.8 - 0.6 0.8
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Inaddition, some of the unimpaired fees receivable are past due as at 31 March The age of fee receivables past due,

but not impaired, is as follows:

Group Parent Company
. Total Totat Total Total
2017 2016 2017 2016
£m £m £m £m
Not more than three months 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.3
Betweenthree and nine months Q.5 0.3 0.5 03
Total unimpaired fees receivable . 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.6

The FCApolicy is toreview receivables systematically for recoverability whenthey are more than three months past due.

10. Current and non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade payables ererecognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method
Group Parent Company

Totat Total Total Totat
2017 2016 2017 2016
Notes £m £m £m £m
Trade creditors and accruals 76.7 149.6 756 148.9
Other taxation and social 114 11.6 11.4 11.6

security )
Net penalties payable 11 50.6 68.0 5086 "68.0
Feesreceivedin advance ) 175.2 163.6 169.1 163.6
Trade and other payables 3139 392.8 306.7 392.1
Shaort-term provisions - 01 - 01
Total current liabilities 313.9 392.9 306.7 392.2

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts cutstanding for trade purchases and ocngoing costs. The
average credit period taken for trade payables is 27 days (2016: 24 days).

As at 31 March, the group and FCA {parent company) current liabitities have contractual rnaturrties which are

summarised below:

Within 6 months

6to 12 months

2017 2016 2017 2016
£€m £fm £fm £m
Trade creditors and accruals 74.6 147.3 2.1 23
Fees receivedin advance 173.6 162.0 18 16
Other liabilities 61.8 77.0 0.2 2.6
Total 310.0 386.3 319 6.5
Otherliabilities maturing within 6 months include £1 0m(2016: £0.7m) for the PSR.
Non-currentliabilities
As at 31 March, the non-current liabilities measured at amortised cost, have contractual maturities that are
summarised below:
1to5years
2017 2016
£€m £m
Lease accrual 24 7.5
Long-term provisions 25 25
Total 4.9 10.0
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Thelease accrualof £2 4m (2016: £7.5m), being the cumulative difference between cash paid and expense recognised on
operatingleases for lang and buildings, is recognised as along-termiiability. Detalls of the FCA's operating leases are set

outinnote 15.

11. Penalties

Penaities issued and not yet collected as at 31 March are included in both current assetsand current liabilities and are

subject te anassessment of recoverability

Alability to the FCA fee payers arises when a penalty is received. This hability is limited to the sum of the enforcement
costs for that year agreed with the Exchequer and these retained penalties are returned to the fee payers through
reduced fees Inthe following year. Once total penalties collected during the year exceed this amount, aliability to the

Excheguer arises.

Recognition of enforcement expenses: all costs incurred to the end of the year are included in the financial
statements but no provision is made for the costs of completing current work uniess there is a present obligation.

Inthe course of enforcement activities, indemnities may be given te certain provisionalliquidators and trustees
Provisions are made inthe accounts for costs mcurred by such liquidators and trustees based on the amounts
estimated to berecoverable under suchindemnities.

Net penalties receivable

Group
Total Total
. 2017 2016
Notes £m &m
Penalties receivable at 1 April 209 206
Penalties issued during the year 1810 8795
Write-offs during the year {0.4) (2.0)
Penalties collected during the year (189.2) (877.2)
Penalties receivable at 31 March 12.3 20.9
Allowance for bad debts {10.9) {10.7)
Net penalties receivable at 31 March 9 1.4 10.2

Allcwance for bad debts

Penalties receivable were also reviewed for impairment and an allowance made as set out below. These allowances

reduce the amounts receivable

Total Total

2017 2016

£&m £m

At 1 April 10.7 173
Increase/ (decrease) in allowance for bad debts G2 (6.6)
Total at 31 March 10.9 10.7

Penalties collected during the year

Total Total

2017 2016

£€m £m

Retained penalties to be returned to fee payers 46.4 46 3
Penalties paid to Exchequer during the year 1487 8431
Penalties payable to Excheguer 32 91
Payable to Exchequer from previous years {3.1) (213
Penalties collected during the year 189.2 877.2
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Net penalties payable

Total Total

2017 2016

Notes €m £m

Retained penalties to be returned to fee 46.4 463
payers

Penalties (over)/ under-released to fee payers (0.4} 24

Penalties payabte to Exchequer 32 91

Net penalties receivable 14 10.2

Net penalties payable 10 50.6 68.0

The PSR did not issue any penalties during the year ended 31 March 2017,

12.Losses and Special Payments .
The Accounts Direction frem the Treasury requires a statement showinglosses and special payments by value and by
type where they exceed £300,000 for the year to 31 March 2017 only {no comparative figures required).

There are nolosses and special payments to report for 2016/17

13, Retirement benefit obligation

The FCA operates a tax-approved occupational pension scheme, the FCA Pension Plan (the Plan), which is opento all
employees of the group. The Plan was established on 1 April 1998 and operates on both a defined contribution basis

(the Money Purchase Section) and a defined benefit basis (the Final Salary Section), which is closed to new members
and to future accruals.

The Money Purchase Section forms part of a wider flexible benefits programme where members can, within limits,
select the amount of their cverall benefits allowance that is directed towards their pension plan.

Payments to the Money Purchase Section of the Plan are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,
astheyfall due Pre-paid contributions arerecognised as an asset to the extent that a cost refund or areductionin
future paymentsis available.

The total expense recognised inthe statement of comprehensive income of £23.4m (2016: £22 5m)represents
contributions payabie to the Plan by the FCA at rates specified inthe rules of the Plan.

The Final Salary Section has no active members and the benefits of the deferred members are calculated based on
their final pensionable salary as at 31 March 2010, when the Final Salary Section closed to further accrual.

The netliabilities of the Final Salary Section of the Plan are calculated by deducting the fair value of the Plan assets from
the present value of its abligations and they are disclosed as non-currentiiabilities in the statement of financial pesition.

The obligation of the Final Salary Section of the Plan represents the present value of future benefits owed to
employees inrespect of their service in prior periods. Thediscount rate used to calculate the present value of those
liabilities is the balance sheet date market rate of high guality corporate bonds having maturity dates approximating
to the average term of those liabilities. The calculationis performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method at eachreporting date.

Actuarial gains andlosses arisingin the Final Salary Section of the Plan (fer example, the difference between
actual and expectedreturn onassets, effects of changes in assumptions and experience losses due to changes in
membership ) are fully recognised in other comprehensive income in the pericd inwhich they are incurred.

Past service cost {including unvested past service cost) is recognised immediately in the statement of
comprehensive income.

The most recent Scheme Specific Valuation (S8V) of the Planwas carried out as at 31 March 2016 by the Scheme
Actuary Theresults of this valuation have been taken into account for the purpose of the 1AS 19 retirement benefit
as at 31 March 2016, in order to allow for any changes in assumptions and movements in liabilities over the pericd
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Thekey assumptions concerning the future uncertainty at the reporting date, which have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

« pension deficit—the quantification of the pension deficitis based upon assumptions made by the directers relating to
the discount rate, retall price inflation (RPI}, future pensionincreases and life expectancy

- generally, the level of annual pension increases awarded by the Plan for pensions in payment is the annual ncrease in RPI,
or 5.0% avyeariflower, although some of the pension nghts transferred in from the FCA's predecessor organisations

receive different levels of pensionincreases.

The mgjor assumptions and dates used for the purpose of actuarial assumptions were as follows.

At 31 March : 2017 2016
Discountrate 2.45% 3.45%
Retail price inflation (RPI) 3.35% ) 3.05%
Future pensionincreases 2.05% 2 85%
Plan membership census dates 31/03/2016 31/03/2013

The discount rate was chosenwith reference to the duration of the Plan's liabilities (around 21 years) and takes into
account the market yields for high-guality corporate bonds of appropriate durations.

In assessing the value of funded cbligations, the mortality assumptions for the Plan are based on current mortality
tables and allow for future improvements in life expectancy The mortality assumptions for 2017 are based on CLUB

VITAtables and reflect anupdate to the CMImortality improvements from the mortality assumptions from 2016.

Thetable belowillustrates the assumed life expectanciesinyears of staff when they retire

2017 2017 2016 2016

Males Females Males Females

Retiring today aged 60 {years} 278 29.4 28.2 304
Retiringin 15 years aged 60 {years) 250 308 29.5 319

Theresults of the pensicon valuation are sensitive to changes in all of the assumptions referred to above. The table
below provides an estimate of the sensitivity of the present value of pension obligations, and the cost of servicing
those obligations, to small movements in those assumptions.

Increase/ (decrease) in pension

obligation at

31 March 2017
Assumption Sensitivity €m %
Present value of funded obligation . Assumptions as above —~no change 886.5 -
Discountrate 10bpsincrease to 2.55% . (17.7) {2.0%)
Discount rate 10 bps decreaseto 2.35% 18.3 2.1%
Retail Price inflation 10bpsincrease to 3.45% 15.4 1.7%

{allowing forimpact on pensicnincreases)
Longevity Life expectancy for a 60 year cldincreases by 1 year 260 29%
Theamountsrecognised inthe staterments of financial position are;

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
£&m £m £m £m Em
Farrvalue of Plan assets 7125 5901, 585.3 487.2 4€1.9
Less. Present value of funded cbligations (886.6) (724 2) ! (7279) (610.9) (574.0)
Deficitin the Plan (174.1) {134.1} | (142.6) {123.7) (112.1)
Unfunded pension liabilities £3.4) (3.0) (3.0 {27 (286)
Net liability {177.5) (137.1} {145.6) {126.4) (114.7)
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Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensiveincome inrespect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

2017 2016
Notes £m £m
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability {4.3) (4 5)
Other net finance costs 5 {4.3) {4.5)
Actuariallosses of £65.3m (2016, £6.5m) are recognised Inthe pericd inwhich they occur as part of other
comprenensive income. Cumulative actuarial icsses recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:
2017 2016
£m £m
Lossesat 1 April (223.3) {216.8)
Net actuarial losses recognised in the year {65.3) (6.5)
At 31 March (288.6) (2233
Changesinthe present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
2017 2016
£m £m
Opening obligaticn (724 2) (727.9)
Benefits paid 17.4 159
Interest cost on Plan liabilities {24.7) (24.5)
Actuarial losses)/ gains {155.1) 123
Closing obligation {BB6.6) (724.2)
Changes inthe fair value of the Plan assets are as follows
2017 2016
£m Em
Opening fair value of plan assets 580.1 585.3
Expected return on plan assets 204 200
Actuarial gains/ (losses} 897 (18.8}
Contributions by the employer 297 195
Benefits paid {17.4) (15.9)
Closing fair value of Plan assets 712.8 5580.1

The fair value of the Plan assets and asset allocation at 31 March were as follows:

Asset allocation

Asset allocation

2017 Fair value 2017 2016 Fair value 2016

% £&m % £m

UK eqguity securities 12.2 869 10.8 637
Overseas equity securities 38.8 276.5 373 2201
Corporate bonds 195 1389 215 126.9
Index-linked gilts 111 791 21.4 126.3
Fixedindex gilts 01 o7 o1 06
Real estate/property 70 499 77 45 4
Buy-in asset! 93 66.3 - -
Other 20 14.2 12 71
Closing fair value of Plan assets 100 712.5 100 590.1

1 inSeptember 2016, the Trustee of the Plan completed the purchase of aninsurance contract to cover the pension payments for a tranche of the Plam’s pensioner
members Under this this policy the insurer makes pension payments to the Planthat match the payments due to the members covered and is an asset of the Plan
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There are nc deferred tax implications of the above deficit.

The Plan assets do not include any of the FCA's ownfinancialinstruments, nor any property occupied by, or other
assetsusedbythe FCA,

Asthe Planclosedto future benefit accrual with effect from 31 March 2010 no accrual funding contributions were
paid afterthat date. ARecovery Planwas putin place following the S5V as at 31 March 2016 and required an annual
deficit contribution of £30.0m (£29.0m for the FCA and £1.Om for the Financial Ombudsman Service) to be paid over
10 years from 1 April 2017 with the aim of removing the Plan deficit.

Inorder to mitigate the risks of significantly increased future annual pension deficit funding contributions, the FCA
has agreed with the Trustee a set of triggers whereby the level of exposure to equity securities will be reduced in
favour of debt securities (1.e corporate bonds andindex-linked gilts). These triggers have been determined to identify
material mprovements inthe Pian's funding position, measured relative to itslong-term funding target.

14. Capital commitments

Cn 20 May 2015 the FCAsigned an Agreement for Lease with Lendlease to move to The International Quarter (TIQ)
in Stratfordin 2018. The leaseis for 20 years commencing in April 2018. Building works commenced in July 2015 and
the FCA 1s committed toincur fit-out costs as part of preparing the building for occupation. Capital commitments for
fit-out costs and rent have beenincluded innote 15.

The FCAhad alsc enteredinto contracts at 31 March 2017 for future capital expenditure totalling £5 8m relating to
intangible assets (2016: £1.7m], which 1s not provided for inthe financial statements. '

There were no capital commitments for the PSR.
15. Operatinglease arrangements
Atthereporting date, the FCA had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases and commitments (fit-cut costs andlease payments) under the Agreement for Lease
with Lendlease for TIQ, which falldue as follows:
2017 2016
£m £m
Within one year 7349 307
Inthe secondto fifth yearsinclusive 318 146.0
Greater than five years 2938 275.4
Total 399.5 452.1

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. There are no finance leases inplace. Allotherleases are treated as operating leases.

Under the new IFRS 16, which comes inte effect from 1 January 2019, the lease for TIQ will be treated as a finance
lease and the statement of financial positionwili reflect both an asset and aliabllity.

Rentals payable under cperatingleases are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis overthe termofthelease Benefits received and recevable as anincentive tc enterinto an operatinglease are
spread ona straight-line basis over the term of thelease term.

The PSR occupiesthe FCA's building and has nolease commitments of its own.

16. Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personnel

Theremuneration of key management personnelis set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specifiedin
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures Key management personnel include the chairman, executive board members and
directors that report directly to the CEO and COO This includes senior management acting inthe role of director for
more thanthree months. Ofthis group, 16 (2016 15) personnel received remuneration of £100k or more for the year.
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Group Parent Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£m €m £Em Em
Short-termbenefits 53 45 48 4.2
Post-employment benefits 0.4 0.4 04 c.4
Total 5.7 4.9 5.2 4.6

Other relationships

Two non-executive members of the board, Baroness Sarah Hogg and Bradley Fried also held directorships with FCA-
regulated firms during the financial year, Baroness Sarah Hogg was a Chairman/Director of John Lewis Partnership

- Plc, part of John Lewis group. Bradley Fried was an executive director of Grovepoint Capital LLP which is authorised

and regulated by the FCA_ Their remuneration from the group and FCA is disclosed in the remuneration table.

Therewere no othertransactions with key management personnel in either year.

Significant transactions with other financial services regulatory organisations

The FCAenters inte transactions with a number of other financial services reguiatory organisations. The nature of
the FCA's relationship with these organisations is set outin FSMA. The FCA considers all of the below organisations to
berelated parties.

The FCAis reguired under various statutes to ensure that each of the Financial Services Compensation Scherrie
(FSCS), the Financial Ombudsman Service and the Money Advice Service (MAS) can carry out their functions. The
FCA has theright to appoint and remove the directors of these organisations, with the approval of the Treasury.
However, the appointed directors have to exercise independent judgement in accordance with the Companies Act
2006.1FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements defines control as 'the ability touse power to vary returns'. Gn
the basis of this, the FCA does not contrelthese entities and hence is not required to prepare consolidated financial
statements which includes these crganisations.

a) The Financial Services Compensation Scheme Limited

During the year, the FCA provided an agency service to FSCS to collect tariff data, issue levy invoices and collect levy
monies onits behalf. The charge for the service in 2017 was £0.3m (2016: £0.3m). The net amount of fees collected
that remained to be paid over by the FCAto FSCS at 31 March 2017 was £0.9m (2016: £1.2m).

b} The Financial Ombudsman Service Limited

During the year, the FCA provided an agency service to the Financial Ombudsman Service to collect tariff data, issue
levy invoices and collect levy monies onits behalf The charge for the service in 2017 was £0.1m {2016: £0.1m). The
net amount of fees collected that remained to be paid over by the FCA to the Financial Ombudsman Service at 31
March 2017 was £1 1m (2016 £14 9m}.

The FCAisaquarantor to alease agreement for the Financial Ombudsman Service's premises in Exchange Tower,
Harbour Exchange, London, ET4. Thelease s fora 15-year term commencing 1 September 2014. The FCA does not
guarantee the short-termleases in Exchange Tower,

The Financial Ombudsman Service is also a participating employer in the FCA Pension Plan describedin note 13 and
makes contributions at the same cverallrate as the FCA.

c) Money Advice Service

Duringthe year, the FCA provided anagency service to MAS to collect tariff data, issue levy invoices and collect levy
monies onits behalf The charge for the service in 2017 was £0.1m {2016 £0.1m). The net amount of fees collected
thatremained to be paid over by the FCAto MAS at 31 March 2017 was £0.6m, {2016: £30 8m).

d} The Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA)

InApril 2013, the FCA entered into an agreement with the PRA te provide services under a Provision of Service
Agreement (PSA}. This includes issuing invoices and collection of levy monies, the provision of: information systems,
enforcement and intelligence services, contact centre and data migration The annual charge for these servicesin
2017 was £8.4m (2016: £9.1m}.
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The netamount of fees collected that remained to be paid over by the FCAtothe PRAat 31 March 2017 was £2.4m,
(2016. £24.8m). :

e) The Office of the Complaints Commissioner (OCC)

Followinglegislative changes which took effect on 1 Aprit 2013, the OCC deals with complaints against the FCA, PRA
and the Bank of Englandin respect of its oversight over the recognised clearing houses and payment schemes. [t has
been agreed that the FCA will continue to fund the OCC until 31 March 2018.

The FCA funds the activities of the OCC through the periodic fees it raises. During 2016/17 the FCA transferred
£0.5m (2016: £0.5m) to the OCC to cover running costs, which have been expensed inthe FCA group financial
statermnents. At 31 March 2017, the balance owing to the FCA from the OCC was £0.1m {2016: £3.1m).

By virtue of certain provisions contained in FSMA, the FCA (together with the Bank of England and the Freasury) has
theright tc appoint the Complaints Commissioner, who is both a member and a director of the company and as such

has the ability to'control the OCC. However the OCC activities are immaterial compared to those of the FCA and have
been accounted for at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income.
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Section 166 of FSMA (3156) gives us the power to obtain anindependent view of aspects of afirm's activities that
cause us concern or where we require further analysis. Appointment of the skilled person firm(s} can either be by the
regulated firm, or [under the Financial Services Act 2012), directly by the FCA. Ineach case, we set the scope of the
review and the costs are borne by the regulated firm.

Key activities

In2016/17, we used the 5166 power in 49 cases' of which four were contracted directly by us.

The aggregate costs incurred by regulated firms for 5166 work undertaken in this financial year, including any reviews
thatremain in progress since April 2013, was €110.1m”.

The reviews examined a number of regulatory issues, including

- pastbusiness and quality of advice

-« adequacy of systems and controls, including the effectiveness of controlfunctions
- corporate governance andsenior management arrangements

+ financialcrime

- clientmoneyandclient asset arrangements.

capitaladequacy

During 2016/17, the following skilled persons firms were appointed to undertake 5166 reviews:

ATEB Consulting

BDOLLP

Bovills Limited

Clifford Chance LL.P

Complyport Limited

Deloitte LLP

Ernst & YoungLLP

Eversheds LLP

—

This includes some reviews where a Requirement Notice has beenissued but work has not yet started and so no costs have ncurred

]

Costs guoted are net of VAT except where reviews are directly apponted, where costs are reported as gross One review constitutes a significant proportion of the totafcosts
quoted The Financial Statemants (Nate 6} grve nformation about costs related to directly apponted s166 ravews
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+ FTiConsultingLLP

« Grant Thornton UK LLP

« Huntswood CTC Limited

+ KPMGLLP

+ MacfarlanesLLP

« MazarsLLP

- Moore Stephens LLP

« PAConsulting Services Limited
- PriceWaterhouseCoopersLLP
= Telos Consulting

« The Censulting Consortium Limited

Willis Towers Watson

.

Firm classification

Flexibie

Fixed

Client Assets 1 3. 4
Governance, Controls & Risk Frameworks 7 3 . 10
Conduct of Business' - 3 22 25
Data & 1T Infrastructure : I 0 1
Financial Crime 1 4 5
Prudential —Insurance 1 0 1
Prudential - Investment Firms. Intermediaries and 2 1 3
Recognised Investment Exchanges

Total 16 . 33 49

Thetable ebove relates to reviews where we have exercised our powers under s166 for 2016/17 Far PRA and Bank of
England information please refer to their publications.

Notes

1. Lotsisatermusedtc describe the different subject areas inwhich a skilled perscnreview can be carried out and detaits
ofthe different Lots canbe found at www fca.org uk/your-fea/documents/skilled-person-panel-iot-descriptions

2. Definitions of the FCA's firm classifications can be found at www.foa org.uk/about/supervision, 'Approachto
Supervision for fixed portfolio firms’ and ‘Approach to Supervision for flexible portfolio firms’

3. Theupdated costsinrelationtothe ongoing 15 reviews of nterestrate hedging products stated inthe 2013/14 Annual
Reportnow standsat £391 5m These costs are asat 31 March 2017

4. For2015/16 onereview commissioned shortly before the financial year end was subsequently cancelled, with no costs
beingincurred The totalnumber of 5166 reviews commissioned was thereforereducedto41.

125



Appendix2 Financial Conduct Autheority
Regulatory Decisions Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17
Committee Annual Review

Appendix 2
Regulatory Decisions Committee Annual Review
for the year to 31 March 2017

Introduction from Tim Parkes, Chair of the Regulatory Decisions Committee

Welcome to the second annual review published by the Regulatory Decisions Committee
(RDC) of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) As last year, we look back at what the RDC
has done and look forward briefly te some of the things we might expect to see over the next
12 months.

Asis evident fromthe overview section of this report, it hasbeen a busy year forthe RDC; 445
caseswere openedand 431 cases concluded inthe period, comparedto 204 and just under
200in the previous year Whatever our case-load, itisimportant that we always aim to make fair and appropriate
decisions onthe FCA's behalf. We also endeavour to do our work efficiently. The RDCis supported by a secretariat
which includes our own legal advisers, case-handlers and administrators, and  would like to take this opportunity to
thank them for their hard work, without which it would not be possible forthe RDC to meet its objectives.

Ireferred last year to the House of Commons Treasury Committee's concern to see ‘entrenchment’ of the RDC's
independence fromthose in the FCA who are responsible for investigating cases and makingrecommendations to
us. This point was repeated, in August 2016, when the Treasury Committee published my written response to some
cutstanding guestions. The Chairman of the Treasury Committee cormmented at the time:

‘Decisions made by the RDC must be taken on their merits. So the Committee needs to be independent from the FCA,
and demonstrably so. This is allthe more important ifenfercement is to become a credible last line of defence in the
regufatory armoury.’

i hope that our record over the last year demonstrates that this has been the case. We carefully consider the material
put before us both by the relevant division of the FCA {generally the Enforcement and Market Oversight Division
{EMOM) and by the subject of the regulatory action, before we make a determination In most cases we dealt with, we
also heard directly from the firm orindividual that was tha subject of the action as well as from their legal advisers. In
some cases, we decided not to adopt the case team's recommendation for regulatory action.

| indicated last year to the Treasury Committee that | wished tolook at the RDC's composition, te ensure that we had
members with expertise from the conisumer cradit sector (as the FCA took over consumer credit regutatron from the
Office of Fair Trading in 2014) and with direct experience of consumer issues more generally. | amvery pleased to say
that the RDC has recently been joined by Nick Lord, who has over 30 years' experience representing the consumer
interest infinancial services, and by Karen Johnstonwho also has a specialist interestin consumer services and
consumer protection.

Inlast year's review | said that | wanted to lcok for opportunities to communicate more directly to those involvedin
financial services about the RDC and whatit does Since then, | have spoken at several conferences and seminars

to explain cur remit and processes. | remain keen to continue with this, since, in my experience, thereis much that
practitioners and consumers do not understand about the RDC

The RDC has considered some interesting and important cases this year. These include the case of Andrew Tinney,
the former Chief Operating Officer of Barclays Wealth and Investment Management, The RDC concluded that Mr
Tinney recklessly made misleading statements and cmissions about a report onthe culture of Barclays Wealth
Americas The RDC gave Mr Tinney a decision notice setfing out its decision to censure him publicly and prohibit him
from performing any senior management or significant influence function; Mr Tinney has referred the decision notice
tothe Upper Tribunal. )
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We also considered applications by firms in the debt management sector to convert their interim permissions under
the transitional regime for consumer credit firms into full permissions. In some cases, we were not able to ensure that
the firms concerned would satisfy, and continue to satisfy, the threshold conditions for authorisation, and decided
that the applications should, accordingly, be refused In some other debt management cases, we decided that the
firms should be authorised, as we were satisfied that the firms would meet the threshold conditions.

As willbe seen fromlater sections of this review, the nature of the RDC's case-load is likely to change in the light of
the measures introduced on 1 March 2017 which enable subjects of regulatory action to opt to contest cases inpart,
rather than settle or contest them fully. This-should ensure that cases brought to the RDC are more focused and
therefore capabie of being dealt with more efficiently.

I summarise below cur review of the FCA's enforcement settlement process during the past year, and present our
conclusions and recommendatjons.

Il amvery much looking forward to the next 12 months as Chair of a committee made up of talented and committed
members, whose collective aimis to ensure that, ineach case we deal with, the appropriate regulatory outcome is
reached.

- i

Tim Parkes
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Overview

The RDC is a committee of the FCA Board and makes certain decisions on its behalf. The Board appoints the RDC's
Chair and members. Apart from the RDC Chair, RDC members are not employees of the FCA_Scthe RDCisapartof
the FCA, but itis operationally independent of the executive. As the RDC's Terms of Reference make clear, 'The RDC
is separate fromthe FCA's executive management structure.”

The RDC Chair reports guarterly to the External Risk and Strategy Committee (ERSC) of the FCA Board on matters
relating to resourcing and perfoermance (for example, onthe length of time taken to complete cases). The RDC Chair
does notreport on the hasis for Individual decisions made by the RDC.

Casework
The RDC made aimost 660 decisions on cases (at either the first or final stage) last year. Many of these relate to
enforcement action against firms for failure to pay reguiatory fees or submit regulatory returns.

The committee also makes decisions on:

- contested enforcement and supervisory actions alleging serious breaches by regulated and unregulated firms and
individuals

+ applications by firms and individuals for authorisation or approval which the Authorisations team proposes to refuse, and

+ whetherto give authority for the FCA to bring civil or criminal proceedings

Making decisions

The RDC has its own legal advisers and support staff who work in a separate division from the FCA staff involved in
conductinginvestigations and making recommendations to the RDC. The RDC staffreport through the Company
Secretary to the FCA Chair. The RDC's dedicated legalt function advises the RDC Chair and members onthe legal and
evidential soundness of cases, which assures an objective and independent approach to issues arising from cases
brought to the RDC.

The FCA'swebsite includes a detailed description of what the RDC's roleis in contested cases and explains the
different notices which the RDC may issue.? The RDC determines whatis an appropriate decision based on

its understanding of the issues before it. Ineach case, the RDC assesses the evidence and legal basis for any
recommendation for regulatory action.

The process allows the subject of the action or their representative to make bothwritten and oralrepresentationsto
the RDC 3 Members use their experience and knowledge intheir assessment. When appropriate, the RDC willdepart
fromthe recommendations made to it, forexampte: ‘

+ tochange the basis of a case from deliberate to negligent misconduct (or vice versal

» tochangethe amount of a proposed financial penalty

« toconclude that no disciplinary actionis appropriate, or

« todecide thatan applicationfor autherisation of a firm ar approval of anindividual should be granted.

As explained further below, the RDC's decision-making remit has been extended toinclude caseswhere the firmor
individual concerned wishes to contest only a part of the case against them

RDC decisions are decisions of the FCA and can, therefore, only be challenged by the subject of the action, who may
refer the matter to the Upper Tribunal for are-hearing.

1 Paragraph 2(a) of the RDC's Terms of Reference see wwwifca.org uk/publication/corporate/fca-carporate-governance pdf
2 www.fca org uk/about/committees/reguiatory-decisions-committee-red
3 The Financial Services Lawyers Association may pravide pro-bona legal assistance to a subject see wwwisla org uk/scherme
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Operational performance

Inputs

Case inputs during the year have more than doubled sincelast year. Inrecent years thelargest increase has been

in straightforward enforcement actions against firms that fail to submit returns or pay fees. Thisis due, inpart,

to the significantincréasein the size of the population of firms reguiated by the FCA * These actions may result,
ultimately, in a firm's permissions being cancelled. In approximately 21% of cases brought to the RDC last year, the
firms rectified the regulatory breach during the process, thus ending the regulatory action and enabling the firms to
continue trading.

Figure 1: Cases opened during the year by case type®
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4 Since the RDC's secretanat introduced a new case management system in February 2016, cases arelogged at an earler stage, when the RDC s Arst
notified of potential cases, a proportion of those cases de not progress. for one reason or another [for example, in straightforward cases the firm
right rectify the breach before the RDC recawves the papers] Accordingly, these cases account for some of thencrease in case numbers However
such cases require preparatory work on the part of the secretanat before they are withdrawn

5 Panel - Enforcement/Supervisory enforcement or supervisory actions, other than straightforward cases, aganst firms/indmduals “ar regulatory
breaches
Straightforward— Enforcerment enforcement actions decided by the RDC Charr or a Deputy Chair alone where Lhe use of a panelis not necessary ot
appropnate (the majonty being for falure to pay regulatory fees or submitregulatory returns}
Straightforward - Supervisary supervisory matters decided by the Char or a Deputy Charr aione {for reasons of urgency)
Cral/Criminal cases where permission s sought frorm the RDC Chanr or a Deputy Chair alone for the FCA to beqin proceedings aganst Arms ar
individuals in the civil or criminal courts
Panel - Authorisations. cases whare it 15 proposed to refuse an apgication by a fire for authonsation or for anindvdual to be approved
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Outputs and cutcomes

The number of cases completed during the year has also increased compared to the previous year (from almost 200
to over 400)

Figure 2: Cases completed during the year by case type
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The outcomes of the 22 completad Panel - Enforcement/Supervisory cases were that:

the RDC issued five prohibition orders {preventing anindividual from carrying on certain activities) and in one further
case decided not toissue a decision notice imposing a prohibition order

the RDC withdrew approval from three individuals to perform certain functions within authorised firms

.+ the RDCissuedone public censure (i.e. a public statement of misconduct) and two financial penalties

- the RDC cancelled the permissions of two firrms

- the RDC granted an application to revoke a prohibition order

+ EMO decided notto continue with the cancellation of one firm's listing after other informationwas provided

« two caseswere case was settled duringthe process

« EMOwithdrewten cases, either before or after the RDC received the papers.

The 23 completed Authorisations cases had the following cutcomes:

« the RDC refused four firm authorisation applications

+ the RDC decided to approve the applications for authorisation by firms inthree cases

- the Authcrisations team decided to approve two firms after receiving further information from them

- ineight cases, the RDC stayed its proceedings at the request of the Authorisations team and the firms concerned,
following an agreement betwaen those parties for avariation of permission with aview to a pnased withdrawal fromthe
market. The applications were withdrawn at the end of this process

- five further cases were withdrawn by the subject either after they had made representations or without their doing so

+ the RDC referred one case back to the Regulatory Transactions Committee for decision as the firm had not made
representations, despite indicating anintentiontodoso. ’
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Timing

The average time taken to complete a Panei - Enforcement case was approximately 6.5 months from the RDC
receiving the case papers until it gave a Decision Notice or decided not to give a notice. Thisis animprovement on
last year's average Panel - Authorisations cases were completed onaverage in 3 7 months. Thisfigure is higher than
last year which reflects the significantincrease in numbers of this case type being referred to the RDC as weltas the
temporary stays agreed as part of the process of these firms withdrawing fromthe market (as explained above).

Upper Tribunal decisions

Where disagreements arise between the FCA and firms or individuals about the FCA's regulatory decisions, the
RDC'sdecision can bereferred tothe Upper Tribunat (Tax and Chancery Chamber) by the firm or individual, forare-
hearing. The Trihunalis an independent judicial bedy established by the Tribunals, Courts and Enforcement Act 2007.

Tribunal proceedings constitute a full re-hearing of the case (not an appeal), and involve different evidence—most
notably live witness evidence, including cross-examination before the Tribunal. The RDC does not have anyrolein
the proceedings, and the FCA's case Is presented by EMO, which canchoose to presentthe case to the Tribunalcna
different basis from that before the RDC, for instance by arguing for a higher financial penalty.

For thesereasons, the RDC does not (and cannot) directly assess the quality of its decisions, in cases which are
referred, onthe basis of whether the Tribunal reaches the same conclusion as the RDC Nevertheless, Tribunal

decisions are frequently informative and illuminating, and the RDC actively reviews them for any learning points
either inrelation to the specific case or to RDC processes and procedures more generally.

During the year, there were substantive Tribunal decisions {i.e. covering liability and sanction, or the cutcome of an
authorisation application) inrelation to two parties who had referred decision notices issued bythe RDC. ineach of
these cases, the Tribunalreached the same conclusion as the RDC. The Tribunal also made decisions in three cases
where the RDC had refused permission for firms to carry on consumer credit activities, and the firms applied to suspend
the effect of those decisions (which otherwise take immediate effect} Ineach such case, the Tribunalrefusedto
suspend the effect of the RDC's decision.

Thirteen RDC cases which were referred to the Tribunal during the year were awaiting a decision on the reference at
the year-end (31 March 2017)

Inanother case, Ms Angela Burns is appealing against the decision of the Tribunal which held that she wasinbreach
of Statement of Principle 1, which relates to integrity (although it found against the FCA inrespect of certain
allegations). The FCA 1s appealing against acosts order. The Court of Appeaihearing islisted for July this year.

Third partyrights

Asmentionedinthe RDC's last Annual Review, in May 2015 the Court of Appeal published its decisionin Achilles
Macris v FCA, whichrelated to the issue of third party rights. Following this decision, the RDC adjusted its view on
third-party rights to ensure consistency with the test set out by the Court of Appeal. On 22 March 2017, the Supreme
Courtruledinthe FCA's favour, finding that Mr Macris was notidentified by the FCAin its Final Notice against his
employer, JP Morgan Chase Bank NA (issued under the settled notices procedure), and that the test for identification
was more restricted than the lower courts had considered it to be. This is likely to reduce the number of cases with
third party rights which will come before the RDC for decision.

Ongoing case loads

Atthe end of the period of this review [31 March 2017}, the RDC had 71 ongoing cases, comprising:

+ 9stayed Enforcement Panel cases (stayed following requests by the Sericus Fraud Office)

» 18 imminent referrals that had beennctified to the RDC {including one Criminal and one Panel—Supervisory case)
+ 35 Straightforward cases

« 1Panel- Authcrisations case
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+ 8openEnforcement Panel cases.

Membership

The committee nowhas 19 members. Between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017, sixnew members of the committee
were appointed ® These were chosen particularly for their competitionlaw and/or consumer {including consumer
credit) experience Theterms of office of five existing members’ were extended for a further three years after the
expiry cf theirinitial three-year term.

The membership of the RDC comprises current and recently retired financial services industry practitioners and
non-practitioners who are appointed for a fixed term {normally three years, but this can be extended to six} There
are currently nine practitioners® and ten non-practitioners.? Six members of the committee, including the Chair, are
lawyers®and three are accountants.!! Further details are set out onthe FCA's website 2

RDC members are selected on the basis of their:

« experience of making independent evidence-based decisions

- workinseniorand expert positions in financial services, or other relevant sectors

« knowledge and understanding of consumers and ather users of financial services.

This range of skills and experienceis intended to enhance the objectivity and balance of the FCA's decision-making
and to help achieve fairness and consistency across cases

The fullmembership of the RDC meets regularly The object of these meetings is to: enhance the effectiveness of
the Committee by sharing insight and experience in relation to decided cases; undertake tramning inrelevant technical
aspects of requlation by the FCA; and keep members informed of likely workloads and areas of focus.

The RDC regularly reviews the membership of the committee. The diversity of the committee is considered when
recruiting new members_Itisimportant that the committee reflects, as far as possible, the different sectors of the
regulated community and consumers.

Resources

The RDC is supported by a secretariat of FCA staff, which comprises case management, legal and administrative
functions. The team supports the Chair, Deputy Chairs and members tc deal with cases efficiently and effectively
to a high standard. The team provides legai advice to the RDC, monitors cease inputs and timeliness and ensures that
cases are progressed appropriately, taking into account complexity, the requirements of the subjects of regulatory
action, andresourcing

The Chair reportsto the FCA Board through the External Risk and Strategy Committee onrescurce reguirements.
The Board fully supports the RDC having enough resources Lo manageits caseload.

Review of the enforcement settlement process

inits report on enforcement decision-making at the financial services requlators', the Treasury recommended that
the RDC (as the FCA's decision-maker in contested cases) should regularly review the FCA's processes in settled

[} Karen Johnston, Nick Lord. Philip Marsdan, Robin Mason. Stuart Meclntash and Malcoim Nicholson

7 Ira) Armiri, John Callender. Peter Craddock, Elizabeth Nevilie and Pauline Wallace

8 Ira) Amir, Nitw Beattie, Kevin Brown. John Callender, Peter Craddock, Chns Curnmings. Nick Lord. Stuart Melntosh and Caroline Ramsay

9 Tim Parkes, Elizabeth France, Pater Hinchirffe, John Hull Karen Johnston, Robin Mason, Philip Marsden, Elizabeth Nevilie | Malcolm Nicholson and Pauline Wallace
10 Tim Parkes, Peter Hinchiiffe, John Hull, Karen Johnston, Phinp Marsden and Matcolm Nicholson

11 Irap Armir, Caroune Ramsay. Pauline Wallace

12 www fea org uk/about/structurefcommitteesdrde-bragraphies

13 www govuk/government/uploads/systerm/uploads/attachment_data/file/389063 /enforcemant review_resporse_final pdf
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cases. It recommended that the review should include seeking comments from all or a sample of those who have
settled cases and speaking with the relevant EMO staff. It said the RDC should monitor the effectiveness of the
recommended changes to the settlement process, identify whether there may be settlement processlessons to
be learned, and make generic public recommendations. The RDC undertook to do this, and to publishin the RDC's
Annual Review any recommendations arising out of its review.

Accordingly, the RDC invited, where appropriate, firms or individuals who had settled a disciplinary or prohibition case
with EMQ during the financial year to participate in a survey to provide their views on the settiement process. The
results of the survey are summarised below.

The RDC sent surveys to six firms and eight individuals, and received responses from two firms and three individuals.
Although this represents a response rate of just over one third of recipients (and response rates were broacly

similar for both firms and individuals), the RDC has adopted a cautious approach to drawing conclusions from what

is nevertheless a small data-set. Responsesin future years should provide 2 bigger body of data for analysis. Inthe
meantime, the comments below should be read with thatin mind.

Individuals tended to find that the adeguacy of the information received about the settiernent process was poor.
In contrast, firms said that they had received adequate information, noting: open lines of communication, regular
updates regarding timescales and the clarity of the infermation received.

Most firms and individuals which had requested extra time were afforded extensions and said that they had enough
timetorespond. The firms stated that settlement negotiations progressed quickly; howaver, the majority of
individuals found that settlerment negotiations did not progress quickly encugh.

The majority of individuals said that the documentation received as part of the settlement process, interms of clarity,
fairness and conciseness, was quite poor Incontrast, the firms and one of the individuals stated that the clarity of the
documentation was excetient. One firm and individual also rated its fairness and conciseness as excellent, and the
other firmrated the fairness and conciseness as satisfactory and good, respectively.

Most individuals did not feel that settlement negotiations were conducted 'professionally and courteously’. They did
not feel that FCA staff of the appropriate leveiwere involved. However, the firms and one of the individuals believed
that FCA staff conducted themselves well, and that staff of the right level wereinvoived

Allresponses were considered in detail. Where the subject agreed, EMO were given an opportunity to respond to
theresponses tothe survey Onreviewing the responses, the RDC did not identify specific concerns that would
reguire 2 change to the settlement process. It should be noted, however, that the individuals were more critical of the
settlement process thanthe firms.

The RDC recommends that case teams which tend to deal more with individuals than with firms should be briefed
onthe settlement process adopted in relation to firms and reflect upon whether there may belessons to be learned.
Any briefing shoutd focus on the clarity of correspondence and tone of meetings with the individuals, ensuring the
process follows a clear timetable, that EMC is transparent about who is its decision-maker, and that EMO explains the
reasen behind a decision.

The RDC's survey next year will include guestions on the partly contested case procedure and will have a section
focused on how well this new procedure is being implemented. Once the results of next year's survey are available,
this may help the RDC to identify trends and make recommendations accordingly.

The next 12 months

The FCA has recently expanded the RDC's remit in a significant respect, in the policy staterment publishedon 1
February 2017.# With effect from 1 March 2017, the RDC will now receive partly contested cases, where firms
orindividuals under investigation may agree certain elements of a case (whether penalty, facts, liability, or a
combination of these aspects) while contesting the other elements before the RDC.

14 www fca org.uk/publication/policy/ps17-01 pdf
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The continuing expansion of the FCA's regulatory responsibilities is likely over time to increase the number of cases
seenbythe RDC, asis the impact of the Senior Managers and Certification Regime. The RDC has recently received
the papersinits first case involving an applicationunder the new regime. Otherwise, the RDC expectsto see cases
reflecting the priorities set outin the FCA's Business Plan for 2017/18.

Therecent policy statement also introduced a change relating to the composition of RDC panels. Praviously it was
usual for the RDC panel, in cases where representations were made, to include additional members of the RDC who
had not previously considered the matter, With effect from 31 January 2017, it is now usual for the same panel to
decide whether to issue a warning notice and (where applicable) a decision noticein the same case.

However, this is not an absolute rule. In particularly complex cases invelving novel points of law or practice (as
provided in the applicable guidance inthe FCA Handboaok), it may be appropriate for alarger panel to consider the
case at both the warning notice and representations stage. And there may stillbe caseswhere itis appropriate to
enfarge the paneltoinclude additional RDC members at the decision notice stage. ‘
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Environmentalimpact

We are committed to good environmental practice as part of our overall approach to corporate responsibility, we
seekto follow industry best practice in all that we do Effective environmental management and prudent use of
resources also fits withinthe remit set by FSMAinso far as it supports one of the principles of good regulation —to
make the most efficient and economic use of rescurces. The key focus this past year has beento:

+ useresources wisely to deliver both environmental and financial benefits

« make all FCA employees aware of their responsibility to understand the environmental management policy

+ committomeasuring, reporting and reducing cur mpact on the environment wherever practicable

+ setobjectives and targets for each of ourkey impacts andreview themregularly to ensure they remain achievable

+ engage with our suppliers te ensure that they reflect cur commitments to sound environmental practice and goed
corporateresponsibility )

We manage our business in an envircnmentally responsible manner with an ongoing focus on sustainability. This
involves careful contro! over the use of rescurces and consumables, and minimisation cf waste We have made
progress through a number of initiatives:

Mabonal Audi Gifice

+ wehave encourageduse ofblack and white printing by making it a default setting

» in2016/17 werecycled 363kg of waste which saved the equivalent of 2,595 trees and 471,440kg of CO? We expectthese
figures toimprove further as we have introduced more sustainable food packaging options for the staff restaurant

+ we have alsc participated in activities such as EarthHour and installed LED lighting throughout the lift iobby areas and on
somefloors

Performance commentary

Plant and equipment

We have two offices in London and one in Edinburgh: scle occupancy of 25 The North Colonnade (25TNC} which
accounts for the majority of our estate; two floors of 1 Canada Square as atenant; and one floor of Quayside Housein
Edinburgh, also as a tenant

We refurbished cur 25TNC headguarters in 2008 {(improving the building's infrastructure) which reduced the overall
energy consumption from 18mto 10m kWh pa. Since April 2010 we began reportingunder the Carbon Reduction
Commitment and during that time have reduced our carbon emissions by 16%.

During 2015 and 2016, we furthered our commitment to reducing energy censumption by installing a variety of

energy saving initigtives We have implemented a newlighting control system, significantly reducing energy usage by
automatically activating and deactivating lights as required during evenings, nights and early mornings.
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While we strive forincreasing efficiency andreducing energy consumption year onyear, the opportunities to gain
further significant savings in our current premises are limited due to previous successful initiatives and the FCA's
impending move from cur two Canary Wharf offices to a single new office inthe Olympic Park during 2018, which
constrains capital investments.

17

837 5.452

Non-financial Total gross emission for 4987
indicators scope!?
(CO% intonnes) Totalnet emissions for scopet 50 56 65
Total net emissions for scope? 4,937 4,781 5387
Gross emissions scope —business 1,107 1,202 765
travel®
Refated energy - Eiectricity: non-renewable 11,222.271 10,866,214 10.900,717
consumption{(kWh) "o ‘ ¢ 265436 295,030 ' 348,758
Financial indicators Total expenditure on energy 1,229 1,418 1,372
(€000 excl. VAT) Total expenditure on electricity 1,221 1,406 1,355
Total expenditure on gas g . 12 17
CRC offsetting payments 109,850 98.400 101.652
Total expenditure on official 1,523 1,327 1,688

business travei (excluding
accommeodation and subsistence)
1 Excluding 1 Canada $quare asincluded inthe seryice charge.

2 Excluding 1 Canada Square and Edinburgh as included in the service charge
3 Ernissions for ar and ranl [domestic. European andinternational)

Business travel
Our staffvisit regulated firms across the UK and globally. To minimnise the impact of our business travel, we have a

policy that encourages sustainable travel and prioritising the use of public transport.

Overall, there has been a decrease in UK domestic air travel and a second year decrease Inral travel There has been
anincrease in shorthaul air travelin Europe and long-haul international air travel from 2016 but the figures remain
lower thanin 2015,

Cur taxiservice reguires that all vehicles used are no older than two years old. To ensure we are getting value for money
and to help with our commitment to the environmenit, low emission cars are provided for all journgys on the account.
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Mode of travel 2017 2016 2015

Rail Business Rail 31,394 31,718 34908
travel CO%e kg
Air Business .Air— Domestic (between UK airports) 451,279 615,042 . 610,381 |
traved CO%e ko',? Air—Europe (shart haul up to 5. 760 km) 108253 0 88242 149 838

S ' Air - Intefnational{long haisl over 3,700km) 540,744 . | 416,249 764,899
Eurostar Business Eurostar 66,782 N/A N/A
travel®
Taxi Business " Taxi 1,725,651 1,814,353 N/A
travel CO%e kg' .
Car Hire Business Car Hire 28 500 23,407 68,038
travet CO%e kg’

Mileage Business Mileage 127,685 173,024 193,234
travel CO%e kg',},* ‘

Total 3077288 3,139,035 1.821.298

Notes

1. CO% conversionrates calculated under the class of average passenger as per guidance on the DEFRA's website for

busingss travel.

2. Flightdistance uplift factor—figures do notinclude the % uplift factor,

3. Excludestravel booked and then claimed through expense reimbursement except mileage.

4. Approx. 1/3havebeenentered using the diesel calculations for CO? cutput and 45 mpginthe equation, the other 2/3

have used the petrol calculation and 40 mpg i an attempt to ascertairn an approx CO? reading.

Waste generation

We foilow the waste hierarchy {'reduce, reuse, recycle, recover, disposal’) in order to fower costs and reduce
envircnmental impacts.

We recycled 80% (2016 68%) of our general (non-hazardous) waste. Thisincrease of 12% recycled 1s due tothe
introduction of ‘Mixed Recycling”.

X
We still convert organic waste produced inour kitchens into biogas and liquid fertiliser through aerobic digestion.

We continueto operate a policy of zero waste to landfilt
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Non-financial Total waste : 489 521 604
indicators {tonnes) Hazardous waste total 16 i0 08
Incineration 928 170 172

Non-hazardous waste
396 360 431
Hazardous waste — disposalcost - 8 6
‘Non-hazardouswaste— . - Incineration . a1 36 - 38
disposalcost . Recycied ' 89 85 - 69

Paper consumption

Printing

Cur ‘Follow Me print solution across all multi-functional device printers has continued tobe mere efficient and less
paper intensive, Printers are configured to black and white and double sided by default to ensure the most efficient
use of paper. In 2016/17, we have seena 7% reduction of overall printing against the previous financiaiyear. All printing
paperis recyclable and print levels are continucusly monitored and reported. All printer equipment and consumables
are disposed of and/or recycled in accordance with best practice printindustry guidelines.

Indicators 2017 2016 2015
Non-financial indicators {sheets of papfer) 18,794,456 20,060,516 ‘ 24,413,459
Financlal indicators (€'000 excl. VAT 94,415 o 100,775 122,642

*Thys data does not include the reduced energy consumption from having more environmentally friendly printers. however, the reduced energy consurptionlevels
are includedin the kWh calculation disclosed earlier

Purged printing

‘Follow Me' printing has saved us 3,200,129 sheets of paper in 2016/17, the equivalent of 300 trees, from purged print
jobs. These are print jobs that were sent to the printer but never released to print by the user and as such cancelled
for printing.

Water [gallons)

Deleted Pages Expired pages Sheets CO2 (pounds)
2,696,131 3,332,208 3,200,129 300 123,525 281291 @

Reprographics

Our staff use the in-house reprographlcs function for any specialist printing or photocopying over 100 sheets.

2017 2016 2015
Non-financialindicators Paper consumption (A4) 3,658,306 3,128,181 2.820,000 .
(?.heets)_ Paper consumption (A3) 69.210 51,227 53 000

Reprographics has experienced anincrease in paper consumption during this current period.



e

NAO) !ﬁ )

(

]

o
Z

Offic

National Audit

Financial Conduct Authority Appendix 3
Annual Reportand Accounts 2016/17 Sustainability report

Water usage

The 25TNC headquarters has reduced cistern capacity from ¢ litres to 6 litres and uses sensors to reduce the amount
of water usedintheiavatories.

2017 2016 2015
Non-financial indicators {m?3} Water consumption 44922 39,964 40,764
Financial indicators (€'000 excl. VAT)  Water supply costs 97 85 85

Sustainable procurement

Qur procurement policy requires suppliers to meet cur commitment to sound environmental practice. it encourages
them to develop and supply goods and services that help improve both our and their environmental performance
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